Mayor

City of Rock Falls

603 W, 10th Street
Rock Falls, IL 61071-2854

City Clerk

William B. Wescott Eric Arduini

815-380-5333

City Administrator
Robbin D. Blackert
815-564-1366

815-622-1104

City Treasurer
Kay Abner
815-622-1100

Rock Faite, o

City Council Agenda
Rock Falls Council Chambers
May 2nd, 2017
6:30 p.m.
Call to Order @ 6:30 p.m.
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Audience Requests:
1. National Honors Society - Reality Grant

Community Affairs:
Bethany Bland, President /CEO, Rock Falls Chamber of Commerce.

Consent Agenda:

1.

N o ORI

RECESS

Approve the Minutes of the April 18th, 2017 Regular Council Meeting
Approval of bills as presented.

Approval of Resolution 2017-760 Bridge the Community Run 2017
Approval of Resolution 2017-761 Rock Falls Sesquicentennial Parade
Approval of Resolution 2017-762 Fiesta Days Parade 2017

Approval of Resolution 2017-764 Twin City Holiday Parade

Referral of preliminary and final plats to the Planning and Zoning committee
for Benchmark Phase III-B.

Qeatmg of Newly Elected Officials:

Mayor - William B. Wescott
City Clerk - Eric M. Arduini
City Treasurer - Kay Abner
Alderman First Ward -~ George Logan Jr.
Alderman Second Ward ~ Brian E. Snow
Alderman Third Ward - Jim Schuneman




Call to Order of New Council

Roll Call

City Administrator Robbin D. Blackert:

1. Approval of the Engineering Services agreement for the 13th Avenue road
project. Design phase engineering not to exceed $13,500, and construction
engineering not to exceed $14,500.

2. Approval of the Engineering Services agreement for the Heinze Drive storm
sewer project. Design phase engineering not to exceed $9,000, ROW and
easements not to exceed $1,500 and construction engineering not to exceed
$3,000.

3. Approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Illinois
Environmental Protection Agency, and the City of Rock Falls - Brownfields
Cooperative Agreement Former Limestone Building.

Information/Correspondence:

Eric Arduini, City Clerk
James Reese, City Attorney
Brian Frickenstein, City Engineer

Department Heads:

Water Reclamation- Ed Cox

Electric- Dick Simon

Police Chief- Chief Tammy Nelson

Fire Chief- Chief Gary Cook

Building Inspector- Mark Searing
1. Approval of Resolution 2017-763 Design Guidelines, Restrictive Covenants,
and Conditions applicable to the land of the City of Rock Falls.

Water - Ted Padilla
1. Approval of the sole source provider for Metro-Cloud SCADA System and
control panels with Metropolitan Pump Company 37 Forestwood Dr.
Romeoville. IL 60446-1343 in the amount of $49,035.00.

2. Approval of the Well #5 Pump Removal and Inspection proposal from Layne
Christensen 721 W Illinois Avenue, Aurora, Illinois in the amount of $19,348.

Street - Larry Spinka
Utility Office - Diane Hatfield
1. Utility Office write-offs January - March 2017

Tourism - Janell Loos




Ward Reports:

Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4
Ald. Reitzel Ald. Kuhlemier Ald. Schuneman Ald. Folsom
Ald. Logan Ald. Snow Ald. Kleckler

Mayor’s Report:
1. Appointment of City Collector position.

2. Appointment of City Clerk Eric Arduini to the Rock Falls Firefighter’s Pension
Board, for the period April 30, 2017- April 30, 2020.

3. Appointment of John Hoffmiller to the Rock Falls Police Pension Board, for the
period June 1st, 2017 - May 31st, 2019.

Executive Session:

Any action taken from Executive Session:
Adjournment:

Next City Council Meeting 5-16-2017

Posted 4-28-2017
Eric Arduini / City Clerk

The City of Rock Falls is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Individuals with Disabilities who plan to attend this
meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in the meeting, or who have questions regarding
the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Mark Searing, ADA Coordinator, at 1-815-622-1108; promptly to allow the City
of Rock Falls to-make reasonable accommodations within 48 hours of the scheduled meeting.




REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF THE MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS
April 18th, 2017

The regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council of Rock Falls, Illinois was called to
order by Mayor William B. Wescott at 6:30 p.m. April 18th, 2017 in the Council Chambers of
Rock Falls.

City Clerk Eric Arduini called the roll following the pledge of allegiance. A quorum was
present including Aldermen Reitzel, Logan, Snow, Kuhlemier, Schuneman, Kleckler, and
Folsom. In addition City Attorney Jim Reese and City Administrator Robbin Blackert were
present,

Audience Requests:

Roger VanAusdal of 511 E. 26t Street in Sterling approached the Council in support of
the leaf burning ban. He works at the Rock Falls Post Office, and said that many co-workers
spend 8 hours a day outside. Most of the postal carriers agree with no burning, and he had a list
of signatures to be added to the record.

Renee Henry stated that she has lived in Rock Falls for 20 years, and is in support of the
burn ban. She would also like fire pits banned. During the first nice day of this spring, she had
three neighbors with fire pits burning. Her family and neighbors have had health problems, and
don’t go outside because of smoke.

Sharon Simester spoke in opposition to the burn ban. She feels that the City should
enforce the ordinances already on the books. If the City is concerned about toutism more people
will be more deterred by the shootings downtown than what is in the air.

Lee Bardo addressed the Council. He lives outside of the city limits, His neighbor
burned 24 / 7. He asked what the city is going to do about pesticides being sprayed around the
town. He mentioned that the former Parrish Alford site is not cleaned up.

Community Affairs:

President /CEO, Rock Falls Chamber of Commerce Bethany Bland informed the Council
about upcoming events, She Highlighted the Sauk Valley Leadership Program which has now
had 40 speakers give presentations.

The Farmer’s Market opens in May. There are no fees to sell, and a variety of sellers may
register. Whitney Forward is the new Farmer’s Market Director. Sesquicentennial Parade forms
can be found at the Chamber website. The Community Garage Sales will be May 19t — 21st,

Alderman Snow said it looks like a busy spring and summer,




Consent Agenda:

The Consent agenda was read aloud by Clerk Arduini. A motion to approve the consent
agenda by omnibus designation was made by Alderman Shuneman, and second by Alderman
Snow.

1. Approve the Minutes of the April 4th, 2017 Regular Council Meeting
2. Approval of bills as presented
Vote 7 aye, motion carried

Ordinances for Second Reading and Adoption;

A motion was made by Alderman Snow and second by Alderman Schuneman for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2303 Authorizing Lease of Real Estate for a Cellular Tower.
Vote 7 aye, motion carried

A motion was made by Alderman Kuhlemier and second by Alderman Logan for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2304 Supplemental Appropriation Ordinance.
Vote 7 aye, motion carried

A motion was made by Alderman Reitzel and second by Alderman Snow for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2305 vacating a portion of alley south of Ada Street.
Vote 7 aye, motion carried

A motion was made by Alderman Snow and second by Alderman Logan for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2306 adding Article VI to Chapter 20 - Open Burning

Alderman Schuneman stated his objection that this ordinance, and 2017-2307 are not an
emergency. The ordinances should have come back to committee for review, and the ordinance
sent out of the committee seemed somewhat flawed that it now takes two ordinances. The City
should not skip the committee process unless it is an emergency. He would like to see the
justification to go against the surveys that were sent out as Sterling did. His Mom said that just
because Sterling jumps off a bridge, it doesn’t mean we have to.

Alderman Kuhlemier inquired about the continued use of burning rings and
recreational fires. Police Chief Nelson answered his questions and has not had complaints from
recreational fires.

Alderman Kleckler said that people would like to see the ordinance enforced the way it
is.

Attorney Reese informed the Council that this prohibits the burning of yard waste, not
recreational fires. Yard waste was addressed in another part of the code, and the two ordinances
had to be drafted to prevent a conflict.

Vote 3 aye, 4 nay (Kuhlemier, Schuneman, Kleckler, Folsom) motion failed

A motion was made by Alderman Snow and second by Alderman Logan for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2307 adding Article VI to Chapter 20 ~ Open Burning
Vote 3 aye, 4 nay (Kuhlemier, Schuneman, Kleckler, Folsom) motion failed

A motion was made by Alderman Schuneman and second by Alderman Folsom for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2308 amending Article XI of Chapter 6 - Private Outdoor Pools.
Vote 7 aye, motion carried




A motion was made by Alderman Schuneman and second by Alderman Folsom
for the adoption of Ordinance 2017-2311 amending Section 34-283 and 34-284 Uses for
B-1 Zoning,

Alderman Klecker made a motion to amend the ordinance to also include items 1
and 2 to section 1 of the ordinance. There was no second for this motion.

Vote 6 aye, motion carried Alderman Snow recused himself from this vote

A motion was made by Alderman Schuneman and second by Alderman
Kuhlemier for the adoption of Ordinance 2017-2312 amending Section 16 390-1 Special
use permit.

Vote 6 aye, motion carried Alderman Snow recused himself from this vote

City Administrator Robbin D. Blackert: :

City Administrator Robbin Blackert presented the budget summary to the Council.
Some of the highlights were:

- Anincrease in revenue projected from USEPA, and Illinois EPA for the assessment

of the Limestone Building, and increase in rural fire contributions.

- Anincrease in expenditures in Police, and Fire due to the state mandated

consolidated dispatch.

- A decrease in Street Department expenditures due to a surplus of road salt.

- RP3 Award for the Electric Department.

- This is the final year of the Garbage contract.

- Bond funds for Gigabit Broadband project.

- The total budget is $26,151,189 which is a surplus of $33.00.

- IMEA Municipality of the Year,

- Source Water Protection Award

Administrator Blackert thanked the Aldermen, and Department heads for their work on

the budget.

A motion was made by Alderman Kuhlemier, and second by Alderman Logan for the
adoption of the FY18 budget.

Alderman Kuhlemier stated that Alderman Logan and he had been in a meeting with
Standard and Poor’s, and the City is in a strong position. The credit goes to Administrator
Blackert, and the City workers.

Vote 7 aye, motion carried

City Engineer Brian Frickenstein

Brian Frickenstein informed the Council that about 40 loads of black dirt has been added
to the RB& W District site. Trees have been planted, and laying sod will be next.

A motion was made by Alderman Reitzel and second by Alderman Schuneman for the
approval of the Engineering Services agreement for the Galt Avenue road project. Design phase
engineering not to exceed $15,000, and construction engineering not to exceed $14,000.

Vote 7 aye, motion carried




Department Heads:

Mayor Wescott acknowledged the work that the Police Department has done since the
events that happened downtown on Saturday. The City is blessed to have the leadership of
Chief Tammy Nelson, as well as the detectives, and all of the officers involved. No one wants it,
but our Police acted in a professional, and expedient manner. Our Department also received
the support of other departments from around the area.

Building Department - Mark Searing

A motion was made by Alderman Snow and second by Alderman Schuneman for the
approval of the recommendation from the Building Code Committee to accept the lawn
maintenance bid from Burger Brothers Trucking and Excavating. P.O. Box 107 Rock Falls,
Ilinois. o ' o ' ' "

Attorney Reese asked about the justification for not accepting the bid of the low bidder.
Administrator Blackert and Alderman Kleckler explained thst the low bidder was not
responsible as the bid was far too low to mow as bid, not including travel from Davenport
fowa.

Vote 7 aye, motion carried

Inspector Searing informed the Council the Building Permit for Dunkin Donuts has been
approved, and the location should be staked out for construction by the end of the week.

Water Department ~ Ted Padilla

A motion was made by Alderman Snow and second by Alderman Schuneman for the
approval of the purchase of commercial water meters from Ferguson Waterworks 1720 State
Street Dekalb, Illinois in the amount of $22,438.19. Superintendent Padilla informed the Council
that these are larger meters for customers over 2000 units.
Vote 7 aye, motion carried

Superintendent Padilla presented the Council with a plumbing survey that was sent out
to all residents. When they were sent out only 400 were returned out of 4000. The EPA is
requiring that the Water department do inspections for cross connections, and collect
information about the material of the service lines.

Tourism ~ Janell Loos

A motion was made by Alderman Schuneman and second by Alderman Logan for the
approval Facade Improvement Grant Application with revisions to the map adding 5t Avenue
from west 2nd Street to west 314 Street,
Vote 7 aye, motion carried

Committee Reports

A motion was made by Alderman Reitzel, and second by Alderman Schuneman for the
approval of the 2017 road maintenance program.,
Vote 6 aye, 1 nay (Kleckler) motion carried




Ward Reports:

Ward 1:
Alderman Logan commended the Rock Falls Police Department along with the Police,
Fire, and EMS of Rock Falls and area communities that helped during the recent events.

Ward 2:

Alderman Kuhlemier was very proud of the community by their reaction to the event.
He also reminds residents that yard waste is picked up free of charge, and it is a good way to
dispose of yard waste without making your neighbors mad.

Alderman Brian Snow thanked the residents in the second ward for voting for him and
allowing him to serve for another four years. Mr. Snow recommends moving the burning
ordinances that did not pass back to the Ordinance Committee. Please call law enforcement if
burning is causing a quality of life issue. The Police did a spectacular job handling the incident
downtown, and thoughts go out to those that were affected.

Ward 3:
Alderman Schuneman congratulated Jake Junis, and his family for being called up from
AAA to the major leagues for Kansas City.

Mayor’s Report:

A motion was made by Alderman Folsom, and second by Alderman Schuneman for the
approval of Resolution 2017 ~ 759 Approving grant of license to use real estate. The property is
owned by David Barajas and will be used for the Sesquicentennial Headquarters. The address is
110 West 20d Street. This will be from May through August.

Alderman Kleckler inquired about insurance requirements.

Vote 7 aye, motion carried

Senator Neil Anderson, and Tony McCombie will be guests of Mayor Lee at Candlelight
Inn in Sterling on April 21st.

Saturday May 13t is the Sauk Valley Landlord’s Association City Cleanup to be held at
the RB&W parking lot. All types of TVs will be accepted.

Channel 5 has a picture of a “Mi-Tech” vehicle. These vehicles are in town doing
mapping of the City for as part of the municipal broadband implementation.

Mayor Wescott wishes his brother Jeff Wescott a happy 60t birthday and happy
retirement from a wonderful career. He worked for the City for 36 years, and is retiring on
National Lineman’s Day.

Executive Session
A motion was made by Alderman Snow, and second by Alderman Reitzel to enter
executive session for Personnel Section 2(c)(1) and Collective Bargaining Section 2(c) 2.

Vote 7 aye, motion carried

City Council enters executive session at 7:38pm
City Council returns to regular session at 8:07pm

Any action taken from Executive Session:




A motion was made by Alderman Snow, and second by Alderman Reitzel for the
adoption of Ordinance 2017-2313 Authorizing execution of a Collective Bargaining Agreement
2017-2020 with the FOP Lodge 215.

Vote 7 aye, motion carried

With nothing else for the good of the Council a motion was made by Alderman Snow
and second by Alderman Reitzel to adjourn the meeting at 7:16pm.
Viva Voce Vote, motion carried

Meeting is adjourned at 8:09pm

J : e Eric Arduini, City Clerk




JSTATES
CSERVICE®

The following employees at the Rock Falls Post Office would like to add their support to a
proposed leaf and or yard waste burn ban.

Many are city mail carriers and are subjected to the hazards of breathiiiy the smoke filled air on

a daily basis for many hours a day.

Print Name

Sign Title
ol (bafut S Reteen et coniet
Teskva,  Yoarry 4%«\1/4/‘1@“1’7\ Letter Camen
asoi foa IE o Casien
[un Hewn haw Laber Caarie”
ﬂlf Jhe Lazio Cut
%ﬁ?‘& VanAusdal CLeRIC
LrunE  R/Evias QLEIL/\
( ’Mws Conwmyniinm

/’%’u«« :jbél«t.fcﬁm

, : CETER. CALR 167
W%. CLER/

ecke Miachies

Recke
G AT

_&Jé g—* / “H‘&f Coarries”




CITY OF ROCK FALLS

Rock Falls, Illinois  May 2, 2017

To the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rock Falls, Your Committee on Finance would
respectfully report that they have examined the following bills presented against the City, and have
found the same correct and would recommend the payment of the various amounts to the several

claimants as follows:

Sesquicentennial Fund
Tourism

General Fund

Tax Increment Financing
Industrial Development
Flectric

Broadband Fund

GIS/IT Fund

Sewer

Water

Garbage

Customer Service Center
D.U.L Fund

Drug Fund

Tobacco Grant

Safe Passage/Non Evidentiary
Motor Fuel Tax

Customer Utility Deposits

ElectricO & M

Sewer Revenue/O & M

Water Revenue/O & M

Alderman Kuhlemier
Alderman Logan
Alderman IKeckler

$3,513.27
$3,338.78
$50,192.13
$0.00
$0.00
$83,983,19
$0.00
$0.00
$16,972.57
$12,676.07
$142.49
$1,067.99
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$15,459.73

$519.01

$187,865.23




DATE: 04/27/2017
TIME: 14:31:39

CITY OF ROCK FALLS

ID: AP443000.WOW

VENDOR #

04

T0004266

TOURISM
05

200
5032
5178

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/28/2017

NAME

R F SESQUICENTENNIAL FUND

SMOKE 'N GUNS

PAID THIS

R F SESQUICENTENNIAL FUND

TOURISM

COM ED

COMCAST

COMCAST BUSINESS

TOURISM

GENERAL FUND

01
4310
5032

5148
5178

02

5032
5178

04

5032
5178

05

ADMINISTRATION

PITNEY BOWES

COMCAST

RETATIL ATTRACTIONS LLC
COMCAST BUSINESS

ADMINISTRATION

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

COMCAST
COMCAST BUSINESS

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

BUILDING

COMCAST
COMCAST BUSINESS

BUILDING

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

2,117.
2,047.
2,527.

5,053

2,047.
53,120.
2,527.

2,047.
2,527.

2,047.
.78

2,527

FISCAL YEAR

38
53
78

.39

53
00
78

53
78

53

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

v G G U e S U S S e L e ekt e KR e Rl et

R F SESQUICENTENNIAL FUND

1,000.

1,000.

37

79.

1,500.
.24
3,600.

36.

5,141.

38.

10.
72.

82.

00

00

.97
.24
36.

12

33

00

00
12

36

.62
.12

74

48
32

80

1



ATE @
'TME :
D:

04/27/2017
14:31:39
AP443000.WOW

CITY OF ROCK FALLS
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/28/2017

VENDOR # NAME

TENERAL FUND

05

5032
5087
5178
829

06

1165
1448
1622
5032
5178
55
795

10

1165
194
2606
2771
337
4201
4207
4528
4608
5032
5110
5178
5181
529
55
631

12

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

COMCAST

ERIC ARDUINI

COMCAST BUSINESS
SELF HELP ENTERPRISE

PAID THIS
FISCAL YEAR

2,047.
1,914.
2,527.

686.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

POLICE

COMPLETE ELECTRICAL CONTR. INC
IL DEPT OF CENTRAL MGMT SERV
C.0.P.S. TESTING SERVICE, INC.
COMCAST

COMCAST BUSINESS

ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC.
SBM BUSINESS EQUIPMENT CENTER

POLICE

STREET

COMPLETE ELECTRICAL CONTR. INC
GRUMMERT'S HARDWARE - R.F.
MIKE'S REPAIR SERVICE

PAETEC

GARAGE DOOR SPECIALISTS
JESSE'S TOWING & SERVICE
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC
MODERN SHOE SHOP

SCHULER MOTORS, INC.

COMCAST

KUNES COUNTRY AUTO GROUP
COMCAST BUSINESS
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY INC
LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC.

ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC.
MURRAY & SONS EXCAVATING, INC

STREET

PUBLIC PROPERTY

47,355.
4,118.
4,290,
2,047.
2,527.

25,809.
8,138.

47,355.
8,667.
5,919.
3,465.

17,448,

467.
7,997.
2,643.

2,047.
11,366.
2,527.
837.
3,878.
25,809.
126,286.

53
84
78
00

37
36
00
53
78
75
80

37
92
55
59
75
00
87
38

53
87
78
90
96
75
99

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

10.
121.
.30
50.

72

254

510.
1,354,
2,130.
81.
.50
58.
128.

144

4,407

1,072.
.68
56.
.56
166.
15.
.49
220,
.75
.24
57.
36.
877.
159.
126.
7,576.

75

40

10,523,

48
98

00

.76

00
14
00
17

66
91

.38

55

24

50
00

49

13
12
80
88
33
25

01

2




DATE: 04/27/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS
TIME: 14:31:39 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/28/2017

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

392.

392.

36.
.99

18

108.
65.

238.

254

85

85

86

.35

38
07

65

.00

PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR
GENERAL FUND
12 PUBLIC PROPERTY
T0000826 FIREHOUSE MINISTRIES 15,096.86
PUBLIC PROPERTY
13 FIRE
2244 SCHREINER'S EXPRESS LUBE : v . ...523.17
4207 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 7,997.87
5032 COMCAST 2,047.53
5178 COMCAST BUSINESS 2,527.78
5187 MARK MCPHILLIPS 36.80
FIRE
BUILDING CODE DEMOLITION FUND
12 BUILDING CODE DEMOLITION FUND
1472 WARD, MURRAY, PACE & JOHNSON 125,347.54

BUILDING CODE DEMOLITION FUND

ELECTRIC FUND

20 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

1527 RESCO } 45,452.90
1702 INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER 1,769.25
194 GRUMMERT'S HARDWARE - R.F. 8,667.92
2631 HOUSE'S TRUCK & AUTO REPAIR 42,209.66
2771 PAETEC 3,465.59
4207 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 7,997.87
4215 POWER LINE SUPPLY 13,242.52
4626 ENGEL ELECTRIC CO. 26,359.09
4987 GREG JOHNSON

5032 COMCAST 2,047.53
5099 JEREMIAH NICHOLS

5178 COMCAST BUSINESS 2,527.78
55.. . ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC. 25,809.75
795 SBM BUSINESS EQUIPMENT CENTER 8,138.90

T0001695
T0001901

T0002819 MILLEDGEVILLE FARMERS ELEV CO 1,347.97

254

211.
257.
68.
.26
161.
59.
33.
17

493

3,912

375,
.22

26

425,
.36
.36 .
256.
15.
.20

72
231

240

1,156.

.00

40
90
46
84
45
00
00
00
84
00

61

3



ATE: 04/27/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS PAGE: 4
IME: 14:31:39 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
D: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/28/2017

PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR AMOUNT DUE
LECTRIC FUND
20 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
rooo4262 (G 145.00
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 8,141.67
‘EWER FUND
38 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
1165 COMPLETE ELECTRICAL CONTR. INC 47,355.37 1,203.00
2451 MENARDS 5,631.05 48.71
2517 PRAIRIE HILL RDF 9,646.98 824.20
2713 COLUMBIA PIPE & SUPPLY CO. 944.66 2,734.24
4119 USA BLUE BOOK 11,294.8¢6 255.53
4207 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 7,997.87 5.18
4210 NCL OF WISCONSIN 170.61 828.41
4655 WHEELHOUSE, INC. 11,949.13 366.50
4866 LOESCHER 36,195.09 1,363.78
5032 COMCAST 2,047.53 18.35
5139 SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, INC. 6,137.50 526.00
5178 COMCAST BUSINESS 2,527.78 36.12
T0004264 NORTHWEST ILLINOIS AUTO GLASS 50.00
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 8,260.02
JATER FUND ‘
40 WATER
1023 WILLETT, HOFMANN & ASSOCIATES 410,405.40 2,159.90
4361 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 108,771.92 2,782.35
WATER 4,942.25
48 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
2771 PAETEC 3,465.59 73.79
34 ALTORFER INC. 229,736.42 16.72
423 AT&T 23,383.74 369.91
4361 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 108,771.92 875.25
5032 COMCAST 2,047.53 13.11
5110 KUNES COUNTRY AUTO GROUP 11,366.87 66.14
5178 COMCAST BUSINESS 2,527.78 36.12

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,451.04




DATE: 04/27/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS
TIME: 14:31:39 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/28/2017

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

82.

82.

321.
10.
18.
2.

50

50

06
00
35
32

PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR
GARBAGE FUND
50 GARBAGE
4446 MORING DISPOSAL, INC. 407,090.67
GARBAGE
CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER
51 CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER
2688 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN 1,917.54
4310 PITNEY BOWES 5,053.39
5032 COMCAST 2,047.53
5178 COMCAST BUSINESS 2,527.78
771 PINNEY PRINTING CO 9,568.29

CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
65 MOTOR FUEL TAX

5183 COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA 63,088.

MOTOR FUEL TAX

CUSTOMER UTILITY DEPOSITS
75 CUSTOMER UTILITY DEPOSITS

4620 TRI-COUNTY OPP COUNCIL 4,661,

100012c5 R
T0004265

CUSTOMER UTILITY DEPOSITS

TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS

50

66

242.

664.

3,880.

3,880.

125.
126.
.46

16

269.

50,104.

79

52

73

73

97
58

01

62



ATE: 04/20/2017
'TME: 16:34:59

CITY OF ROCK FALLS

D AP443000.WOW

VENDOR #

04

172

5015

771
T0004260

'OURISM
05

1493
2528
5015
5032
T0004016

SENERAL FUND

01

172

4190
4331
5015
5032

957
T0002046
T0004261

02

5032

04

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/21/2017

NAME

R F SESQUICENTENNIAL FUND

CITY OF ROCK FALLS
CARD SERVICE CENTER
PINNEY PRINTING CO
SAUK VALLEY SUN

PAID THIS

5,557.
76,007.
9,399.

R F SESQUICENTENNIAL FUND

TOURISM

WILLIAM & MARY COMPUTER CENTER
OUTFRONT MEDIA

CARD SERVICE CENTER

COMCAST

STERLING ROCK FALLS

TOURISM

ADMINISTRATION

CITY OF ROCK FALLS

ROCK FALLS AMERICAN LEGION
CIRCUIT CLERK OF LEE COUNTY
CARD SERVICE CENTER

COMCAST

MONTMORENCY/COLOMA DRAINAGE
GIESON MOTORSPORTS

ELITE AUTO SALES

ADMINISTRATION

CITY ADMINISTRATOR
COMCAST

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

BUILDING

46,756.
14,575,
76,007.
1,832.
500.

5,557.

3,885.
76,007.
.73

1,832

247.

1,832.

FISCAL YEAR

76
52
88

73
00
52
73
00

76
00
52

24

73

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

it e e i e ey e e it o S o o o ot o S e b e ok e ot et et rm o o ok ok Ty o ot S Y i T e i oy e o A0+ e o T S o o o o O e B0

! F SESQUICENTENNIAL FUND

18.
2,136.
168.
190.

2,513.

116.
1,325.
1,313.
.76
500.

3,259.

20.
1,500.
50

8,005.

86
00
41
00

27

00
00
69
00

45

.84

00
00

.20
.76
5,000.
1,393,
.00

00
91

71

.38

.38

1




DATE: 04/20/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS PAGE:
TIME: 16:34:59 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/21/2017

PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR AMOUNT DUE
GENERAL FUND

04 BUILDING
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76 35.54
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52 61.45
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73 9.51
837 SHELL 66,014.70 107.60

BUILDING 214.10
05 CITY CLERK'S OFFICE
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76 63.25
440 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 9,178.50 54.04
459 IIMC 160.00
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52 47.42
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73 9.51

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 334.22
06 POLICE
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76 11.84
182 CITY OF STERLING 1,500.00 390.46
364 GRUMMERTS HARDWARE - STERLING 1,420.16 76.48
440 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 9,178.50 702.48
4422 SOS TECHNOLOGIES 158.35 158.35
4692 PANTHER UNIFORMS, INC. 4,386.68 1,767.29
4796 VERIZON WIRELESS 16,536.19 538.33
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52 1,251.80
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73 73.63
5147 ID NETWORKS 2,995.00
651 NICOR 53,863.30 118.22
837 SHELL , 66,014.70 2,221.43

POLICE ’ 10,305.31
07 CODE HEARING DEPARTMENT
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76 16.98
4929 TIMOTHY J SLAVIN 7,150.00 650.00

CODE HEARING DEPARTMENT 666.98




)ATE: 04/20/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS PAGE: 3
'IME: 16:34:59 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
D: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/21/2017

PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR AMOUNT DUE
JENERAL FUND
10 STREET
194 GRUMMERT'S HARDWARE - R.F. 8,608.27 21.56
2606 MIKE'S REPAIR SERVICE 3,288.31 2,631.24
2985 WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB 7,687.48 37.56
4796 VERIZON WIRELESS 16,536.19 62.62
4963 CUSTOM PRODUCTS CORP 4,478.33 1,759.98
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73 4.76
55 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC. 24,901.37 238.98
837 SHELL - 66,014.70 : 555.85
STREET 5,312.55
12 PUBLIC PROPERTY
1052 SAUK VALLEY MEDIA 17,966.90 573.30
332 FYR-FYTER, INC. 1,330.80 56.45
423 AT&T 22,571.90 233.13
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52 75.22
T0000826 FIREHOUSE MINISTRIES 15,048.94 47.92
PUBLIC PROPERTY 986.02
13 FIRE
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76 6.19
194 GRUMMERT 'S HARDWARE - R.F. 8,608.27 29.56
2509 RENNERT'S FIRE EQUIPMENT 365.86 1,115.98
_2985 WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB 7,687.48 321.02
4385 DINGES FIRE COMPANY 6,448.23 135.92
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52 337.46
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73 36.54
5187 MARK MCPHILLIPS 36.80
651 NICOR 53,863.30 354.65
837 SHELL 66,014.70 547.01
TO0003424 BLULINE 108.99
FIRE 3,030.12
3JUILDING CODE DEMOLITION FUND
12 BUILDING CODE DEMOLITION FUND
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76 1.19

BUILDING CODE DEMOLITION FUND 1.19




DATE: 04/20/2017
TIME: 16:34:59

CITY OF ROCK FALLS
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

401.
.97

35.

100.
442,
586.
112.
594,

42.

84.

474.

1,658.
23.
47,000.
224,
470.
21,890.

1,655.

45

09
40
35
00
10
41
24
46
80
80
78
00
78
44
00
29

ID: AP443000.wWOowW
INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/21/2017
PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR
ELECTRIC FUND
20 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
1279 WILCO RENTAL 3,314.38
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76
219 CRESCENT ELECTRIC 1,179.46
2985 WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB 7,687.48
31 ALTEC INDUSTRIES, INC. 7,538.42
34 ALTORFER INC. 228,893.34
423 AT&T 22,571.90
440 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 9,178.50
4471 CREATIVE CUISINE 312.60
4620 TRI-COUNTY OPP COUNCIL 4,577.20
4796 VERIZON WIRELESS 16,536.19
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73
5184 TARLTON CONCRETE RESTORATION
5186 HODGE COMPANY
55 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC. 24,901.37
66 STERLING CHEVROLET CO. 1,450.90
837 SHELL 66,014.70
T0004258 AMOS FINANCIAL

SEWER FUND
38

172
200
2985
34
4207
423
4446
4796
5015
5032
5131
651
837

WATER FUND

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.
COM ED 1,972.
WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB 7,687.
ALTORFER INC. 228,893.
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 7,850.
AT&T 22,571.
MORING DISPOSAL, INC. 406,340.
VERIZON WIRELESS 16,536.
CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007,
COMCAST 1,832.
METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, INC. 9,125.
NICOR 53,863.

SHELL 66,014.

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

76
38
48
34
06
90
67
19
52
73
17
30
70

37.

75,841,

10.

145.
217.
257.
147.
466.
750.
222.

201.

16.
350.
5,600.
326.

8,712.

16

52

37
00
93
08
81
61
00
03
86
64
00
72
50

55

4



ATE: 04/20/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS
"IME: 16:34:59 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
D: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/21/2017

PAGE:

AMOUNT DUE

95,
10.
.53
57.

67.
263.
675.
2,388.
568.
11.
1,444.
48.
198.
125.

00
14

68
98
20
00
84
52
89
78
42
96
20

PAID THIS

VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR
ATER FUND

48 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
1493 WILLIAM & MARY COMPUTER CENTER 46,756.73
172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.76
194 GRUMMERT'S HARDWARE -~ R.F. 8,608.27
2985 WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB 7,687 .48
3107 CULVER'S 340.17
332 FYR-FYTER, INC. 1,330.80
4141 JEFF BEHRENS EXCAVATING 38,595.00
4361 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 106,383.08
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007.52
5032 COMCAST 1,832.73
5151 LEE JENSEN SALES CO, INC. 37,259.46
533 LECTRONICS, INC. 10,824.06
55 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC. 24,901.37
67 B & D SUPPLY CO. 6,775.78
837 SHELL 66,014.70

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

JARBAGE FUND

50 GARBAGE
5015 CARD SERVICE CENTER 76,007
GARBAGE
JUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER

51 CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER

172 CITY OF ROCK FALLS 5,557.
440 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 9,178.
5032 COMCAST 1,832,

CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTER

IOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
65 MOTOR FUEL TAX

5183 COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA 51,509.

MOTOR FUEL TAX

.52

76
50
73

50

318.

6,282.

59.

59.

278.

108

403.

11,579.

11,579.

64

78

99

99

16

.07
16.

64

47

00

00

5




DATE: 04/20/2017 CITY OF ROCK FALLS PAGE: 6
TIME: 16:34:59 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443000.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/21/2017

PAID THIS
VENDOR # NAME FISCAL YEAR AMOUNT DUE
CUSTOMER UTILITY DEPOSITS
75 CUSTOMER UTILITY DEPOSITS
4668 NORTHERN ILLINOIS TRANSIT, INC 100.00
rooo4259 [ 150.00
CUSTOMER UTILITY DEPOSITS 250.00

TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS - 137,760.61




RESOLUTION 2017 - 760

2017 Bridge the Community Run

WHEREAS, the Bridge the Community Committee in the City of Rock Falls, which is
sponsoring an event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this marathon will require the temporary closure of Route 40, a State
Highway in the City of Rock Falls from Second Street to the Route 40 Bridge, and said
temporary closure as designated, is requested of the Department of Transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE City Council of the City of Rock Falls,
Illinois that permission to close off Route 40 as above designated, be requested of the
Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, which this closure shall occur during the approximate
time period between 7:30 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. on Saturday, September 16th, 2017.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this closure is for the public purpose of a 5K and 10K
Run.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that traffic from that closed portion of the highway shall
be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated
traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is
conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State highway. (The
parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour routes to allow an uninterrupted
flow of traffic.) The detour route shall be as follows:

West on 2nd Street to 12t Avenue, North on 12t Ave, and across the bridge into
Sterling, Illinois.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls assumes full responsibility for
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in
effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall be at
the expense of the City and shall be positioned at each end of the closed section and at
other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic
through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all debris shall be removed by the City of Rock Falls
prior to the reopening of the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the
City as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall
be provided by the City.




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the closure and detour shall be marked according to
the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City hereby agrees to assume all liabilities and
pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by closing described above.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls shall provide a comprehensive
general liability insurance policy or an additional insured endorsement in the amount of
$100,000 per person and $500,000 aggregate which as the Illinois Department of
Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insured and which protects
them from all claims arising from the requested road closing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of the Resolution be forwarded to the
Department of Transportation to serve as a formal request for the permission sought in
this Resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Rock Falls on this 2" day of May, 2017.

William B. Wescott, Mayor

ATTEST:

Eric Arduini, City Clerk




RESOLUTION 2017 - 761

Rock Falls Sesquicentennial Parade

WHEREAS, the Rock Falls Sesquicentennial Committee is sponsoring a Parade in the
City of Rock Falls which event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this parade will require the temporary closure of Route 40, a State Highway
in the City of Rock Falls from Eleventh Street and across the Route 40 Bridge to Sterling,
and said temporary closure as designated, is requested of the Department of
Transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE City Council of the City of Rock Falls,
Illinois that permission to close off Route 40 as above designated, be requested of the
Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this closure shall occur during the approximate time
period between 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturday, August 5t, 2017,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this closure is for the public purpose of a Parade.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that traffic from that closed portion of the highway shall
be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated
traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is
conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State highway. (The
parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour routes to allow an uninterrupted
flow of traffic.) The detour route shall be as follows:

West on 12th Street to 8th Avenue, North on 8t Avenue to West 10t Street, West on
West 10t Street to 12t Avenue, North on 12t Avenue and across the bridge into
Sterling, Illinois.

Southbound traffic will be detoured to the Avenue G Bridge as stated in the
closure coordination document from Sterling, Illinois labelled Exhibit 1

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls assumes full responsibility for
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in
effect,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall be at
the expanse of the City and shall be positioned at each end of the closed section and at
other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic
through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all debris shall be removed by the City of Rock Falls
prior to the reopening of the State Highway.




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the
City as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall
be provided by the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the closure and detour shall be marked according to
the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an occasional break shall be made in the procession
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions shall be made for
traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This
paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when no detour is
required.) :

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City hereby agrees to assume all liabilities and
pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by closing described above.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls shall provide a comprehensive
general liability insurance policy or an additional insured endorsement in the amount of
$100,000 per person and $500,000 aggregate which as the Illinois Department of
Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insured and which protects
them from all claims arising from the requested road closing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of the Resolution be forwarded to the
Department of Transportation to serve as a formal request for the permission sought in
this Resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Rock Falls on this 2nd day of May, 2017.

William B. Wescott, Mayor

ATTEST:

Eric Arduini, City Clerk




RESOLUTION 2017 - 762

2017 Fiesta Day Parade

WHEREAS, the Twin Cities Fiesta Committee is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Rock
Falls which event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this parade will require the temporary closure of Route 40, a State Highway
in the City of Rock Falls from First Street to Eleventh Street, and said temporary closure
as designated, is requested of the Department of Transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE City Council of the City of Rock Falls,
Illinois that permission to close off Route 40 as above designated, be requested of the
Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this closure shall occur during the approximate time
period between 11:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. on Saturday, September 16, 2017.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this closure is for the public purpose of a Parade.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that traffic from that closed portion of the highway shall
be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated
traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is
conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State highway. (The
parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour routes to allow an uninterrupted
flow of traffic.) The detour route shall be as follows:

West on 12th Street to 8t Avenue, North on 8tt Avenue to West 2nd Street, West on
West 2nd Street to 12th Avenue, North on 12t Avenue and across the bridge into Sterling,
[llinois.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls assumes full responsibility for
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in
effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall be at
the expanse of the City and shall be positioned at each end of the closed section and at
other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic
through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all debris shall be removed by the City of Rock Falls
prior to the reopening of the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the
City as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall
be provided by the City.




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the closure and detour shall be marked according to
the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an occasional break shall be made in the procession
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions shall be made for
traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This
paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when no detour is
required.)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City hereby agrees to assume all liabilities and
pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by closing described above.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls shall provide a comprehensive
general liability insurance policy or an additional insured endorsement in the amount of
$100,000 per person and $500,000 aggregate which as the Illinois Department of
Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insured and which protects
them from all claims arising from the requested road closing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of the Resolution be forwarded to the
Department of Transportation to serve as a formal request for the permission sought in
this Resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Rock Falls on this 2nd day of May, 2017.

William B. Wescott, Mayor

ATTEST:

Eric Arduini, City Clerk




RESOLUTION 2017-764
Twin City Holiday Parade

WHEREAS, the Rock Falls Chamber of Commerce is sponsoring a Twin City
Holiday Parade in the Cities of Rock Falls and Sterling which event constitutes a public
purpose;

WHEREAS, this parade will require the temporary closure of Route 40, a State
Highway in the City of Rock Falls from the 15t Avenue Bridge south to 5th Street, and
said temporary closure as designated, be requested of the Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate
time period between 12:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. on Saturday, November 18th, 2017.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of a Parade.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that traffic from that closed portion of highway shall
be detoured over routes with an all-weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic,
* which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is
conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State highway. (The
parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour routes to allow an uninterrupted
flow of traffic.)* The detour route shall be as follows:

Northbound - Will be diverted as follows;
Westbound on West 10t Street to 128 Avenue.
* To be used when appropriate.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Rock Falls assumes full responsibility

for the direction, protection, and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in
effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall
at the expense of the City be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other




points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the
detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all debris shall be removed by the City of Rock
Falls prior to reopening the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used
by the City as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items
shall be provided by the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the closure and detour shall be marked
according to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the
procession so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions shall be
made for traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This
paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when no detour is
required.)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City hereby agrees to assume all liabilities
and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described
above.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Rock Falls shall provide a
comprehensive general liability insurance policy or an additional insured endorsement
in the amount of $100,000 per person and $500,000 aggregate which as the Illinois
Department of Transportation and its officials, employees, and agents as insured and
which protects them from all claims arising from the requested road closing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the
Department of Transportation to serve as a formal request for the permission sought in
this resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Rock Falls this 2nd day of May, 2017.



Mayor

ATTEST:

Municipal Clerk

Aldermen Voting Aye Alderman Voting Nay




<oV o
. ;“526,2
g™ [
,'fi ™~
g ~ ~ o 25 50
SCALE: 1%=50"
=y TOTAL AREA
S 2.816 ACRES
INCLUDES RIGHT—OF<WAY

; P PAN. 11=28-326~001
o
|

"BENCHMARK PHASE Ili—A”
MF. NO. 7657-98

(,2805]
e

¢
1
PUN, T1-26301-008

Mz e —

@ issizooos
@ sesizsssar

4XTD0.L2 saSE
20089105 847.08

PN 11-26-301-008

s ‘fﬂ
\of D‘N 267
et

190"

PT. PN T1-25-301-007

7101 % 31 153

e OYOU—THIN— e =

FINAL PLAT
OF

"BENCHMARK PHASE III-B"

A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF LOTS 28 3

OF THE SUBDIVISION OF THE

THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW I/4) OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH (T2IN), RANGE 7 EAST (R7E)
FOURTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN (4TH PM)

CITY OF ROCK FALLS

WHITESIDE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

2017

PN, 11-26-376-006

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I Also Certiy; that po part.of the lmd contoined wihis this. subdivision laye within o 100 yeor
1200 zone. Ga identited by the Fedarct Emargency Womogement Agency.

1 Furtier Cortty, that o te beat of my knawledge ond belf, the forsgoing pict & in compfionce
that o monumests and morkera
s ore comect as shown
argiea ore i

Stote of mnois )
Covnty. of Whiteside J

Pursuont to Choptar 765 UCS 205/2 of the Minois Compled Statutaz, we, Ronckd G. Carkes ond.
the Ronokd . Gerken Trust No. 81-001Z30, Owmecs ang to be
[

ENGINEER & OWNER’S CERTIFICATE
Stoto of Moty )

Gounty of Witesids )

into- orecer Which the Subdivider hos the right fo ume, ond (hat such surfoce
woleca have. for I occordance with generady accwpted wngheaing proctices »o.
& reduce the lksihood of domage to the odjoining property because of construcSon of thie

Datod this —_day of

Roncld G Corimn, Trastos. K
21739 Motne Rood 5 North Gourtry. Gian Rood
Starkiogs Winois  6108% Devatur, 1L 62521

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State ot Hinoke

2

3 s

County of Whitmice )

e Notary PUDE 1 004 for “

ooy corlity Dt Fonaid, G Gerker,, personsly known to me to bo the some person whoes
e e gad ik cppecred befors e 1 95y B garmen

i
H
¥
H
:
|
¥
?
¢
i
&
1
{
1
§

Givads rder my band ond natorkl seol thtk ntioy of.

Tatory Pubie

PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL

o, the mambars of thi Flonning Commission for the Clty of Rock Fols, Whitende County, MR0i3,
0o heraby opprive the Fiool Pit of “DENCHUARK PHASE M-8, ov vet forth cbav ond herwon.

Goms ander my hand ond weol Uis _______ doy of 2017 &

Choimman = Rock Fols Planning Commiasion,

CITY OF ROCK FALLS
ACCEPTANCE RESOLUTION

arsca, 208 londs iy witie th Corporats Limits of the CRy of Rock Folk, Whitside Couty,
inoie. ol

Wharscx, #oid Owoers’ hove compiled with the opplicable. Ocsinonces of the CRy of Rock Fol
g o sobdhicon, o Pave pochuced sl wdence Gt Sarcnce W st Grdomce

How, Tharwtorn, Be & Resctved by the CRy Counckl of the Cly of Rock Folle, that the. piat herwsn
e dccaptad and Approved. mubject fo the provieons and Gppficsble Ordioancee of the. CRY of Rock
Foli, Stinctx.
Possed: this oy ot 207 e

e Ty Cow

COUNTY CLERK’S TAX CERTIFICATE
Stata of Koow )
) ss
County of Witteside. )
T 37 Lo carthty thot 1 fod o delincunt or WOkt curet feves or Tpecl cEvwents
ogait the trock of fond deicribed fo the foregomg certiicates.
Doted the__doy o6, 2017 CE

Wriiasids Coonty Gerk

COUNTY RECORDER’S CERTIFICATE

Stte of Hinoly )

3 ss
County of Whitwaide )
Fhed for recond thia__day of
o3 Documont Na.

2017 £ ot o'dlock M,

e e el
NORWEST SURVEYING SERVICES, INC.
PROFESSONAL LAND, SLRVEYORS & LAND PLARNERS.

e ST o/ o /o PR e I )
_ e VRE Zarzosr Zicass | o7 AR 17
p————— g T = =
Sermacx 1S
[rm— 74 o
So-— iy BENCHMARK PHASE II-B
<) DEED/PLAT DIVRINSION § oo e = S S e
NOTE: BEARINGS ARE ASSUMED RONALD G. GERKEN




ogC Par. 31-20-301-007

~ s
~ SCALE: 1"w100"

TOTASL AREé_As
~ 2216 ACkEs

PT. PUN. 11~26-301-007
UNE OF 10T 15
BENCHURK PRASE 1

M

{20905)

(3T412)

"BENCHMARK PHASE lii—A"
M. N0, 7657-58

1

Lot
l PAN. 11-26m301~008

G.I.S. LOCATION DATA
’Dw Suremy doto depicted herean iy reisted t> the
iz the Minois Stote Tm Rafersnce.
[ g
Brinks for roarence ceptnd hewors —
Horthing. Losting. Sevation.
® weeoos zexmmer  ssen
© nosmzt 2avmoes 6708

PN, 11-26-301-008

';aa?oazh»lo-
§
§

§30fdroc00obin
H
§

~ o 50 100" 200
e e

~ PL PLN, 11-26-126-001 &

€ 101 do 3 1573

TI0130 w13

+ e —GYOU—HINOW

PRELIMINARY PLAN
OF

A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF LOTS 2 & 3
OF THE SUBDIVISION OF THE
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH (TZ2IN), RANGE 7 EAST (R7E)
FOURTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN (4TH PM)
CITY OF ROCK FALLS
WHITESIDE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

2017

PN, 11-26=376-005

LOCATION PLAN

A&
A
st
oot *
S

"BENCHMARK PHASE III-B"

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

dmza:umwmams«m—nmrsvt/c)ds.amm
Fall, eitasce Coun

Of Proparty Dewertbed Ax: Port
Tamstlp 21 North (ZIN), Ronoe 7 mm
bt ot deserowd o

plot tharsol
o oo

Contelaing 2816 ocrex. mors ‘or Jess.

il pit vpseets i ool beiday & gyt pe o
Cumat i, imion, Sngarss 1o By B Sopoie Sy T Suvey won e by o o8 bt vt
Sl o e et o Rondd . Gakon o Sk, B i

AR monumacts et ox
Gt Gtonees are'In ook 60 dcimts ot

A structorol or Wity Improvemants, sufocs ond mubsudoce, oo aod ‘ecwarily shown,
H w-x-«r—waym-.mmmumwmwmmqmmmmmmummk
ectument.

SURVEYOR’S REPORT

peteon, Beeioge ore in Drgreve Minsies ond Seconds ood ere releensed 15 o Gomumad

odjocet £ the wte 0w not

1 i Suvey nckdes o et o Indepecdunt sesich for sty of rocac, sncumlronces, deed cstcton.
Covaianta. ownaraneL Gle oridenca. o 0y other foct i an oemrere on cutrart Gie wearth ey doclose

No wocranty i3 exprosecd or kmpliod o3 o complionce with JESUCS-Z05/3 of te Mowls Complod Stotutas.

Dotod s ooy of P
e Prafoogas g Survoyor
i
Licsoss Rovees Novaembee 30, 2013 GE.
OWNER /DEVELOPER:
RONALD G.
21739 MOLINE _ROAD
STERLING, ILLINOIS 61081
(815) 626-5612
SURVEYOR/PLANNER:
NORWEST SURVEYING SERVICES, INC.
307 EAST Lt WAY
MORRISON, ILLINOIS 61270
(815) 772 - 7179

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:

ZONING:

1 BUSINESS LOT
ITY SEWER & WATER

EXISTING ZONING 53 (BUSINESS))

CALL JULIE 1-800-892-0123
I T FALLOMING:

EXCLLDING S3T.. 4., 3

UTLITY NFORUATION DEPICTED. HEREON IS FROM THE BEST
EADDICE Al E AT TiE TiE OF TS SURVEY. oy

TS BEGRUATON MUST 55 RESORTED
'CONSTRUCTION.

NORWEST SURVEYING SERVICES, INC.
PROFESSIGNAL LAND SURVEYORS & LAND PLANNERS

g
‘ot -

0 e

) i ey
e 2017091 2003058 28 aPR 17
N S il = e

| ™" BENCHMARK PHASE II-B |

RONALD G. GERKIN




CITY OF ROCK FALLS
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Agreement for professional engineering services is made between the CITY
OF ROCK FALLS, Whiteside County, Illinois (“City”), and WILLETT HOFMANN &
ASSOCIATES, INC., 809 East Second Street, Dixon, Illinois (“Engineer”), effective as.
of the date duly signed and executed by both parties.

1. Description of Project. Engineer agrees to perform professional services
in connection with the Project as described on Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

2. Engineer’s Services. The services to be performed by Engineer are set
forth on Exhibit 2, attached hereto and incorporated herein. The Engineer will serve as
the City’s professional representative in all phases of the Project and will give
consultation and advice to the City during the performance of its services. If the services
include design services, Engineer shall provide the City with such detailed engineering
drawings and specifications as reasonably necessary to bid the Project or otherwise award
a contract for the Project, and shall furnish the City with a cost estimate for the Project.
In the event the Engineer’s services include construction observation services, Engineer
shall provide onsite periodic observation services as reasonably necessary to observe the
progress and quality of the work and to determine in general if the work is proceeding in
accordance with plans, drawings, and specifications.

3. Compensation. The City shall pay Engineer as provided on Exhibit 3,
attached hereto and hereby incorporated herein. The compensation to be paid Engineer
shall not exceed the sums designated on Exhibit 3 without the prior written consent of the
City.

4. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by the City upon
giving fourteen (14) days notice in writing to the Engineer. Upon such termination, the
Engineer shall deliver to the City all drawings, specifications, partial and completed
estimates and data, if any, completed pursuant to the Agreement up to the date of
termination, with the understanding that all such material becomes the property of the
City. The Engineer shall be paid for any services completed and any services partially
completed up to the date of termination.

5. Engineer’s Responsibilities. Engineer shall provide the services required
hereunder in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised
by engineers under the same or similar circumstances. Engineer shall not be responsible
for, nor have control over or charge of, construction means, methods, sequence,
techniques, or procedures, but shall endeavor to advise the City and act as the City’s
professional representative in all phases of the project, and will give consultation and
advice to the City during the performance of Engineer’s services.




6. City’s Responsibilities. The City shall provide all information reasonably
available pertinent to the site of the Project, including previous reports and any other data
relative to design and construction of the Project. The City shall provide access to and
make provisions for the Engineer to enter upon public and private lands as required for
the Engineer to perform its work under this Agreement. The City shall further give
prompt notice to the Engineer whenever the City observes or otherwise becomes aware of
any defect in the Project. The City shall obtain approval of all governmental authorities
having jurisdiction over the Project, and such approvals and consents from such other
individuals or bodies as may be necessary for completion of the Project.

7. Indemnification. Engineer shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, directors, employees, agents and
consultants from and against all damage, liability and cost, including reasonable
attorney’s fees and defense costs, arising out of or in any way connected with the
performance of the Engineer’s services under this Agreement.

8. Insurance. Engineer shall secure and maintain such insurance as will
protect it from claims under the Workmen’s Compensation Acts and from claims for
bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from the performance of
Engineer’s services under this Agreement. Engineer shall cause the City to be named as
an additional insured on such coverage. The minimum coverage limits shall be as
follows:

General Liability

Each Occurrence $1,000,000

Personal & Adv Injury $1,000,000

General Aggregate $3,000,000

Products — Comp/OP AGG $3,000,000
Automobile Liability

Combined Single Limit (Ea accident) $1,000,000
Umbrella Liability

Each Occurrence $3,000,000

Aggregate $3,000,000
Workers Compensation Statutory Maximums
Employer’s Liability Each Accident $1,000,000
Employer’s Liability Disease — Ea Employee $1,000,000

9. Dispute Resolution. Any claims or disputes between the City and the
Engineer arising out of the services provided by the Engineer under this Agreement shall
be submitted to non-binding mediation. In the event mediation does not result in
resolution of any such dispute or claim, any litigation arising in any way from this
Agreement shall be brought in the Circuit Court of the Fourteenth Judicial Circuit,
Whiteside County, Illinois. The laws of the State of Illinois will govern the validity of
this Agreement, and its interpretation and performance.




10. Use and Ownership of Documents. All plans, drawings, and

specifications prepared by Engineer regarding the Project shall be delivered to the City at

the conclusion of the Project and, provided payment has been made to Engineer as
provided herein, shall become the sole property of the City.

11.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement

between the parties and may be amended only by written instrument signed by both
parties.

WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSQCJATES, INC.,

By/éa L.
7 \/
Ronald J. M{en, P.E, S.E.

President & General Manager

A e
fdedA P E., LEED AP BD+C
Secretary

CITY OF ROCK FALLS, ILLINOIS,

By

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk




Exhibit 1
Project Description

The proposed scope includes two project sites, as described below:

1)

2)

Grinding of a portion of 13t Avenue, from W. 17t Street to W. 22nd Street, followed by a
bituminous overlay. Grinding shall be directly adjacent to the existing curb and gutter and is
anticipated to be 6 feet to 8 feet in width, The majority of the existing curb and gutter shall
remain in place, although isolated spot repairs to the curb and gutter, to consist of complete
removal and replacement, are anticipated. Itis also expected there will be areas to be patched, by
removing unsuitable subgrade material and backfilling with aggregate subgrade improvement,
prior to application of the overlay.

Reconstruction of a portion of 5% Avenue, from W. 5t Street to W. 6% Street. Reconstruction shall
consist of the core-out and removal of deficient base material below the existing surface, followed
by back-filling with crushed aggregate base. A bituminous surface will be installed over the
aggregate base. Existing curb and gutter will remain in place along the east side of the project. A
saw cut will be made along the west side to delineate the project limit of excavation.




Exhibit 2
Description of Services

Design Phase Engineering Services

The design phase engineering services will include preparation of plan and profile sheets, typical sections
of both proposed roadways, cross sections at appropriate intervals, schedule and summary of quantities,
special provisions, contract documents and bid opening.

Construction Phase Engineering Services

The construction engineering services include a pre-construction meeting, construction lay-out and
staking, and construction observation through project close-out. -




Exhibit 3
Compensation

We propose to perform the design and construction engineering services for both project sites on an
hourly basis at the current hourly billing rates for the classification of personnel performing the work, as
outlined on the attached billing rate schedule. The design phase engineering services are estimated to be
$13,500.00. The construction engineering services are estimated to be $14,500.00.




W\

WILLETT HOFMANN

& ASSOCIATES INC

ENGINEERING  ARCHITECTURE  LAND SURVEYING

Effective April 2, 2017

EXHIBIT 4
GENERAL RATES FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
(FIELD AND OFFICE)

CLASSIFICATION OF REGULAR HOURLY OVERTIME

EMPLOYEE RATE RATE

From To

Principal Engineering Manager $144.00 $217.00 Regular Rate
Engineering Manager $122.00 $190.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineer IV $112.00 $174.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineer III $91.00 $159.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineering Intern II $85.00 $141.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineering Intern I $76.00 $116.00 Regular Rate
Principal Architectural Manager $118.00 $183.00 Regular Rate
Architect IV $118.00 $183.00 Regular Rate
Architect I1I $106.00 $165.00 Regular Rate
Architectural Intern IT $91.00 $144.00 Regular Rate
Architectural Intern I $76.00 $119.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor Manager $97.00 $150.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor IV $82.00 $129.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor III $73.00 $116.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor (SIT) II $64.00 $101.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor (SIT) I $54.00 $89.00 Regular Rate
Technician IV $73.00 $113.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Technician III $65.00 $98.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Technician II $57.00 $89.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Technician I $51.00 $80.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Survey Worker Foreman $76.00 $116.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Survey Worker $57.00 $92.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Administrative Assistant $45.00 $77.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Expenses and Materials At Cost

The above hourly rates shall be applicable for a period of one year from the date hereon, after which time
they shall be subject to adjustments to reflect payroll cost.

Generally field crews work a nine-hour day, which involves an hour of overtime each day. The rates for
field personnel apply office to office exclusive of the lunch period.




CITY OF ROCK FALLS
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Agreement for professional engineering services is made between the CITY
OF ROCK FALLS, Whiteside County, Illinois (“City”), and WILLETT HOFMANN &
ASSOCIATES, INC., 809 East 2% Street, Dixon, Illinois (“Engineer”), effective as of the
date duly signed and executed by both parties.

L. Description of Project. Engineer agrees to perform professional services
in connection with the Project as described on Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

2. Engineer’s Services. The services to be performed by Engineer are set
forth on Exhibit 2, attached hereto and incorporated herein. The Engineer will serve as
the City’s professional representative in all phases of the Project and will give
consultation and advice to the City during the performance of its services. If the services -
include design services, Engineer shall provide the City with such detailed engineering
drawings and specifications as reasonably necessary to bid the Project or otherwise award
a contract for the Project, and shall furnish the City with a cost estimate for the Project.
In the event the Engineer’s services include construction observation services, Engineer
shall provide onsite periodic observation services as reasonably necessary to obsetve the
progress and quality of the work and to determine in general if the work is proceeding in
accordance with plans, drawings, and specifications.

3. Compensation. The City shall pay Engineer as provided on Exhibit 3,
attached hereto and hereby incorporated herein. The compensation to be paid Engineer
shall not exceed the sums designated on Exhibit 3 without the prior written consent of the
City.

4, Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by the City upon
giving fourteen (14) days notice in writing to the Engineer. Upon such termination, the
Engineer shall deliver to the City all drawings, specifications, partial and completed
estimates and data, if any, completed pursuant to the Agreement up to the date of
termination, with the understanding that all such material becomes the property of the
City. The Engineer shall be paid for any services completed and any services partially
completed up to the date of termination.

5. Engineer’s Responsibilities. Engineer shall provide the services required
hereunder in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised
by engineers under the same or similar circumstances. Engineer shall not be responsible
for, nor have control over or charge of, construction means, methods, sequence,
techniques, or procedures, but shall endeavor to advise the City and act as the City’s
professional representative in all phases of the project, and will give consultation and
advice to the City during the performance of Engineer’s services.




6. City’s Responsibilities. The City shall provide all information reasonably
available pertinent to the site of the Project, including previous reports and any other data
relative to design and construction of the Project. The City shall provide access to and
make provisions for the Engineer to enter upon public and private lands as required for
the Engineer to perform its work under this Agreement. The City shall further give
prompt notice to the Engineer whenever the City observes or otherwise becomes aware of
any defect in the Project. The City shall obtain approval of all governmental authorities
having jurisdiction over the Project, and such approvals and consents from such other
individuals or bodies as may be necessary for completion of the Project.

7. Indemnification. Engineer shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, directors, employees, agents and
consultants from and against all damage, liability and cost, including reasonable
attorney’s fees and defense costs, arising out of or in any way connected with the
performance of the Engineer’s services under this Agreement.

8. Insurance. Engineer shall secure and maintain such insurance as will
protect it from claims under the Workmen’s Compensation Acts and from claims for
bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from the performance of
Engineer’s services under this Agreement. Engineer shall cause the City to be named as
an additional insured on such coverage. The minimum coverage limits shall be as
follows:

General Liability
Each Occurrence $1,000,000
Personal & Adv Injury $1,000,000
General Aggregate $3,000,000
Products — Comp/OP AGG $3,000,000
Automobile Liability
Combined Single Limit (Ea accident) $1,000,000
Umbrella Liability
Each Occurrence $3,000,000
Aggregate ' $3,000,000
Workers Compensation Statutory Maximums
Employer’s Liability Each Accident $1,000,000
Employer’s Liability Disease — Ea Employee $1,000,000
9. Dispute Resolution. Any claims or disputes between the City and the

Engineer arising out of the services provided by the Engineer under this Agreement shall
be submitted to non-binding mediation. In the event mediation does not result in
resolution of any such dispute or claim, any litigation arising in any way from this
Agreement shall be brought in the Circuit Court of the Fourteenth Judicial Circuit,
Whiteside County, Illinois. The laws of the State of Illinois will govern the validity of
this Agreement, and its interpretation and performance.




10.  Use and Ownership of Documents. All plans, drawings, and
specifications prepared by Engineer regarding the Project shall be delivered to the City at
the conclusion of the Project and, provided payment has been made to Engineer as
provided herein, shall become the sole property of the City.

11.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement

between the parties and may be amended only by written instrument signed by both
parties.

President & General Manager

o
TSKTA, P.E., LEED AP BD+C
Secretary

CITY OF ROCK FALLS, ILLINOIS,

By

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk




Exhibit 1
Project Description

The project scope includes the construction of approximately 420 feet of 12” diameter and 30” diameter
storm sewer on an easement from Wiker Drive to south end for Heinze Drive south of Selmi Lane.




Exhibit 2
Description of Services

Design Phase Engineering Services
The design phase engineering services will include preliminary planning and coordination, topographical
survey, storm & sanitary invert investigation, and preparation of a construction drawing for the new

storm sewet, technical specifications and contract and bidding documents.

ROW & Easement Services

The easement services include the preparation of the easement plats for the portion of the storm sewer
the will not be located on existing easements.

Construction Phase Engineering Services

The construction engineering services includes the bidding and award of the project, conducting a pre-
construction meeting, construction staking, part-time construction observation and construction
administrative service. Project is estimated at 3 weeks @ 12 hours per week




Exhibit 3
Compensation

We propose to perform the design, easement and construction engineering services for the storm sewer
improvements on an hourly basis at the current hourly billing rates for the classification of personnel
performing the work, as outlined on the attached billing rate schedule. The estimated engineering fee for
each phase is summarized in the table below.

Engineering Fee Schedule

Phase Cost

Design & Survey $9,000
ROW & Easements $1,500
Construction $3,000
Total : $13,500




W\

WILLETT HOFMANN

&ASSOCIATES INC
ENGINEERING ~ ARCHITECTURE ~ LAND SURVEYING

EXHIBIT 4
Effective April 2, 2017

GENERAL RATES FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

(FIELD AND OFFICE)
CLASSIFICATION OF REGULAR HOURLY OVERTIME
EMPLOYEE RATE RATE
From To
Principal Engineering Manager $144.00 $217.00 Regular Rate
Engineering Manager $122.00 $190.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineer IV $112.00 $174.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineer III $91.00 $159.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineering Intern II $85.00 $141.00 Regular Rate
Civil Engineering Intern I $76.00 $116.00 Regular Rate
Principal Architectural Manager $118.00 $183.00 Regular Rate
Arxchitect IV $118.00 $183.00 Regular Rate
Architect 11T $106.00 $165.00 Regular Rate
Architectural Intern IT $91.00 $144.00 Regular Rate
Architectural Intern I $76.00 $119.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor Manager - $97.00 $150.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor IV $82.00 $129.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor III $73.00 $116.00 Regular Rate
Prof. Land Surveyor (SIT) II $64.00 $101.00 Regular Rate
Prof, Land Surveyor (SIT) I $54.00 $89.00 Regular Rate
Technician IV $73.00 $113.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Technician ITI $65.00 $98.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Technician IT '$57.00 $89.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Technician I $51.00 $80.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Survey Worker Foreman $76.00 $116.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Survey Worker $57.00 $92.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
~ Administrative Assistant $45.00 $77.00 1.3 x Regular Rate
Expenses and Materials At Cost

The above hourly rates shall be applicable for a period of one year from the date hereon, after which time
they shall be subject to adjustments to reflect payroll cost.

Generally field crews work a nine-hour day, which involves an hour of overtime each day. The rates for
field personnel apply office to office exclusive of the lunch period.




[LLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P,O. BOX 19276, SPRINGFIELD, [LLINOIS 62794-9276 » (217) 7823397
Bruce RAUNER, GOVERNOR ALEC MEssiNA, DIRECTOR

Draft for City of Rock Falls Revolving Loan Fund Repository

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ILLINOIS
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS

BROWNFIELDS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
FORMER LIMESTONE BUILDING

This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) isentered into this _~~— - day of

, 2017, between the City of Rock Falls, Illinois (“Rock Falls” or the “City”)
and the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“Agency” or “Illinois EPA™) (collectively
“the Parties”).

WHEREAS, Rock Falls desires to conduct corrective action activities at the former
Limestone Building, 200 West 1% Street, Rock Falls, Illinois (“Site™), to facilitate asbestos
mitigation/corrective action and Site redevelopment, and place the Site back into productive use;

WHEREAS, the Agency has received Brownfields Revolving Loan Fund (RLE)
capitalization Grants awarded under CERCLA § 104(k) from the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (“USEPA”) pursuant to a Brownfields Cooperative Agreement to assist
municipalities in the performance of brownfield remediation, including asbestos
mitigation/corrective actions activities and Site redevelopment (“USEPA Funds”);

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to award Rock Falls a portion of the USEPA Funds to
pay for asbestos mitigation/corrective action activities at the Site; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to protect human health and the
environment and to redevelop the Site so that it can be placed back into productive use by the
performance of asbestos mitigation and corrective action as herein provided;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the declarations and the covenants set forth
herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Agreement by
reference and made a part hereof.

2. Compliance with Federal Regulations. Rock Falls will carry out all activities under this
Agreement in accordance with requirements of the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) 104(k) (42 U.S.C. § 9604(k)); OMB Circular A-87
for governmental recipients of loans; Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreement to States and Local Governments (40 C.F.R. Part 31); the National Oil




and Hazardous Substances Contingency Plan (“NCP”), 40 C.F.R. P2.art 300; Executive Order
11246, Equal Employment Opportunity, and implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. 60-4 relating
to federally-assisted construction contracts.

Rock Falls agrees to comply with Executive Order 13302 (Feb. 22, 2001, 66 Fed. Reg. 11255) of
February 17, 2001, entitled “Preservation of Open Competition and Government Neutrality
Towards Government Contractors’ Labor Relations on Federal and Federally-funded
Construction Projects,” as amended by Executive Order 13208 (April 11, 2001, 66 Fed. Reg.
18717) of April 6, 2001, entitled “Amendment to Executive Order 13202, Preservation of Open
Competition and Government Neutrality Towards Government contractors’ Relations on Federal
and Federally Funded Construction Projects. Rock Falls agrees to comply with federal cross-
cutting requirements including, but not limited to MBE/WBE requirements found at 40 C.F.R.
Parts 31 and 33; OSHA worker Health & Safety Standards 29 C.F.R. § 1910.120; the Uniform
Relocation Act; National Historic Preservation Act; Endangered Species Act; and Permits
required by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act; Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment
Opportunity, and implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. Part 60-4; Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. §§ 327-333); the Anti-Kickback Act (40 U.S.C. §
276¢); and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as implemented by Executive Orders
11914 and 11250.

Any and all terms in this Agreement, which are defined in CERCLA and the National
Contingency Plan (NCP), shall have the same meaning as in CERCLA and NCP.

Rock Falls certifies that it will conduct the Project Work (defined below) in accordance with the
Asbestos Mitigation and Building Demolition Plan (AMBDP) submitted to the Agency as an
attachment to the State of Illinois Demolition/Renovation/ Asbestos Project Notification Form,
and any amendments thereto approved or required by the Agency, the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and all applicable federal, state and local law.

Rock Falls also certifies that it and, to its knowledge, its contractor(s):

a) Are not presently or proposed to be debarred or suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from federal, state, municipal, or county (hereafter “public”)
transactions and/or otherwise prohibited from receiving federal, state and/or other
public funds;

b) Have not within a three year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for (i) fraud or commission of a
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing
a public transaction or contract under a public transaction, (ii) violation of federal
or State antitrust laws, or (iii) embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements or receiving stolen property;

c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
public entity with commission of any of the offenses enumerated above;

d) Have not within the preceding three years had a public transaction terminated for
cause of default;

4302 N, Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, Il. 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St,, Sulte D, Peorig, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 {217)278-5800 2309 W. Maln St, Suite 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W, Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601




e) Are not potentially liable, or affiliated with any other person that is potentially
liable for response costs at the Site through any direct or indirect familial
relationship; or any contractual, corporate, or financial relationships; or a
reorganized business entity that was potentially liable or otherwise liable under
CERCLA § 107(a) (42 U.S.C. § 9607(a)) as a prior owner or operator, or
generator or transporter of hazardous substances to the Site and/or otherwise
potentially liable under CERCLA § 107,

) Shall use Funds only for eligible activities and in compliance with the
requirements of CERCLA 104(k) (42 U.S.C. § 9604(k)) and applicable Federal
and State laws and regulations;

g) Is not now, and has not in the past, been subject to any penalties resulting from
environmental noncompliance at the Site;

h) “Shall ensure that the cleanup protects human health and the environment; and

i) Shall document how Funds (defined below) are used in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

3. Davis-Bacon Act. Rock Falls, its contractors and subcontractors of every tier, shall carry
out all activities performed under this Agreement in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act of
1931 (CERCLA 104(g)(1), 40 U.S.C. 276a-276a-5 and 42 U.S.C. 3222). CERCLA compliance
with Davis-Bacon requires payment of Federal prevailing wage rates for construction, repair or
alteration work funded in whole or in part with federal funds in contracts in excess of $2,000.
Rock Falls must obtain recent and applicable wage rates from the U.S. Department of Labor
(DOL) and incorporate them into all contracts stemming from this Agreement, and provide
contractors with Division of Labor form WH-347 to use for payroll records. Rock Falls must
post the DOL Employee Fair compensation Notice at the work Site, along with a list of locally
prevailing wage rates. Rock Falls must perform on-site interviews with workers; use US
Government Services Administration Standard Form 1445 for recording interviews, and compare
payroll records to employee interviews to confirm and document compliance with Davis-Bacon
requirements. ’

More detailed requirements are set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.

4. Phase I Assessment. Rock Falls has provided the Agency a copy of a Phase I
Environmental Assessment of the Site performed according to the current American Society for
Testing and Materials (ASTM) standards. Rock Falls shall be responsible for the payment of all
costs and expense related to the assessments and agrees that funds from this Agreement shall not
be used for the payment of any cost or expense related to the assessments. The assessments shall
include, but are not limited to, Site background, the threat posed by the contaminant(s) to human
health, welfare and the environment, all past enforcement activities conducted by any
governmental agency, and Site testing to define nature and extent of contamination.

5. Community Relations Plan. Rock Falls has prepared a Community Relations Plan (CRP)
with the assistance and cooperation of the Agency. The CRP shall include providing reasonable
notice, opportunity for involvement, response to comments, and administrative records that are
available to the public.

4302 N. Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrlson St.,, Des Plaines, IL 60016 {847)294-4000

595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peoriq, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First.St., Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St., Sulte 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200
2009 Mall 8t., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601




6. Asbestos Mitigation and Building Demolition Plan. Rock Falls agrees to accept advice
and suggestions from the Agency’s Bureau of Air and/or the Bureau of Land, and to incorporate
those suggestions or requests for revisions into the AMBDP. The Agency is authorized to
change cleanup activities based on comments from the public, any new information required by
the Agency, or as otherwise determined by the Agency to be appropriate to protect human health
or the environment and/or to comply with applicable law.

7. Schedule and Budget. Rock Falls has submitted to the Agency a performance schedule
and budget of estimated costs for all corrective action activities funded by this Agreement. Rock
Falls shall pay a cost share (which may be in the form of a contribution of money, labor,
material, or services from a non-federal source, approved by the Agency and USEPA in
accordance with 40 CFR 31.24 and other applicable law and USEPA guidelines) of at least 20
percent (i.e., 20 percent of the total federal funds awarded). The cost share contribution must be
for costs that are eligible and allowable hereunder and under the terms and cond1t1ons of the
USEPA Agreement and must be supported by adequate documentation.

8. Public Comment. Rock Falls has made the AMBDP available for review and public
comment for a period of not less than thirty (30) days from the date of publication of the public
notice. After the public comment period, Rock Falls shall prepare a response to the public
comments and provide a copy of the response to the Agency.

9. Action Memorandum. An Action Memorandum shall be prepared by the Agency
documenting the basis for the corrective action activity. At the request of the Agency, Rock
Falls shall submit all information relative to public comments to the Agency in a form prescribed
by the Agency, which will enable the Agency to prepare the Action Memorandum.

10.  Funds. The Agency agrees to award funds to Rock Falls in an amount not to exceed
$300,000 (“Funds”) from the USEPA Funds, subject to the terms and conditions herein, the
terms and conditions of the USEPA Agreement (defined below), and the availability and
appropriation of sufficient funds, including sufficient funding by USEPA. The Funds are
considered a loan to be repaid in accordance with the terms and conditions herein and applicable
state and federal law. Any and all Funds paid to Rock Falls hereunder have been or are being
provided by USEPA pursuant to the USEPA Agreement.

11.  Payment Procedures. Payment of the Funds will be made by reimbursement to Rock
Falls for eligible costs incurred to petform the Project Work described in Section 14 of this
Agreement and pursuant to the following:

a) The Agency shall disburse Funds to Rock Falls for eligible costs incurred by
Rock Falls, provided those costs are within the scope of work set forth in Section
14 and in the AMBDP, and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
the USEPA Agreement, and all applicable federal and state law, including but not
limited to 2 CFR Part 225, 2 CFR Part 200, 2 CFR Part 1500, 40 CFR Part 31, 40
CFR Part 35, and OMB Circular A-87;

b) To receive Funds, Rock Falls shall submit to the Agency a written request for a
disbursement, with documentation, including the activities performed and a
breakdown of the costs, sufficient to demonstrate that the costs for which a

4302 N. Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000

595 S, State, Elgln, 1L 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peorla, IL 61602 {309)671-3022
2125 S, First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Maln St,, Sulte 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200
2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chiceigo, IL 60601

Nirinre DA 1 Brmvmies Boanen




d)

4302 N, Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760

disbursement is sought are reasonable, have been incurred by Rock Falls, and
were necessary to complete the Project Work. Documentation provided shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

1) An identification of the time period for which the activities/services were
performed and the costs were incurred;

2) A brief description of the work performed,

3) A breakdown of the activities/services performed cross-referenced to tasks
set forth in the AMBDP and/or the Scope of Work set forth below;

4) The names and titles of individuals performing activities/services and the
dates and hours worked;

5)  Copies of invoices;

6) A list of expenses and/or costs incurred in connection with the
activities/services performed; and

7 Such other documentation as required by the Agency or USEPA,
including but not limited to, Contractor’s Sworn Statements, partial and
final lien waivers, Architects or Engineer’s certifications of payment, and
certified payrolls.

Rock Falls may submit an initial request for disbursement of Funds at any time
after the costs for which payment is sought have been incurred. Subsequent
requests for disbursements of Funds must be spaced at least 45-days apart, except
that Rock Falls may submit a final disbursement request no more than 45-days
after the end of the Agreement period,

The Agency shall use the criteria set forth in Section 12 (Cost Criteria) below in
determining whether to approve disbursement of Funds for costs included in each
request for disbursement of Funds in addition to other criteria for payment
provided herein;

The Agency shall send a voucher for payment of an approved request for
disbursement of Funds to the Comptroller's office no more than 45-days after
receipt of the request;

Following a review of Rock Falls’ request for a disbursement of Funds, the
Agency shall have the authority to deny a request, or any portion of a request for a
Funds disbursement that does not meet all of the requirements of this Section or
as otherwise provided under this Agreement or the USEPA Agreement. The
Agency shall notify Rock Falls in writing of its denial of a request for a
disbursement of Funds within 45-days of its receipt of a request, and the written
notification shall include a statement of specific reasons why the request is being
denied in whole or in part;

9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000

595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peoria, IL 61602 (309)671-3022

2125 S. First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 {217)278-5800
2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 {618)346-5120

2309 W, Main St.,, Suite 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200
100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Piesae Ranie ~ Bemsaies Binen




2) Funds awarded as part of this Agreement must be used within 730 days from the
execution of this Agreement and constitute the term period of this Agreement.
All approved corrective action activities shall be completed within 12-months
following commencement of the activity; and

h) Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, all payments hereunder are
subject to approval by the Agency and USEPA as herein provided, and the
availability and appropriation of sufficient funding, including sufficient funding
by USEPA.

12. Cost Criteria. The Agency shall consider for payment to Rock Falls, under the terms set
forth below, only costs that have been incurred by Rock Falls and that meet the following
criteria:

a) Costs within the scope of the Project Work for which Funds were awarded;

b) Costs that are reasonable and necessary to complete the Project Work, including,
but are not limited to:

1) Cost associated with the Agency’s oversight;
2) Costs associated with environmental consultant oversight services;

3) Costs associated with response planning activities necessary to establish
corrective action objectives and conduct corrective action,

4) Costs associated with laboratory services necessary to analyze post
assessment environmental samples and to establish corrective action
objectives;

5) Costs associated with the purchase of non-expendable materials, supplies

ot tools used for corrective action;

6) Costs associated with removing, mitigating or preventing the release,
threatened release or suspected release of hazardous substances, pollutants
or contaminants; and

7) Costs associated with monitoring activities, including confirmation
sampling and analysis that are reasonable and necessary during the Site
corrective action activity.

C) Costs equal to, but not exceeding, the total amount of Funds awarded,
d) Costs incurred on or after the date the Agreement is executed; and
e) Costs that are permitted to be reimbursed under federal and state law, the terms

and conditions herein, the terms and conditions of the USEPA Agreement, and
that are not Ineligible Costs (defined below).

4302 N. Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St, Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peorla, Il. 61602 (309)671-3022
2125S. First St,, Champaign, Il 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Maln St,, Sulte 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, I 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Diri e Doty An DesvAirn Dinen




13. Ineligible Costs. Costs that are not eligible for reimbursement hereunder include, but are

not limited to, the following:

a) Costs that are not necessary for the completion of the work required pursuant to
the AMBDP, the Scope of Work, or otherwise approved by the Agency in writing,
including, but are not limited to:

1) Costs or losses resulting from business interruption in connection with the
Project Work;

2) Costs associated with improperly collected, transported or analyzed
laboratory samples, including samples analyzed by non-accredited
laboratories;

3) Cost associated with expedited sample analysis, unless approved in
advance and in writing by the Agency;

4) Interest or finance costs charged as direct costs;

5) Insurance costs charged as direct costs;

6) Costs associated with land acquisition;

7 Payment of any penalty or fine;

8) Costs outside the scope of the AMBDP and/or this Agreement;

9) Costs associated with the ordinary operating expenses of local
government,

10)  Costs associated with ordinary Site maintenance;

11)  Costs associated with personal injury compensation or damages arising
out of the Project Work;

12)  Costs incurred prior to the execution of this Agreement;

13)  Costs associated with the replacement of buildings and other structures
located upon the Site;

14)  Pre-corrective action response activities such as Site assessment  and
general Site characterization;

15)  Activities that are not corrective actions activities;

16)  Activities and cost covered by a Municipal Brownfields Redevelopment
Grant and/or a USEPA Cleanup Grant; and

17)  Lobbying or fundraising;

4302 N. Main St.,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Hatrlson St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peorla, 1L 61602 (309}671-3022

2125 8. First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800

2309 W. Main St., Suite 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall §t., Collinsville, IL 62234 {618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Biraar Danir Avt Dreveirs Danen




b) Costs for which payment or reimbursement is not allowed under the USEPA
Agreement, any applicable federal or state law, including but not limited to 2 CFR
Part 225, 2 CFR Part 200, 40 CFR Part 31, and/or OMB Circular A-87, including,
but not limited to, the following:

L. Under the terms of the USEPA Agreement, Funds cannot be used for
any of the following activities (i.c., these are ineligible costs):

a. Environmental assessment activities, including Phase I and Phase II
Environmental Site Assessments.

b. Monitoring and data collection necessary to apply for, or comply with,
environmental permits under other federal and state laws, unless such a
permit is required as a component of the cleanup action.

¢. Construction, demolition, and development activities that are not
integral to the cleanup actions, and addressing public or private
drinking water supplies that have deteriorated through ordinary use.

d. Job training unrelated to performing specific cleanup at the Site.

e. To pay a federal cost share requirement (for example, a cost-share
required by a Federal grant) unless there is specific statutory
authority.

f. To pay for a response cost for which the City is potentially liable
under CERCLA § 107.

g. To pay a cost of compliance with any federal law, excluding the cost
of compliance with laws applicable to the Project Work hereunder,

h. Unallowable costs under 2 CFR Part 225 (e.g., lobbying and fund
raising).

2. Under CERCLA § 104(k)(4)(B), administrative costs are prohibited costs
under this Agreement:

a. Ineligible administrative costs include costs incurred in the form of
salaries, benefits, contractual costs, supplies, and data processing
charges, with the exception of costs specifically identified as eligible
programmatic costs, are ineligible even if the City is required to carry
out the activity under the Agreement. Costs incurred to report
quarterly performance to the Agency under the award are eligible.

b. Ineligible administration costs include direct costs for preparation of
applications for Brownfields loans; record retention required under 40
CFR 31.42 or otherwise required hereunder; record-keeping associated

4302 N, Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9517 Harrlson St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 {847)294-4000
595 S. State, Elgln, Il 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washingfon St., Sulte D, Peorla, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S. First St.,, Champalgn, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W, Maln St., Sulte 116, Marion, IL 62959 {618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Rundolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Pt nm Paiim ot Rmismimen N g e




with supplies and equipment purchases required under 40 CFR 31.32
and 31.33; preparing revisions and changes in the budgets, scopes of
‘work, program plans and other activities required under 40 CFR 31.30;
maintaining and operating financial management systems required
under 40 CFR 31; preparing payment requests and handling payments
under 40 CFR 31.21; non-federal audits required under 40 CFR 31.26;
and close out under 40 CFR 31.50.

¢. Prohibited administrative costs for the City (including those in the
form of salaries, benefits, contractual costs, supplies, and data
processing charges) are those incurred for loan administration and
overhead costs.

d. Direct costs for loan administration are ineligible even if the City is
required to carry out the activity under this Agreement. Ineligible Joan
administration costs include expenses for: -

i. Preparation of applications for loans and loan agreements;
ii. Preparing revisions and changes in the budget, work

plans , and other documents required under the loan
agreement,

iii. Maintaining and operating financial management and personnel
systems;

iv. Preparing payment requests and handling payments; and

v. Audits.

e. Overhead costs by the City that do not directly clean up the Site
contamination or comply with laws applicable to the cleanup are
ineligible administrative costs. Examples of overhead costs that are
ineligible hereunder include expenses for:

i. Salaries, benefits and other compensation for persons
who are not directly engaged in the cleanup of the Site
(e.g., marketing and human resource personnel).

ii. Facility costs such as depreciation, utilities, and
rent on the City’s administrative offices.

iii, Supplies and equipment not used directly for cleanup at
the Site.

iv. Costs incurred by the City for procurement are eligible
only if the procurement contract is for services or products that

4302 N, Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 {815)987-7760 9511 Hartlson St., Des Plaines, 1L 60016 {847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peoriq, IL 61602 {309)671-3022
2125 S. First St,, Champalgn, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St,, Suite 116, Marion, IL 62959 {618)993-7200

2009 Mall St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Diraer Danae Al Braveien Banen




are direct costs for performing the cleanup, for
insurance costs, or for maintenance of institutional
controls.

v. Direct costs by the City for progress reporting to the
Agency are eligible programmatic costs.

Funds may not be used for any of the following properties:

Facilities listed, or proposed for listing, on the National Priorities List

(NPL);

Facilities subject to unilateral administrative orders, court orders,
administrative orders on consent or judicial consent decree issued to or
entered by parties under CERCLA.

Facilities that are subject to the jurisdiction, custody or control of the
United States government except land held in trust by the United States
government for an Indian tribe; or

A site excluded from the definition of a brownfields site for which
USEPA has not made a property-specific funding determination.

In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of the
USEPA Agreement and any applicable federal or state law applicable
to allowable costs hereunder, the most stringent requirement shall
apply, except as otherwise provided by law.

14. Scope of Work.

a) The work and activities required under the AMBDP, the following scope of work,
and any other work or activities required under this Agreement or approved or
authorized by the Agency or funded hereunder or otherwise required to remediate
or redevelop the Site is referred to herein as the “Project Work”. The scope of
work for this project includes the following work performed under the AMBDP:

1) Mobilization and Site preparation;

2) Within structurally sound areas of the Site, removal and proper disposal of
asbestos-containing materials;

3) Within structurally sound areas of the building, removal and proper
disposal/recycling of other regulated materials requiring special handling
prior to demolition;

4) Disconnection and protection of existing utilities to the Site;

5) Demolition of building structures;

4302 N, Maln St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 {847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgln, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peorla, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S. First St,, Champalgn, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St., Suite 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsvllle, L 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Mstas Bnis ) Reacta e B




6) Removal of building slabs and foundations;
7 Protection of parking areas, sidewalks and other Site features to remain;
8) Removal and proper disposal of all demolition debris from the Site;

9) Installation of compacted crushed stone over the Site to fill voids and
provide erosion control;

10)  Site security (i.e., fencing, barricades, signage and monitoring of
Site/construction equipment);

11)  Engineering/consulting services, including asbestos mitigation daily
oversight and building demolition daily oversight, as necessary to
‘properly implement the Project Work; '

12)  Site monitoring activities, including sampling and analysis, that are
reasonable and necessary during the cleanup/mitigation process, including
determination of the effectiveness of a cleanup;

13)  Site assessment activities that are reasonable, necessary and incidental to
the cleanup/mitigation process, such as confirmation sampling;

14)  Costs associated with meeting public participation, worker health and
safety, and programmatic management requirements; and

15)  Preparation of Asbestos Mitigation Completion Report (closeout report).

b) Rock Falls will ensure all activities set forth in paragraph 14 (a) above are
performed and conducted at the Site;

) Rock Falls will ensure all work will be performed in accordance with the AMBDP;

d) Rock Falls will ensure no Funds approved under this Agreement will be used for
work funded under a USEPA Assessment and/or Cleanup ARC grant(s); and

e) Rock Falls will ensure all Project Work is performed in accordance with all
applicable local, State, and federal laws, regulations, statutes, rules, and ordinances,
including but not limited to the Clean Air Act (CAA), including the National
Emissions Standards of Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) (including 40 CFR
Part 61, Subpart M), the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA), the
Asbestos Information Act (AIA), the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement
Reauthorization Act (ASHARA), the Safe Water Drinking Act (SDWA), the Toxic
Substances Control Act, CERCLA, 40 CFR Part 763, 40 CFR Part 61 including
Sections 61.145 and 61.150, OSHA rules and regulations, including but not limited
to, 29 CFR Sections 1910.1001 and 1926.1101, the Environmental Protection Act
(415 ILCS 5/1 et seq.), the Commercial and Public Building Asbestos Abatement
Act (225 TLCS 207/5 et seq.), 77 1ll. Adm. Code Part 855, 35 Ill Adm. Code Part

4302'N. Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, 1L 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, 1L 60123 .(847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peorig, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 8. First St.,, Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278.5800 2309 W. Main St.,, Suite 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601




228, the Illinois Municipal Code, and the Rock Falls Building Code. In the event
of any conflict or inconsistency between any of such laws, the most stringent
requirements shall apply.

15. Report.

a) Rock Falls shall submit quarterly progress reports to the Agency detailing the
work performed at the Site during the term of this Agreement. Each progress
report shall provide a short narrative of the activities performed and the dates they
were performed during that quarter and include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1) A discussion of all actions taken to prevent further releases of hazardous
substances into the environment, and any corrective action activities;

2) A discussion of the conformation sampling activities carried out to
measure for the presence of a release of a hazardous substance;

3) A summary of activities performed during the reporting quarter, including
but not limited to, outputs/outcomes achieved during the reporting quarter,
a description of the program, project, or use and the expenditure of the
Funds related thereto, a description of any problems encountered during
said quarter that could affect the project schedule and/or completion of
any of the Project Work (note that Rock Falls must inform the Agency as
soon as possible regarding any problems, delays, or adverse conditions
that will materially impair the City’s ability to meet outputs/outcomes
specified in the approved Work Plan in order for the Agency to provide
required notice to USEPA (40 CFR 31.40(d));

4) An update on project schedules and milestones;
5) A budget recap summary including but not limited to current approved

project budget, costs incurred during the reporting quarter, costs incurred
to date (cumulative expenditures), cost share updates, and total remaining

Funds;

6) Copies of invoices for services performed; and

7 Photographs of drilling, sampling, trenching, demolition or excavation
activities.

b) Rock Falls shall prepare an Asbestos Mitigation and Building Demolition
Completion Report (“Completion Report”) when the Project Work is completed.
The Completion Report shall contain certification or documentation necessary to
establish the following:

1) The asbestos mitigation/corrective action activities and objectives
established in the AMBDP were completed in accordance with procedures
and tasks identified in the AMBDP;

4302 N. Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St,, Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington-St,, Suite D, Peoria, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First St., Champaign, Il 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St., Sulte 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 {618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Pimtan B i s Rmctim s B nen




2) The Project Work funded hereunder was conducted in accordance with the
requirements of this Agreement and are eligible for payment with the -
Funds; and

3) All Funds were expended for eligible project costs.

16. Contracting and Subcontracting. Rock Falls will ensure all contracts and subcontracts are

entered into subject to the following conditions and limitations:

a)

b)

d)

Rock Falls will use an open bidding process in contracting and will comply with
all applicable state and local procurement laws and regulations, including but not
limited to 65 ILCS 5/8-9-1 and the Local Government Professional Services
Selection Act (50 ILCS 510/0.01 et seq.), and applicable City Ordinances
provided that the procurements conform to applicable federal law, and all federal
laws including but not limited to40 CFR Part 31 (including Section 31.36), 40
CFR Part 33, 40 CFR Part 35, Subpart O, 2 CFR Part 200, and 2 CFR 1500, and
will require the same of any contractor in subcontracting;

Rock Falls will allow only fair and reasonable compensation to be earned by
contractors and subcontractors. Factors to be considered in determining a fair and
reasonable compensation shall include project-related material acquisition costs,
labor costs, management costs, contract risks, capital investments, degree of
independent development, and cost control and record keeping efforts. The
determination of a fair and reasonable compensation shall not be based upon the
application of a predetermined percentage factor;

Rock Falls assumes responsibility for the administration and successful
accomplishment of all the Project Work. Rock Falls also assumes responsibility
for the settlement and satisfaction of all contractual and administrative issues
arising out of contracts and subcontracts for such Work. This responsibility
includes, but is not limited to, issuance of invitations for bids or requests for
proposals, selection of contractors, award of contracts, protest of award, claims,
disputes and other procurement matters;

Rock Falls will ensure any contract or subcontract includes a provision allowing
access to the Site required under this Agreement;

Rock Falls will ensure any contract or subcontract provides the Agency, USEPA,
the Illinois Auditor General, the Executive Inspector General, the Illinois
Attorney General, and their respective officers, officials, employees, authorized
representatives and agents, and authorized representatives of the Federal
government with access to any books, documents, papers, and records, including
computer-generated documents, of the contractor or subcontractor that are related
to the Project Work, the program or use for which Funds have been provided
hereunder and the expenditure of such Funds or other public funds for the purpose
of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions thereof and as
further provided herein (USEPA Agreement) ;

4302 N, Main St, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrlson St, Des Plalnes, I 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peoriq, IL 61602 (309)671-3022

2125 8. First §t,, Champaign, IL 61820 {217)278-5800

2309 W, Main St., Sulte 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall §t., Collinsville, I 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicage, IL 60601

Puranm Pnaie it Breudiees Banen




g)

h)

1Y)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

J2)

Time and material contracts and percentage of construction costs contracts are
prohibited,

The Parties agree that neither the Agency, USEPA, nor the State of Illinois will be
a party to any contract or subcontract, solicitation, or request for proposals;

Rock Falls agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state laws prohibiting
civil rights violations, including but not limited to the Illinois Human Rights Act
(775 ILCS 5) and will require the same from all contractors and subcontractors of
every tier preforming Project Work hereunder. Rock Falls and its contractors and
subcontractors shall not discriminate against any person because of his or her race,
color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, marital status, order of protection
status, disability, military status, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or unfavorable
discharge from military service or other protected status. In addition, Rock Falls
shall undertake good faith efforts in compliance with 40 C.F.R. Parts 33 and 35 to
give opportunities to qualified Small Business Enterprises (SBE), Minority
Business Enterprises (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprises (WBE), and
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) to submit proposals and bids and
provide services on contracts and subcontracts for services and supplies. Rock Falls
shall submit all reports of such efforts to the Agency in accordance with 40 CFR
Parts 33 and 35 and provide such additional documentation as required by the
Agency and/or USEPA;

Rock Falls will ensure no contract or subcontract is awarded to any person or
organization that does not:

Have adequate financial resources, experience, organization, technical
qualification, and facilities for performance of the contract or subcontract, or a
firm commitment or arrangement to obtain such;

Have staffing sufficient to comply with the completion schedule for the
project;

Have a demonstrated record of integrity, good judgment, and performance,
including any prior performance under grants or contracts with the federal or
any state government;

Have an established financial management system and audit procedure;

Maintain a property management system that provides procedures for the
acquisition, maintenance, safeguarding and disposition of all project-related
property; and

Conform to the civil rights law, equal employment opportunity law, and labor
law requirements, as well as all other federal and state laws and regulations.

Rock Falls agrees to comply with the applicable federal procurement
requirements in 40 C.F.R. Section 31.36 and other applicable laws in engaging the
Remediation Contractor and any other contractors, subcontractors, engineers,

4302 N, Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 {815)987-7760 9511 Harrlson St., Des Plaines, [L 60016 {847)294-4000

595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peoria, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First St., Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W, Maln St, Suite 116, Marion, IL 62959 {618)993-7200
2009 Mall St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, Il 60601




architects, and consultants engaged to perform services in connection with the
Project Work;

k) Rock Falls shall ensure that all procurement transactions will be conducted in a
manner that provides full and open competition with the standards imposed under
federal law, including but not limited to prohibiting the use of statutorily or
administratively imposed State or local geographical preferences in the evaluation
of bids or proposals (except where federal statutes expressly mandate or
encourage geographic preference) (40 CFR 31.36(c)(2)); and

b. Rock Falls shall ensure that all procurement transactions will be conducted in a
manner providing full and open competition consistent with applicable law,
including but not limited to 40 CFR 31.36.

17. Ownership. Rock Falls shall retain ownership of the Site throughout the period of this
Agreement and the performance of all Project Work. For the purpose of this Agreement, the
term “owns” means fee simple title unless USEPA approves a different arrangement.

18. Access to the Site and Records.

a) Site Access.  Rock Falls shall provide the Agency, USEPA, and their respective
officers, officials, employees, authorized representatives and agents with
unrestricted access to the Site throughout this Agreement and the performance of
the Project Work. The Agency and USEPA shall have full authority to enter the
Site and inspect the work at all times during the execution of the Project Work.
Rock Falls recognizes the Agency and USEPA have the right to stop the Project
Work immediately and take reasonable and necessary action in the event that the
Project Work is unsatisfactory or is not substantially in accordance with the
approved AMBDP, or that a condition exists which creates an imminent and
substantial threat to human health, welfare or the environment.

b) Records Access.

1) The Agency, USEPA, the Illinois Auditor General, the Executive
Inspector General, the Illinois Attorney General, and their respective
officers, officials, employees, authorized representatives and agents, and
authorized representatives of the Federal government shall have access to
and the right to inspect all books, documents, papers, and records,
including computer-generated documents that are related to the Project
Work, the program or use for which Funds have been provided hereunder,
payment requests, and the expenditure of such Funds or other public funds
for the purpose of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and
transcriptions thereof and as further provided herein (USEPA Agreement).

2) The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement and all pay
request documents, payments, expenditures, audit of funds, and all other
records, reports, data and/or other written material (including but not
limited to electronic data, records and communications) relative thereto
that have been prepared by or for, or having been or being used by,

4302 N, Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 {847)294-4000

595 8. State, Elgln, IL 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Woashington St., Suite D, Peoria, IL 61602 {309)671-3022
2125 S. First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W, Main St,, Suite 116, Marlon, IL 62959 {618)993-7200
2009 Mall St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601




received by, in the possession of, or under the control of the Agency or the
City may be subject to inspection and copying pursuant to the Freedom of
Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.). Such records, data, and files of
the Agency may also be subject to inspection and copying pursuant to
Section 7 of the Act (415 ILCS 5/7).

19. Audit and Records. Rock Falls will ensure all books, records, documents, reports and
other evidentiary material are maintained using accounting procedures and practices that
conform to generally accepted accounting principles to account properly for the receipt and
disposition of all Funds. Rock Falls will allow its records to be subject to inspection and audit
by the Agency, USEPA, the Illinois Auditor General, the Executive Inspector General, the
Illinois Attorney General, and their respective officers, officials, employees, authorized
representatives and agents, and authorized representatives of the Federal government. Rock
Falls will ensure records are preserved and made available to the Agency or any authorized
representative:

a) For a minimum of three years following completion of the Project Work and
submission of the final request for reimbursement to the Agency;

b) If the Funds are revoked by the Agency, for a period of three years from the date
of the revocation notice;

c) For records relating to disputes and/or appeals, litigation or the settlement of
claims arising out of the work, or costs and expenses of work to which exception
has been taken by the Agency or any of its duly authorized representatives, until
three years after disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims or exceptions or for
the three years specified in paragraphs a or b above, whichever is longer;

d) For such longer period required by applicable federal or state law including but
not limited to the Local Records Act (50 ILCS 205/1 et seq.); and

e) Notwithstanding the forgoing, Rock Falls shall obtain written approval from the
Agency prior to disposal of any records required hereunder or otherwise related to
the Project Work and/or the use or expenditure of the Funds, and obtain such
other approvals as required by law.

20.  Revocation. In the event this Agreement is violated the Agency may, in addition to any
other remedies provided by law, revoke this Agreement and recover any Funds disbursed or take
such other action as the Agency is authorized to take. In such event, the Agency will provide
Rock Falls with a written notice of revocation. Rock Falls shall have at least 10 days from the
date of the notice to correct any violation upon which the revocation is based.

21.  Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Rock Falls warrants that no person has been
employed or retained to solicit or secure Funds upon an Agreement or understanding fora
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. If this warranty is breached or violated,
the Agency may, in addition to any other remedies provided in this Agreement or by law, revoke
this Agreement without liability or, in its sole discretion, deduct from the Funds awarded, or
otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

4302 N, Main Sf., Rockford, IL 61103 {815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St,, Des Plalnes, iL 60016.{847)294-4000
595 S. State, Elgin, Il 60123 {847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peoria, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W, Maln St., Sulte 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL. 62234 {618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601




22. Recovery of Funds

a) If the Agency determines that Funds are being misspent or improperly held by
Rock Falls, then the Agency or the Attorney General may recover those Funds
and take any other action authorized by law.

b) After the Agency conducts the final review of the fund disbursements to establish
the final loan principal amount, the Agency shall consider principal of the loan to
consist of all disbursements made by the Agency hereunder (“Loan Principal
Amount”), which will not exceed $300,000. Repayment will be in the amount of
70% of the Loan Principal Amount (the “Reduced Loan Principal Amount”) if: (i)
the Project Work is performed on time (i.e., in accordance with the performance
schedule submitted by Rock Falls pursuant to Section 7 above that has been
approved by the Agency in writing, or an amended performance schedule
submitted by Rock Falls that has been approved by the Agency in writing), ii)
under budget (i.e., does not exceed the budget amounts submitted by Rock Falls
pursuant to Section 7 above that have been approved by the Agency in writing, or
any amended budget amounts submitted by Rock Falls that have been approved
by the Agency in writing), and iii) has been performed in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement and the US EPA Agreement. In the event
that the Project Work is not performed on time, is performed over-budget, or has
not been performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the US EPA Agreement, then Rock Falls shall repay the full Loan
Principal Amount (i.e., 100% of all fund disbursements made by the Agency
hereunder as determined by the Agency) (the “Full Loan Principal Amount).
Nothing herein is intended to limit any rights of the Agency or the Attorney
General in the event of any breach or default hereunder by Rock Falls.

c) Rock Falls agrees to repay the Illinois EPA the Full Loan Principal Amount or
Reduced Loan Principal Amount, as determined in accordance with this Section
22. Said loan repayment shall consist of seven (7) equal annual payments that
shall commence 730 days from the Effective Date of this Agreement (as defined
in paragraph 35 below).

d) Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, if the Site (or any portion
thereof) is sold within nine years of the Effective Date of this Agreement (as
defined in paragraph 35 below), then Rock Falls shall repay the unpaid balance of
the Full Loan Principal Amount in full within 90 days of the date of said sale.

e) Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, if the Site (or any portion
thereof) does not remain used exclusively for: i) public use, ii) non-profit
purposes, and iii) as a park, greenway, open space, recreational property, or other
non-profit and public purposes approved in writing by Illinois EPA and US EPA,
for a period of nine (9) years from the Effective Date of this Agreement (as
defined in paragraph 35 below), then Rock Falls shall repay the unpaid balance
of the Full Loan Principal Amount in full within 90 days following the date on
which the Site (or any portion thereof) ceased being used exclusively for said

purposes.
4302 N. Main St, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St,, Sulte D, Peoria, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S. First St,, Champaign, IL 61820 {217)278-5800 2309 W, Maln St., Sulte 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Nirinr Bonir A Rrsuses Danen




23.  Covenants Against Liability. Rock Falls warrants it has not caused or contributed to the
release or threatened release of a hazardous substance at the Site.

24.  Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, (i) Rock Falls assumes the entire
risk, responsibility and liability for any and all loss or damage to property owned by the City, the
Agency, or third persons, and any injury to or death of any persons (including employees of
Rock Falls) caused by or arising out of, or occurring in connection with, the execution of any
work, contract or subcontract arising out of this Agreement or otherwise attributable to the
Project Work, the use or expenditure of any Funds, or the remediation or redevelopment of the
Site, and (ii) Rock Falls will indemnify, save harmless and defend the State of Illinois, the
Agency, USEPA, and their respective officials, officers, employees and authorized
representatives from all claims for any such loss, damage, injury or death. However, Rock Falls'
execution of this Agreement, or implementation of work under this Agreement does not, in itself,
render Rock Falls an owner or operator for purposes of 415 ILCS 5/22.2(h)(2), or under
regulations promulgated pursuant to 415 ILCS 55/8. Rock Falls will require any contractor or
subcontractor engaged by Rock Falls to agree in writing to look solely to Rock Falls for
performance of its contract or subcontract with Rock Falls and for satisfaction of any and all
claims arising thereunder.

25. Statutory Requirements. Rock Falls is solely responsible for assuring compliance with
all federal and state statutory and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Act (415 ILCS 5), the Local Government Professional Services
Selection Act (50 ILCS 510) the Construction Contract Indemnification for Negligence Act (740
ILCS 35), the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5), the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5),
and the Public Construction Bond Act (30 ILCS 550).

26.  Auvailability of Funds. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the Funds
provided for hereunder are expressly contingent upon and subject to the availability of sufficient
funds appropriated for this Agreement and the Project Work performed hereunder. The Agency
may terminate or suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, without penalty or further
payment being required, if i) sufficient funds have not been appropriated to the Agency, ii) the
Governor or the Agency reserves appropriated funds, iii) the Governor or the Agency determines
that appropriated funds may not be available for payment, or iv) the Agency determines that
there are otherwise insufficient funds available.

The Agency shall use its best efforts to secure sufficient appropriations to fund this Agreement.
However, the Agency’s obligations hereunder shall cease immediately, without penalty or
further payment being required, if the federal funding source fails to make an appropriation
sufficient to pay such obligation and/or otherwise does not provide sufficient funding for the
Project Work. The Agency shall determine whether amounts provided and appropriated are
sufficient.

The Agency shall provide notice, in writing, to the City of any election to terminate or suspend
this Agreement as soon as practicable. Any suspension or termination pursuant to this Section
will be effective upon the City’s receipt of said notice. .

4302 N. Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 {815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St.,, Des Plaines, IL 60016 {847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123.{847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St,, Sulte D, Peotla, Il 61602 {309)671-3022
2125 S. First St.,, Champalgn, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W, Mailn St., Sulte 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618]993.7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, Il 60601

Noesnr P ) Remcmion N men




27.  Rock Falls also represents that no law pertaining to fraud, bribery, graft, kickbacks,
collusion, or conflict of interest has been violated or other unlawful or corrupt practice has taken
placerelating to or in connection with this award, or work to be funded hereunder.

28.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement, and all documents, Agreements, exhibits, and terms
and conditions attached hereto or referenced herein, represent the entire Agreement between the
Agency and Rock Falls with respect to this Agreement and supersedes all previous
communications or understandings, whether oral or written.

29. Signage. Rock Falls agrees to erect a sign on the Site, approved by Illinois EPA and
USEPA, stating that the work funded by this Agreement is being financed in part by the U.S.
EPA CERCLA Funds and providing the appropriate contacts for obtaining information on
activities being conducted at the Site and for reporting suspected criminal activities. The sign
erected on the Site shall comply with 40 CFR Part 35, Subpart O (Section 35.6105 (a) (2) (ii)).
The sign must be placed in a visible location that can be directly linked to the work takmg place
and must be maintained in good condition throughout the construction period.

The City is required to comply with the sign specifications provided by the USEPA Office of
Public Affairs (OPA) available at: https://www.epa.gov/grants/epa-logo-seal-specifications-
signage-produced-epa-assistance-agreement-recipients. If the USEPA logo is displayed along
with the logos of other participating entities, the USEPA logo must not be displayed in a manner
that implies that USEPA itself is conducting the Project Work. Instead, the USEPA logo must be
accompanied with a statement indicating that the recipient received financial assistance from
USEPA for the Project Work. As provided in the sign specifications from OPA, the USEPA logo
is the preferred identifier for assistance agreement projects and use of the USEPA seal requires
prior approval from the USEPA. To obtain the appropriate USEPA logo or seal graphic file, the
recipient should send a request directly to OPA and include the USEPA Project Officer in the
communication. Instructions for contacting OPA are available on the Using the EPA Seal and
Logo page.

Consistent with section 6002 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. 6962, and 2 CFR 200.322, the City is
encouraged to use recycled or recovered materials when procuring signs. Additionally, to
increase public awareness of projects serving communities where English is not the predominant
language, recipients are encouraged to translate the language on signs (excluding the USEPA
logo or seal) into the appropriate non-English language(s).

30. USEPA Agreement. The Agency entered a Cooperative Agreement with USEPA titled
the Illinois EPA Brownfields RLF dated September 14, 2015, as amended September 17, 2016,
which also includes the terms and conditions incorporated therein including but not limited to the
EPA General Terms and Conditions effective March 29, 2016 and the Terms and Conditions for
Brownfields Revolving Loan Fund Grants to governmental/quasi-governmental organizations
(July 10, 2009), and which is also subject to EPA’s Proposal Guidelines for Brownfields
Assessment, Revolving Loan Fund and Cleanup Grants, copies of which are attached hereto and
made a part hereof as though fully set forth herein (collectively, the “USEPA Agreement”).
Rock Falls understands and agrees that the USEPA Agreement imposes terms, conditions, and
obligations on Rock Falls and its contractors, sub-contractors of all tiers, engineers, architects,
consultants, and other entities receiving Funds and/or performing work funded hereunder as well
as to the Project Work. Rock Falls understands and agrees that a breach or violation of the
USEPA Agreement by Rock Falls, or any of its officials, officers, employees, representatives,

4302 N, Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St, Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, 1L 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peoric, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First St., Champaign, IL 61820 {217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St., Suite 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 {618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Sulte 10-300, Chlcago, IL 60601




contractors, subcontractors of any tier, architects, engineers, consultants, or agents shall be
considered a breach of this Agreement by Rock Falls, in which case the Agency shall be entitled
to all remedies at law and equity.

The USEPA Agreement terms and conditions include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. The City shall use Funds only for eligible activities and in compliance with the
requirements of CERCLA § 104(k) and applicable Federal and State laws and
regulations.

b. The City shall ensure that the cleanup protects human health and the
environment.

c. The City shall document how Funds are used. If Funds are used for cleanup of a
petroleum-contaminated brownfields site, the City shall maintain separate records
for those costs. '

d. The City shall maintain records for a minimum of three years following
completion of the cleanup financed all or in part with the Funds. The City shall
obtain written approval from the Agency prior to disposing of records. The City
shall also provide access to records relating to loans provided hereunder to
authorized representatives of the Federal government.

e. The City certifies that it is not currently, nor has it been, subject to any penalties
resulting from environmental non-compliance at the Site.

f. The City certifies that it is not potentially liable under § 107 of CERCLA for the
Site.

g. The City shall conduct cleanup activities as required by the Agency.

h. The City shall comply with applicable EPA assistance regulations (40 CFR Part 31
for governmental entities). All procurements conducted with Funds must comply
with 40 CFR Part 31.36.

i, The City shall comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and
requirements. In addition to CERCLA § 104(k), Federal applicable laws
and requirements include: 40 CFR 31 and OMB Circular A-87 for
governmental recipients.

j. The City must comply with Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wages for all construction,
alteration, and repair contracts and subcontracts as provided herein.

k. Federal cross-cutting requirements include, but are not limited to, MBE/WBE
requirements found at 40 CFR 33; OSHA Worker Health & Safety Standard (29
CFR1910.120); the Uniform Relocation Act; National Historic Preservation Act;
Endangered Species Act; Permits required by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act;
Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity, and implementing

4302 N, Maln §t,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Hatrlson St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 §. State, Elgin, Il 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peorla, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S, First St, Champalgn, IL 61820 {217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St,, Sulte 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W, Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601

Airsear Aninim A Bemveien Nanen




regulations at 41 CFR 60-4; Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as
amended (40 USC 327-333); the Anti-Kickback Act (40 USC 276¢); and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as implemented by Executive Orders 11914
and 11250.

31.  Notices. Any notice required under this Agreement shall be deemed properly given when
personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses below.
Either party may change its address for receiving notices by giving notice of such change in
compliance with the terms of this Section.

For the Agency: For Rock Falls:

Stephen Colantino Ms. Robin Blackert

Office of Brownfields Assistance City Administrator

Bureau of Land #24 City of Rock Falls

Illinois EPA 603 West 10" Street

1021 N. Grand Ave. East . "Rock Falls, Illinois 61071

Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276

32.  Amendments or Modification. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a
written agreement signed by the Parties to this Agreement. Rock Falls may request an
amendment to this Agreement for scope of work and budget changes including, but not limited
to:

- a) Reallocation of Funds to eligible activity or activities under this Agreement and
set forth in the AMBDP and/or this Agreement;

b) Altering the Scope of Work of the Agreement; and
c) Extending any Agreement completion date.

33.  Parties Interest/No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not run to the benefit
of, or be enforceable by, any person or entity other than a party to this Agreement (other than
enforcement by the Illinois Attorney General on behalf of the Agency and any enforcement
rights by USEPA). This Agreement should not be deemed to confer upon third parties any
remedy, claim, right of reimbursement or other right. Nothing contained in this Agreement, nor
any act of the Agency or the State of Illinois, shall be deemed to confer or construed by any of
the parties hereto, or by third persons, to create any relationship of third party beneficiary,
principal, agent, limited or general partnership, joint venture, or any other association or
relationship involving the Agency or the State of Illinois.

34, Titles and Headings. Titles and headings to sections herein are inserted for reference
only and are not intended to be a part of, or affect the meaning or interpretation of, this
Agreement.

35.  Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of the following: (i)
the date the last of the Parties to execute this Agreement executes this Agreement, or (ii) the date
the Agency receives documentation demonstrating that Rock Falls has acquired ownership of the
Site in fee simple.

4302'N. Maln St Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 9511 Harrison St., Des Plalnes, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 S, State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Sulte D, Peorla, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S. First St,, Champalgn, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W. Main St., Suite 116, Marion, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Maill St,, Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, IL 60601




36. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. Any claims or disputes arising out of this
Agreement against the State, the Agency, or any of their respective officials, officers, employees,
or authorized representatives shall be adjudicated in the Illinois Court of Claims and shall be
governed by the Court of Claims Act (705 ILCS 505/1 et seq.).

37. Borrower/Qath. Rock Falls certifies under oath that all information in this Agreement is
true and correct to the best of its knowledge, information, and belief; that Funds shall be used
only for the purposes described in this Agreement; and that the award of Funds is conditioned
upon such certification.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and delivered
as of the date set forth below.

ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL CITY OF ROCK FALLS

PROTECTION AGENCY

By: By:

Alec Messina, Director William B. Wescott, Mayor

Date: B , 2017 Date: , 2017
4302 N. Main St,, Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-.7760 9511 Harrison St.,, Des Plalnes, IL 60016 (847)294-4000
595 8. State, Elgin, Il 60123{847)608-3131 412 SW Washington St., Suite D, Peoria, IL 61602 (309)671-3022
2125 S. First St.,, Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 2309 W, Main St, Sulte 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200

2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-300, Chicago, I 60601

Dirier Dot A Decveien Danen




INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ILLINOIS
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS

BROWNFIELDS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
FORMER LIMESTONE BUILDING

EXHIBIT A

(1) Minimum wages. (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of
the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in
the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often
than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such
payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the
Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash
equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the
wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof,
regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor
and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section
1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to
such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(1)(iv) of this section; also,
regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often
than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are
deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and
mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination
for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in
§5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be
compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein:
Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each
classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional
classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-
Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the
workers.

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics,
including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed
under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The
contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits
therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a
classification in the wage determination; and




(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable
relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if
known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage
rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the
action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour
Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC
20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove
every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting
officer or will notify the contracting officet within the 30-day period that additional time is
necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the
classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed
classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where
appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested
parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for
determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination
within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting
officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to
paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in
the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the
classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or
mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall
either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe
benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the
contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided,
That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the
applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require
the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the
plan or program.

(2) Withholding. The (write in name of Federal Agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall
upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of
Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other
Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject




to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so
much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and
mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any
subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any
laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the
site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of
1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the
contract, the (Agency) may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner,
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or
guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

(3) Payrolls and basic records. (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three
years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the
United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or
development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security
number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid
(including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash
equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily
and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the
Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or
mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a
plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall
maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that
the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been
communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs
anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing
apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of
the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(i))(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is
performed a copy of all payrolls to the (write in name of appropriate federal agency) if the
agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit
the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the (write
in name of agency). The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the
information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security
numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls
shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last
four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information
may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from
the Wage and Hour Division Web site at Attp.//www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr. htm or
its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by
all subcontractors, Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number
and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the (write in
name of appropriate federal agency) if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is



not such a party, the contractor will submit them to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case
may be, for transmission to the (write in name of agency), the contractor, or the Wage and Hour
Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with
prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require
a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its
own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant,
sponsor, or owner).

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance,” signed
by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the
persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided
under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being
maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is
correct and complete;

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed
on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without
rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in
Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and
fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the
applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the revetse side
of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of
Compliance” required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or
subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of
title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph
(a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized
representatives of the (write the name of the agency) or the Department of Labor, and shall
permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the
contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the
Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take
such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or
guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make
such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.




(4) Apprentices and trainees—(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less
than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to
and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S.
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship
+ Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by
the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as
an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the
program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and
Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for
probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on
the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the
contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a
payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above,
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the
job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a
contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its
program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's
hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.
Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the
apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified
in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance
with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not
specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the
wage determination for the applicable classification, If the Administrator determines that a
different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in
accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training,
Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office,
withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to
utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an
acceptable program is approved.,

(i) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at
less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to
and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal
certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The
ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan
approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not
less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed
as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.
Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program., If
the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of
fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour
Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding
journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits




for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and
participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of
work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of
the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage
rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment
and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no
longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work
performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iil) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen
under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of
Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30. ,

(5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the
requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

(6) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses
contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the (write in the name of
the Federal agency) may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall
be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the
contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

(7) Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may
be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor
as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

(8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and
interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are
herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

(9) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards
provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract.
Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor
set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S.
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

(10) Certification of eligibility. (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person ot firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a
person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the
Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award
of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).




(iii) The pehélty for making' false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18
U.S.C. 1001.

(b) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The Agency Head shall cause or
require the contracting officer to insert the following clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1), (2),
(3), and (4) of this section in full in any contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject
to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses
shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by §5.5(a) or §4.6 of patt 4 of this title, As
used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed
on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic
receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all
hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation, liability for unpaid wages, liquidated damages. In the event of any violation
of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the
District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic,
including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1)
of this section, in the sum of $25 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The (write in the name of the
Federal agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of
an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any
such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other
federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which
is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy
any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses
set forth in paragraph (b)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall
be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses
set forth in paragraphs (b)(1) through (4) of this section.

(c) In addition to the clauses contained in paragraph (b), in any contract subject only to the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other statutes cited in §5.1,




the Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert a clause requiring that the
contractor or subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of
the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract
for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such
records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number,
cotrect classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked,
deductions made, and actual wages paid. Further, the Agency Head shall cause or require the
contracting officer to insert in any such contract a clause providing that the records to be
maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the (write the name of
agency) and the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such
representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.




Resolution 2017-763

RESOLUTION APPROVING DESIGN GUIDELINES AND
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO
LAND OF THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS

WHEREAS, the City of Rock Falls currently owns the real estate described as:

A. Lot 1 of Rock Falls Reliant Subdivision Number 1, according to the plat thereof
recorded December 6, 2007 as Document Number 11234-2007;

B. Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Rock Falls Reliant Subdivision Number 2 according to plat
thereof recorded December 7, 2011 as Document Number 2011-08117;

C. Lot Number 1 of Rock Falls Reliant Subdivision Number 3 acoordmg to plat
thereof recorded September 30, 2014 as Document Number 2014-05478;

Said real estate being referred to herein as the “RBW District”; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rock Falls has determined that the RB&W
District is the primary and most important land within the City necessary for the improvement,
enhancement and redevelopment of the uptown area of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has further determined that in order to more effectively
enhance and promote increasing property values of land within the uptown area of the City, and
enhance the desirability and aesthetic appearance of land and buildings within the uptown area of
the City, design guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions should be applied to the
RB&W District, said guidelines and covenants to serve as an impetus and encouragement to
other properties and property owners within the uptown area; and

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore engaged Schreiber-Anderson Consultants to assist in
the development of design guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions to be applicable to
the RB&W District, and that firm has produced the documents appended and attached hereto,
which are hereby labeled as Exhibit 1, a form of Design Guidelines and Restrictive Covenants
and Conditions for consideration by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said design guidelines and restrictive
covenants and conditions, and has considered the recommendation of the Industrial Development
Commission of the City of Rock Falls that said design guidelines and restrictive covenants and
conditions be adopted for application to the RB&W District;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Rock Falls that:

Section 1. The statements contained in the preamble paragraphs to the resolution are
true and accurate and incorporated herein.

Section 2. The form of Design Guidelines and Restrictive Covenants and Conditions,
as set forth in the document attached hereto labeled as “Exhibit 1” are hereby approved, and the




real estate owned by the City as described herein and referred to as the “RB&W District” is
hereby made subject to said design guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions, and the
design guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions shall apply to and control any and all
future development, use or occupancy of the land within the RB&W District.

Section 3. The design guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions shall be in
force and effect as to any future property owner of land within the RB&W District to which the
same is made subject, and no sale or conveyance of any land within the RB&W District shall
occur unless the same is made subject to the terms and conditions contained within the design
guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions, so that the transferee thereof acknowledges
the applicability of said design guidelines and restrictive covenants and conditions as to any
development or use of the land so conveyed and agrees to comply with said guidelines and
restrictions. ' o

Section 4. This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption and passage according to
law.

Passed this day of ,2017.

ATTEST: Mayor William B. Wescott

City Clerk

Alderman Voting Aye Alderman Voting Nay




Exhibit 1

ROCK FALLS, ILLINOIS | RB&W REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DESIGN GUIDELINES

DECEMBER 2012




PREAMBLE

The former RB&W District provides an outstanding
opportunity for Rock Falls, lllinois to create a vibrant
waterfront district where nature’s majesty, human
innovation and hard work, and community identity
and pride converge to serve as an active and dynamic
community focal point. With its most recent legacy
tied to indusirial land uses, the RB&W District is now
primed for mixed-use redevelopment of a quality
and standard that is true o the history and vision
of Uptown Rock Falls and its many stakeholders
and pariners. Revitalization of this site promises
Rock Falls
residents, the viability of business opportunities in

to improve the quality of life for

and around uptown Rock Falls, and the quality and
frequency of visits by both natives and those from
outside of Rock Falls.

In conjunction with the RB&W Distirict Redevelopment
Master Plan, the design guidelines presented herein
are infended to honor and complement Rock Falls’
rich history, identity, and scenic beauty by facilitating
the cohesive redevelopment of a substantial stretch
of the city’s riverfront. The guidelines represent
the community’s dedication to the promotion of
characteristic and pleasing design, the use of
high quality , sustainable, and efficient materials
in the construction of buildings and sites, and the
development of elements of site and building design
that define the RB&W Disirict as a unique and lasting
waterfront destination.

Echoing and respecting community context and
previous planning initiatives, these guidelines are
based upon the following principles:

Context Principles

¢ Uptown Rock Falls and the Rock River riverfront
are and must remain a destination.
* Redevelopment must emphasize and respect the

design character of the whole of uptown Rock
Falls.

* Redevelopment must maintain - or better yet
improve - the continuity of the riverfront.

Site Redevelopment Principles

* Land uses in and around the RB&W District must
perform as a cohesive “whole”.

° Redevelopment should serve to “extend” the
upfown to the RB&W District.

* Redevelopment must maximize accessibility to
the Rock River by all applicable modes of travel,
especially pedestrians.

* Redevelopment must establish an effective and
efficient transportation network for all modes of
travel, with an emphasis on the pedestrian. The
establishment of a logical and integrated network
of streets, parking areas, and paths is critical in
providing for the best possible experience into,
around, and within the RB&W District.

* Redevelopment must create “people-oriented”
public spaces.

* Redevelopment should serve to create a
harmonious architectural character, with a design
approach and materials that are representative
of the uniqueness and importance of this site to

Rock Falls.

* Redevelopment should serve to integrate or

transform existing edge uses.




PURPOSE AND INTENT

The primary purpose of these design guidelines is to
enrich the quality of development in and around the
RB&W District in the City of Rock Falls by:

* Assisting property owners undertaking
development in the district to understand and
focus on the fundamental planning and design
principles identified by the city and its stakeholders
as essential fo communicating the uniqueness and
vitality of the city’s riverfront and uptown areas.

* Providing guidelines that are purposefully
flexible in order to encourage imagination,
ingenuity, innovation, and variety in the design
aond development of new and redevelopment of
existing private and public buildings and sites.

¢ Complementing and enhancing, but never
superseding, the ordinances, policies, practices,
and standards of the City of Rock Falls, including
the City of Rock Falls’ Zoning Ordinance.

* Clarifying design expectations by communicating
requirements and recommendations to  all
stakeholders.

* Contributing to a more efficient design review and
entitlement process by focusing on adherence to
the community’s vision, standards and expeciations
for the site.

One objective of the RB&W District Redevelopment
Master Plan (Page 5 of this document) is to foster
the expansion of a character of development that is
unique fo uptown Rock Falls into areas within the
redevelopment planning area where activity and
animation are currently less intense, and in doing so,
exemplifying the best characteristics of small town
“urban” development and enhancing the quality,
character, and compatibility of new development. In
general terms, the intent of this guide is to enhance
and unify the city’s visual character while avoiding

monotony and repetition. To this end, the RB&W
District Design Guidelines aim to:

* Facilitate the creation of a high quality, pedestrian
and bike friendly, mixed use small town experience,
including establishing the framework for the look
and function of the public realm.

* Establish a development pattern that is sensitive to,
and protective of, the natural environment.

* Encourage compactness and efficiency in urban
form that maximizes development potential and
maintains consistency with the character and
infensity of activity in uptown Rock Falls.

¢ Accentuate the character of the RB&W District as o
unique near-uptown sector.

* Guide developers that seek to invest in the district
and protect investment made in high quality
development as the area evolves.

* Assist the Development Review Committee, the City
of Rock Falls, and the public in reviewing proposals
for development within the RB&W redevelopment
district consistently and expediently.



ADMINISTRATION

Authority and Applicability

All proposed development or redevelopment within
the RB&W Redevelopment District is subject fo design
review by the Development Review Committee (DRC].
DRB shall have the authority to approve, conditionally
approve, or deny all applications for redevelopment
proposed for the RB&W Redevelopment Disirict upon
review of said applications for general consistency
with the guidelines contained in this document.

Fundamentally, these design guidelines present the
Development Review Committee and private and
public developers with a consistent “playbook”™
for development that maximizes the valve of the
RB&W Redevelopment Disirict as a whole. While
the expeciation is that each of the guidelines
presented herein will be faithfully adhered to, there
is an understanding that in certain circumsiances
strict adherence to a particular standard may not
be practical. In these cases, the burden rests upon
the applicant to provide sufficient justification for
deviating from the guidelines. With this in mind, many
of the guidelines provide for flexibility by using words
such as:

*  For those guidelines related to conditions or
features which are desirable but not strictly
required - “may”, “encouraged”, “should™,
and “preferred”; and

s For those guidelines related fo conditions
or features which are undesirable but not
strictly forbidden - “may not”, *discouraged”,
“t0 be avoided”, and “shouid not”

Additionally, there are certain guidelines within this
document that the DRB is not expected to deviate
from. Those guidelines are identifiable in their use of
words such as:

e For those guidelines related to conditions
or features that are desirable and strictly
required under all circumstances: “shall”,

(LIS

“must”, “will"; and

*  For those guidelines related to conditions or
features which are undesirable and strictly
forbidden under all circumstances- “shall not”,
“must not”, “prohibited”, and “will not”

Compliance

Unless otherwise amended and approved by the
Development Review Committee, all developments
and their conditions as approved under the authority
ouilined in this document shall be considered to run
with the land. Compliance with all agreed upon
conditions and applicable guidelines is required in
perpetuity, regardless of changes in the ownership
of subject properties or structures. Any development
permitted through the authority of these guidelines is
perpetually binding upon the development.




RB&W REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT -
MASTER PLAN

jenit

Exiiing Budding
Proposed Building
Futuoy Biutiding

EBika Fath Conmsction
Trommmizslon Han
Befioms St
Bspuiony

B AABese Lisn

w ot |

Tt Peailibngn 526

G e Mse 2
o Z
E 23
F Madon Dendry Deviletid 3
G Musdlinn Dawsity Bexitdanticd 2.5
H Moedion Doy Pedidential 25 12U
Tt Bicad Uo SR 140724 SF
Tt Redilentiol Udts: . 72
1W6297 &F

Pk ol BB Pestle drescis

E i!ﬁ@
[ W

D KRS EE I g 5358 65 e b St G . SHER D

E Sl

. sk 3 SETTN

WA e BHIFETI & wreningma i »

Rl




1.1: BUILDING PLACEMENT AND
ORIENTATION

= ITE DESIGN

The continuity of development across site boundaries is
critical in creating a successful mixed-use, pedesirian-
oriented paitern of development. From a site design
standpoint, ensuring that consistent building placement
and compatible sizes of development locate on
adjacent sites is paramount in fortifying the sense of
a district and, moreover, in fostering a pedesirian-
oriented environment. Continuity and compatibility -
not uniformity - in site design is the goal within the
RB&W Redevelopment District. With this in mind,
reasonable variation from building lot to building lot
in ferms of size, distance fo the front property line, and
other characteristics is encouraged. The guidelines
presented below intend to foster an appropriate
balance and relationship between buildings and
pedestrian spaces in the RB&W Redevelopment
District, as illustrated in the Master Plan for the Site
{(attached on the previous page).

1.1.1 Place buildings at the right-of-way line or
front (street side) property line to the greatest
extent possible, especially at the street level
and second level. Buildings located on corner
lots should be built at or near both fronting
property lines.

1.1.2 Buildings should face the sireet, with sirong
pedestrian orientation.

1.1.3 Buildings must have clearly defined, highly
visible customer entrances with features such as
canopies or porticos, arches, wing walls, and
integral planters.

1.1.4 Deep building setbacks behind large
expanses of parking or vacant land interrupt
the distinctive “streetwall” envisioned for
development af the RB&W District and are 1o
be avoided. Where maintaining a continuous
sireetwall is not possible or desirable, the
streetwall should be maintained through the

1.1.6

117

use of landscaping, pedestrian amenities,
and/or decorative walls or fencing.

The placement of buildings at odd or irregular
angles to the street must be avoided. However,
corner buildings may accentuate their
prominent locations with angled, rounded,
or recessed corner entrances or other small
setbacks.

On sites abutting the Rock River, publicly
accessible sides of buildings should be oriented
toward the river, which may foster more than
one “front door” for buildings.

Preservation of Rock River views from public
and private properties is a high priority.
Bullding placement and orientation -
particularly on the north side of East Second
Street, should emphasize the preservation of
Rock River views.

SECTION 1




1.2: ACCESS, PARKING, AND
CIRCULATION

A goal of the RB&W District Redevelopment Master
Plan is to create a place with strong characteristics
of orientation and access for pedestrians and
bicyclists. While automobile access and parking will
remain an important element of the site’s pattern and
framework, minimizing the impact of the automobile
on the pedestrian experience should remain o
primary goal in redevelopment of the site. Therefore,
buildings - and not parking areas - are the focus
of development, and the following guidelines are
presented 1o assure this.

1.2.1  All development must provide for the safe,
efficient, and convenient access and circulation
of pedestrians, bicycles, automobiles, and
emergency vehicles, both within the site and to
adjacent sites. Bicycle parking is encouraged
for all development.

1.2.2  Parking lots in front of buildings {facing the
street side) are to be avoided. To the extent
possible, parking lots should be located
behind buildings.

1.2.3 Wherever possible, vehicular access to
parking lots, parking structures, and garages
should be provided from alleys or side streets.

1.2.4 Garage doors shall be designed to be
compatible with the existing building and
surrounding neighborhood character, and
should be no wider than necessary to
accommodate safe vehicular dccess to the
parking space.

1.2.5 Garage doors should be oriented away from
primary pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicle ways
and view corridors, most notably Second
S'freef, the Rock River, and First Avenue.

1.2.6  Where possible, pedestrian access to parking
lots should be provided through planned

1.2.7

1.2.8

1.2.9

1.2.10

1.2.11

1.2.12

walkways located in gaps between buildings.

Landscaped islands and clearly marked
pedestrian pathways are encouraged within
the interior of parking areas accommodating
more than 30 vehicles.

Any proposed redevelopment or new
development abutting the Riverfront Bike
and Walk Trail shall provide a paved,
unobstructed, and accessible path connection.
All parking areas shall be paved, well
marked, sufficiently lit, and shall have curbed
perimeters and be provided with adequate
drainage. Porous pavement is encouraged
throughout the RB&W Redevelopment District.
Shared parking and cross access easements
for adjacent parking areas are encouraged.
Loading and delivery facilities are to be
separated from bicycle and vehicle parking
and pedestrian areas.

Parking is strongly discouraged in areas that
immediately abut the Rock River.




1.3: LANDSCAPING DESIGN

The patterns and materials used in the development
of the RB&W Redevelopment District play an
important role in establishing the feeling of continuity
and coherence envisioned for the site. The function
of plants and landscape materials are critical in this
respect, reducing stormwater runoff, relieving heat
gain in parking areas, and reinforcing circulation
patterns in addition to beautifying and providing
continuity throughout the site.

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.34

1.3.5

Planters and landscaped areas, consisting
of low evergreen and/or deciduous shrubs
as well as low-growing annual or perennial
plants and groundcover, should be installed
to buffer parking and service areas from
adjacent uses.

In conjunction with landscaping, low-profile,
decorative fencing or masonry walls are
encouraged fo delineate and screen parking
and service fadilities, etc.

Al landscaping is to be maintained in a
healthy and attractive condition. Maintenance
programs including turf mowing, periodic
fertilization, pruning, and litter /debris clean-
up ensure that value is retained over time
and should be established as part of new
development approvals.

The use of automatic irrigation systems using
low-visibility pop-up sprinklers and similar
fixtures is encouraged as a method of
landscape maintenance. Where automatic
irrigation is not feasible, hand watering
is acceptable and should be considered
an essential component of landscape
maintenance for the RB&W Redevelopment
District.

The use of trees bearing fruit, nuts, and pods

1.3.6

1.3.7

1.3.8

1.3.9

1.3.10

is discouraged for the RB&W Redevelopment
District.

Street trees and other landscaping along
public rights-of-way and parking areas
should be protected from motorized and
pedestrian traffic by curbs, tree grates, and
other devices.

Building foundation landscaping consisting of
ornamental trees and shrubs, perennials, and
groundcover shall be designed and planted to
a mass and scale appropriate for its building
and context.

Regularly spaced, salt-tolerant sireet trees,
planted in rows along both sides of all streets,
are encouraged.

The use of artificial plant materials is
discouraged for the RB&W Redevelopment
District.

The selection of trees and other plant material
fo accommodate passive solar heating and
cooling is encouraged.




1.4: LIGHTING

Lighting plays an important role in the communication
of the identity of a place, promoting a sense of safety
and security, and highlighting prominent features of
sites and buildings.

1.4.1

1.4.2

1.4.3

1.44

1.4.5

1.4.6

Street lighting should be at a pedestrian scale,
with light standards between 12’ to 18’ in
height.

To reduce light pollution, excessive lighting
should be avoided. The use of diffused, soft
white light is encouraged.

Exterior lighting is to be concealed with baffles
or shields to prevent direct illumination, reduce
glare, and minimize the spillover of lighting
onto neighboring properties.

Building lighting should be subtle and
understated, enhancing the building design
and adjoining landscape.

Building lighting fixtures are to be consistent
with the architectural style and features of the
building.

Parking lot lighting should consist of vehicular
scale and pedesirian scale lighting as
appropriafe in context, with attention paid to
minimizing light pollution and spillover.




10

1.5: OTHER SITE IMPROVEMENTS

In addition to the core site elements introduced in

the sections above, additional features that may be
developed for the RB&W Redevelopment District will
also coniribute to the successful form and function of the

site as a whole. While they may not be proposed for
every unique development within the site, the consistency
in design qudlity of the features introduced below with
the site’s core elements is equally important in meeting
the goals infroduced in the RB&W District Redevelopment
Master Plan.

1.5.1

1.5.2

1.5.3

1.54

1.5.5

1.5.6

New accessory structures should “read” as
secondary to principal structure(s) and be
appropriately sized, scaled, proportioned, and
located as to avoid overwhelming or competing
with the principal structurels) in size or form.
New accessory structures shall utilize materials,
and architectural  defails  which
complement adjacent and nearby buildings and
streetscapes.

colors,

Public plazas shall be designed as integral
public spaces along the Second Sireet corridor
axis, with linkage leading to and from the
plaza(s} o sidewalks, other pedestrian paths,
and naiural features.

Where feasible, each public plaza should
utilize elements such as buildings, benches, and
landscaping to arficulate its edges and provide
visual interest and spaces for people to linger
outside of pedestrian traffic flow.

The location and “footprint” of all outdoor dining
areas shall preserve the pedestrian realm by
mainfaining ot minimum a five-foot pedestrian
clear zone, utilizing high-quality barriers no less
than 36 inches in height, and meeting American
with Disabilities Act requirements.

All outdoor dining areas shall utilize furniture

1.57

1.5.8

1.5.9

1.5.10

1.5.11

1.5.12

1.5.13

ond fixtures that uphold the quality and
durability of core site elements as defined in this
chapter. Plastic tables and chairs are prohibifed
within outdoor dining areas. -

Where possible, service and loading areas
should be located and oriented to be as minimally
visible from pubilic rights-of-way as possible.
Wherever possible, loading areas should be
screened from public view by use of a continuous,
sufficiently sized visual screen, construcied of
similar materials of the wall of the building it is
projecting from or nearest to.

Loading activities should not be performed in
designated parking areas, and site plans that
indicate a distinct separation between loading
and parking are strongly encouraged.
Sereening of utility meters, transformers and
similar hardware, mechanical equipment such as
air conditioning condensers and PVC vents, refuse
areas and confainers and/or other potentially
unatiractive places and appurtenances from
view from any street, sidewalk, or adjacent
property shall be accomplished by the use of
walls, fencing, berms, and/or planting. Plant
screening shall be equally effective in the winter
and summer seasons.

All fences and walls shall be consiructed of
materials matching the primary building.
Fencing should complement the architectural
and landscape design of the site.

All utility cables at the RB&W Redevelopment
District shall be underground.

All refuse containment areas shall be located
1o the rear of buildings and provided with
self-closing solid access doors or gates.




1.6 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

Protecting the water resources of the Rock River is a
high priority as the RB&W Redevelopment District is
developed. As impermeable surfaces such as roads,
parking lots, and roofs are constructed on the site,
the quality of storm water requiring management
will be greatly affected. Consequently, storm water
management practices will need to be designed and
implemented to minimize the transport of pollutants
and sediments through the storm water system to the
surrounding waters. The Best Management Practices
{BMP’s) introduced in this section can help improve
the quality of storm water runoff by reducing the
transport of pollutants.

1.6.1  Theuse of shared parking and the minimization
of curb cuts within the site are encouraged in
order to decrease impervious surfaces, reduce
the amount of paved areas, and provide
more space for landscaped areas.

1.6.2  The use of permeable pavers is encouraged
to allow stormwater to infilirate to the soil
below.

1.6.3 Where feasible and appropriate, bioswales
and/or rain gardens should be integrated
info site design along perimeters and
parkways to create locations for landscaping
designed to help facilitate natural stormwater
management functions.

1.6.4 Site design that sensibly integrates existing
topography to minimize stormwater runoff
and properly filters it towards bioswales, rain
gardens, or other stormwater management
systems is greatly encouraged.

1.6.5 Where feasible, oil and grease separators
should be used to remove oil, grease,
sediments, trash, and other debris from
stormwater and thus minimize the introduction
of such elements into waterways.

1.6.6 Green roofs are encouraged for the RB&W
Redevelopment District.

11



2.1: BUILDING HEIGHT, BULK, AND SECTION 2 - BUILDING
PROPORTION DESICGN

Successful mixed-use areas create an intimate pedestrian craft and handiwork rather than machine
atmosphere, providing an outdoor “room” for visitors and crafted details. Providing distinction befween
shoppers. Much of this atmosphere can be attributed to the sireet level and upper levels, such as using
the bulk and proportion of buildings as they relate to an intermediate cornice or change in building
the sireet and fo one another. Envisioned as adn materials, is encouraged.

extension fo the uptown Rock Falls and an echo to ifs 2.1.8 The street level of buildings should be
history, the RB&W Redevelopment District should be predominately (at least 50%) transparent giass
comprised primarily of two- to four-story buildings. In along their street edge (or edges, for corner
addition o being contextually appropriate, buildings buildings), with large ground floor display
of this height coniribute to a sense of enclosure windows and bays strongly encouraged for retail
and an intimate pedestrian scale. and entertainment uses. No exterior building wall

2.1.1  Unless it is determined through the design review should provide less than 25% transparent glass.

process that building height will inhibit views of 2.1.9  Front doors of new buildings should reflect
the Rock River, buildings shall be a minimum of the scale, placement, and proporfions of
two stories in height. the ftraditional uptown; the wuse of
recessed entryways is encouraged to
prevent doors opening directly into the

2.1.2 New development should avoid exireme
differences in building height. Careful
consideration should be given fo the height of 2.1.10 BREPVEENAYEYo be at the front of ali buildings
adjacent buildings. and face the sidewalk.

2.1.3  Design elements above four stories, such as clock ~ 2.1.11 Addifions fo original buildings shall “match”
towers, spires, cupolas, and bell fowers, may be the bulk and proportion characteristics of the
acceptable in key locations, provided they are in original building(s).

scale and character with the surrounding area.

2.1.4 Stepped back construction is encouraged above
the second story of buildings, in order fo soften
the bulk and visual scale of the building from the
sidewalk and streef.

Not this

i== L0 E%L‘ﬁanas = o QQQ EEDoooc
UlBBlnoooo BH|000|EGnon

HEIOD i3
N 1 T

2.1.5 Features such as balconies, bay windows, furrets,
and finials provide human scale and visual interest
and are encouraged. Any projecting feature shall
not extend more than three (3) feet beyond the

This e - i g ::
property line at the sidewalk. —=4 1010 0 E* ma— . a 0 g'
2.1.6 Large, unarticulated, and uninterrupted facades E E ago EH unoon it IREy =R E[ g é ICIL é
and building walls are to be avoided. e
2.1.7 The lower levels of buildings should be designed L ! - ! -

to a pedestrian scale, with a sense of human




2.2: BUILDING MATERIALS AND STYLES

Many, if not most, of the buildings in uptown
Rock Falls are masonry  buildings occupying
a portion of a block. New development ot the
RB&W Redevelopment District should respect the
character of existing uptown buildings through the
selection of compatible materials and building styles.

2.2

2.2.2

2.2.3

224

225

2.2.6

227

2.2.8

New buildings should be constructed of
traditional masonry building materials such as
brick or stone, with these materials to be used
on all sides of the building.

Stucco, siding of all types, Exterior insulation
finish systems (EIFS) and Dryvit, and other
exterior wall coverings are discouraged for
commercial and mixed-use buildings.

Recommended accent materials include
natural or simulated stone, terra cotta, wood
and metal trim.

Parking is promoted fo the rear of buildings
within the site, and therefore new construction
should have a “360 degree” appearance
with design and detail consideration for all
visible sides.

New buildings should offer high-quality and
compatible interpretations of the
traditional styles present within Rock Falls’

&grgoc;’g&ess of style, new buildings should
use traditional and common size masonry
materials  and reflect the predominant
scale, height, massing, and proportions of
uptown Rock Falls.

New buildings should incorpordte decorative
cornices, columns, reliefs, terra cotta tiles, and
other significant facade detailing.

Colors should be compatible with the

predominant hues of nearby buildings
and in the uptown (predominantly earth
fones, especially red and cream brick).

2.2.9 Avoid painting elements such as ceramic tile,

terra-cotta, brick, stone and glass surfaces,
unless essential and appropriate to the
architeciural style.

2.2.10 Fire escapes and exterior staircases should

be enclosed, with exterior surfaces to be
consistent with those of the principal structure
in material and style. Fire escapes and
exterior staircases shall not be visible from
public streets, trails or the Rock River.

2.2.17 Air conditioning units placed in individual
windows and window transom areas are
strongly discouraged.

13



2.3: ROOFS AND ROOFLINES

The rooflines of new buildings should be
compatible with the rooflines of uptown Rock Falls in
terms of shape, alignment, and architectural
detailing. The guidelines presented below seek to
encourage fresh interpretations on these traditional
styles, and simple replication of historic rooflines
and roof treatments are not desirable.

2.3.1 The roofs of commercial buildings shail be flat,
shallow-sloped, or gabled.

2.3.2 Roof parapets are encouraged to create an
inferesting building profile and tc hide rooftop
mechanicals and equipment.

2.3.3 Cornices and other decorative details are
encouraged along the rooflines of buildings.

2.3.4 Sloped mansard style {shake or shingle) roofs
are discouraged.

2.3.5 Rooflines and architectural details should
complement the building’s architectural style,
coniributing to the character, image, and
appedl of the site.

2.3.6 Rooftop terraces or gardens provide building
tenants and /or the public with easily accessible
open space that offers special views of the
Rock River as well as the city, and should be
encouraged.

2.3.7 "Green Roofs” provide substantial stormwater
management and energy efficiency
benefits and are encouraged for the RB&W
Redevelopment District.




2.4: AWNINGS, CANOPIES AND SIGNS

Exterior building attachments are important
contributors to the overall feel and experience of a
place. Awnings (temporary/seasonal) and canopies
(permanent) protect pedestrians from the elements,
add color, visual interest, and rhythm to the street, and
contribute significantly to an area’s pedestrian scale
and interest. Signs do more than simply ¢communicate
the character of particular businesses - they influence
the overall image and experience of the buildings and
districts they occupy. These guidelines reflect a focus
on pedestrian scale and the creation of a positive

experience throughout the RB&W Redevelopment
District.

2.4.1 Awnings and canopies are encourcgecrf

as fagade components for ali commercial
buildings, but only when designed in character
with the architectural style, detailing, and
color of the building.

2.4.2  Awnings should be positioned at a minimum
of 9 feet above the sidewalk, and made of a
canvas or other durable fabric material that
can be easily cleaned.

2.4.3 Canopies and awnings constructed of metal,
plasiic or other materials that could be
cracked or broken are prohibited.

2.4.4  Awnings, canopies, and signs should not
extend beyond windows and entryways, and
should never obscure a building’s architectural
details or elements.

2.4.5 Each building tenant should be limited to
one sign. In cases where a fenant occupies a
corner space with a pedestrian eniry on two
primary roadways, the Development Review
Committee may have the discretion to allow
more than one sign.

2.4.6

247

2.4.8

When a building contains exposure and entry
from a shared parking areq, the Development
Review Committee may exercise its discretion
fo permit more than one sign per building
tenant {one on the streetfront, one on the
fagade facing the parking area).

When a building contains multiple storefronts,
signs for each business should be consistent in
placement and complementary in style.

The size, material, color, and shape of signs

should complement the architectural scale and
style of the building.

15



16

2.4: AWNINGS, CANOPIES AND SIGNS
{CONTINUED)

2.4.9

2.4.10

2.4.11

2.4.12

2.4.13

2.4.14

2.4.15

Wall-mounted  signs immediately above
the storefront are preferred and should be
designed as an integrated component of the
building fagade. Wall signs should be limited
to essential information such as business
identification and descripiion.

When a building contains multiple storefronts,
signs for each business should be consistent in
placement and complementary in style.

Projecting signs are allowed, but shall not be
placed above the second floor line. Projecting
signs shall not extend past three (3) feet from
the building wall which they adorn.

Window signs should be allowed in selected
storefronts, and on upper floors where
essential to the identification and operation of
the business. The size of window signs should
not account for more than 20% of the windew
size. Signage hung in window openings shall
not obscure more than 15% of the display
space.

Awnings with signs painted on them are
allowed. Other painted-on signage
{on exterior walls, windows) is strongly
discouraged.

Free-standing signs, if used, shall ufilize
monument-style design exclusively and shall
not extend higher than five (5) feet above the
mean sireet grade. Building signs are strongly
encouraged in lieu of monument signs.

Roof-mounted signs, pole signs, pylon signs,
neon signs, internally-lit plastic signs, and
billboards are prohibited throughout the
RB&W Redevelopment District.




2.5: SUSTAINABILITY FEATURES

The ferm “sustainable development” is often used
in defining development that seeks to use energy,
water, and materials efficiently throughout the life
cycle {from design, to construction, and throughout its
useful life) of a structure, site, or neighborhood. The
RB&W Redevelopment District offers a tremendous
opportunity for putting sustainable principles into
practice on a highly visible, “landmark” site, and
the City of Rock Falls is committed to integrating
sustainability into all aspects of development for the
site.

2.5.1 Property owners, tenants, and developers
are encouraged to seek LEED (Leadership
in Energy and Environmental Design)
certification when designing and developing
sites, structures, and interior spaces within
the RB&W Redevelopment District. LEED
certification is an internationally recognized
standard for sustainable development.

2.5.2 Developments that employ, to the maximum
extent feasible, passive heating and cooling
design strategies, such as building and
window orientation, natural ventilation, high
insulation values, energy efficient windows,
light-colored, high albedo, or vegetated
roofs, window shading, and shade-providing
landscaping are encouraged.

2.5.3 Developments should seek to utilize plumbing
fixtures which carry the U.S. EPA Certified
Water Sense label in order to conserve water
fo the greatest extent possible.

2.5.4 Developments should seek to utilize appliances
that carry the “Energy-Star” rating in order to
conserve eleciricity use to the greatest extent
possible.

2.5.5 Developments that utilize materials composed
of renewable, rather than nonrenewable,
resources are encouraged. To the extent
practical, building materials produced from
locally available raw and manufactured
materials are encouraged.

2.5.6 Rain gardens and other low Impact
Development (LID) storm water best

management practices (permeable
pavers, rain barrels, bioretention, etc.) are
encouraged.

2.57 The site designs of all developments
~ and redevelopments within the RB&W
Redevelopment District are encouraged to
accommodate solar panels, small wind energy
generators, and other renewable energy
strategies where practical. Such strategies
shall only be employed at the discretion of the
Development Review Committee, and shall be
located at the least visible high-performance
location of a given site or building.

17



18

3.1: GENERAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION 3 - PUBLIC

While private site and building improvements of
mixed-use sites within the RB&W Redevelopment
District will do a great deal to define the site, a
range of projects will be undertaken over time within
public rights-of-way and on publicly owned property.
These guidelines seek to enhance the image and
appearance of the site to create a safe, attractive,
and hospitable urban environment that promotes new
privafe invesiment and development and atiracis
additional visitors and business patrons to the area.

3.1.1 Streets should be designed to accommodate
vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists on a relatively
equal basis.

3.1.2 Streets should be designed and controlled to
reduce the speed of iraffic.

3.1.3 Pedestrian crosswalks should be made prominent,
for example by incorporating a change in paving
material, texture, or color.

3.1.4 Sidewalkks are to be provided on both sides of
all streets, shall be ADA accessible, and should
be a minimum of 10’ wide, extending from the
storefront to the back of the curb, to promote
pedestrion comfort and to fosier sidewalk
animation and aciivity.

3.1.5 Improvement and development of the RB&W
Redevelopment District should include a unified
system of sireet furnishings, such as seafing areas,
trash receptacles, drinking fountains, bike racks,
and other pedesirian amenities. The materials,
colors, and architectural styles of these elements
should be varied but generally consistent with
one another and with the character espoused by
private development.

3.1.6 Features typically located on public property
and public ways such as light standards,

3.1.7

3.1.8

newspaper stands, bus shelters, park buildings
and park elements, traffic signs, mailboxes, and
gateway and other signage should be designed
to be part of the architectural concept of design
and landscape, uiilizing materials, scale, and
proportions that are compatible with buildings
and surroundings.

The Riverfront Bike and Walk Trail segment within
the RB&W Redevelopment District shall be at
least 8’ wide and paved to maximize pedestrian
and bicycle usage.

Where pradical, elemenis such as benches,
waste receptacles, and lighting should enhance
the Riverfront Bike and Walk irail to increase
user comfort and amenity.

IMPROVEMENTS




DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING
AND APPLYING TO THE LOTS AND LANDS OF THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS,
ILLINOIS, LOCATED WITHIN THE RB&W REDEVELOPMENT SITE:

LOT 1 OF ROCK FALLS RELIANT SUBDIVISION #1
PIN# 11-28-279-016

Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Block “A”; thence North 53 Degrees 49 Minutes 17
Seconds East, along the South line thereof, being the North line of Third Street (formerly Elm
Street) in said City of Rock Falls, a distance of 137.61 feet to the Southwest corner of the
property described on the deed recorded as M.F. No. 14070-98 in the Office of the Whiteside
County Recorder; thence North 23 Degrees 43 Minutes 21 Seconds West, along the West line
thereof, a distance of 180.56 feet to the Northwest corner of said propetty; thence South 59
Degrees 14 Minutes 17 Seconds West, a distance of 176.95 feet to the West line of said Block
“A” being the Easterly line of Avenue “A” (formerly Park Street); thence South 36 Degtees 03
Minutes 30 Seconds East, along said West line, a distance of 193.02 feet to the Point of
Beginning;

Containing 0.669 acres, more or less.

Return to:




ROCK FALLS RB&W REDEVELOPMENT SITE
Restrictive Covenants

The City of Rock Falls, Illinois, a Municipal Corporation, acting by and through its City
Council (referred to herein as “City Council””) being duly vested with authority to acquire, own,
develop and sell real estate for commercial and residential purposes, does hereby adopt the
following as covenants, conditions and restrictions to be applicable to, binding upon and to be a
covenant to run with the land and be binding upon all successors in interest to any of the lots,
lands, tenements and hereditaments of the real property of the City of Rock Falls to which these
covenants, conditions and restrictions (“Covenants”) are made applicable. Said Covenants are
adopted for the purpose of establishment and maintenance of character and quality of usage of
the lots and lands described herein.

| Land described.

The following is the description of the lots and lands to which these Covenants are
appended and to which these Covenants are made applicable:

LOT 1 OF ROCK FALLS RELIANT SUBDIVISION #1
PIN# 11-28-279-016
Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Block “A”; thence North 53 Degrees 49

Minutes 17 Seconds East, along the South line thereof, being the North line of Third Street
(formerly Elm Street) in said City of Rock Falls, a distance of 137.61 feet to the Southwest
“corner of the property described on the deed recorded as ML.F. No. 14070-98 in the Office of the
Whiteside County Recorder; thence North 23 Degrees 43 Minutes 21 Seconds West, along the
West line thereof, a distance of 180.56 feet to the Northwest corner of said property; thence
South 59 Degrees 14 Minutes 17 Seconds West, a distance of 176,95 feet to the West line of said
Block “A’, being the Easterly line of Avenue “A” (formerly Park Street); thence South 36
Degrees 03 Minutes 30 Seconds East, along said West line, a distance of 193.02 feet to the Point
of Beginning;

Containing 0.669 acres, more or less.

Said lots and lands are generally referred to herein as the “RB&W Site” and said
reference, being singular, shall apply to each lot or parcel of real estate which may be
subsequently separated or partitioned from all of that real estate described within this paragraph,
and use of the words RB&W Site shall refer to each separate lot or parcel which may be
subsequently set apart from or conveyed to a separate grantee.

II. Use

A. Approved Uses. Subject to applicable zoning regulations, specific prohibited
uses as set forth in section B below, and restricted uses as set forth in section C
below, uses which are approved for the RB&W Site include all of those listed in
section 16-201 of the Rock Falls code of ordinances (permitted uses in the MU-1
district) and similar uses that, in the opinion of the Zoning Committee, would be
compatible with the listed permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance
and function of the RB&W Site as a whole.

B. Prohibited Uses. No use of the RB&W Site shall be permitted which is offensive
by reason of odor, fumes, dust, smoke, noise, vibration or other pollution, nor

2



shall any use be permitted which is hazardous by reason of excessive danger of
fire or explosion, which may be injurious to any property or persons on or about
the RB&W Site, and any dust, smoke ot other airborne pollutants visible outside
of the walls of the premises from which it emanates shall be considered offensive.
Any noise generated from an indoor use shall be considered offensive if audible
outside of the walls of the premises from which it emanates (see special
provisions for outdoor activities in sub-section C, below).

Uses that are prohibited include the following:

1. adult uses as enumerated in Sec. 34-480 of the Rock Falls Code of
Ordinances

2. agriculture and livestock

3. assembly, fabrication and manufacturing

4. automobile and machinery sales and service garages

5. billboards

6. churches and other religious institutions

7. elementary, middle and high schools

8. day labor offices

0. detached single family homes

10.  flea markets and pawn shops

11.  for-profit blood or plasma donation centers

12.  funeral homes and mortuaries

13.  gold buyers

14.  junkyards and auto wrecking yards

15.  kennels

16.  mini-storage, warehouses and freight terminals

17.  motor fuel stations and car washes

18.  outdoor storage of equipment or merchandise

19.  outdoor vending machines

20.  mobile homes

21.  pay day loan stores

22, shooting ranges

23, waste treatment and transfer facilities and composting and recycling

facilities

24,  similar uses that, in the opinion of the Zoning Committee, would be

incompatible with the permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance and
function of the RB&W Site as a whole

3




C. Restricted Uses. The following uses may be approved by the Zoning Committee
provided they meet the applicable standards described in this section and the
Zoning Committee finds that the uses would not be incompatible with the
permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance and function of the RB&W
Site as a whole:

L. Accessory drive-throughs and drive-ups — includes banks, coffee shops,
restaurants, drug stores, etc.:

() Must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal use
located on the RB&W Site;

(b)  Maximum of 2 lanes/windows;

(c) Minimum stacking area of 3 cars per lane that are clearly separated
from parking and other circulation areas;

(d) May not be located on the front of a building, a side of a building
facing the river, or a side of a building facing public open
space/park;

(e) Fully screened from view from the riverfront trail;

® Canopy setback a minimum of 20 feet from all streets and 40 feet
from the riverfront trail;

(g)  Maximum canopy height of 20 feet;

(h)  Canopy may not be internally lit;

) Maximum intensity of lighting under the canopy of 2.0 foot
candles;

G) Outdoor speakers shall not be audible beyond the property line;

(k)  Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;
and

O Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

2. Accessory outdoor dining — includes all outdoor seating areas intended for

regular use by patrons of food and beverage establishments:

(2) Must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal use
located on the RB&W Site;

(b)  Dining area shall be specifically designed and approved for such
use;

(©) Area shall be clearly delineated and separated from sidewalks,

parking/circulation areas and public spaces through the use of
fences, walls, and/or landscaping;



(d)
()
®

Serving of alcoholic beverages shall comply fully with all City of
Rock Falls and State of Illinois regulations;

Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;
and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties;

Accessory outdoor entertainment and recteation - includes the regular
offering of live and recorded music, theatrical performances, film
screenings and similar forms of entertainment; also includes public and
private sports courts and fields, playground equipment, climbing walls,
swimmming pools, boat launches, docks, fishing piers, and similar active
recreation facilities:

(2)

(b)
(©
(d)

(©
®

(2)

(h)

Applications for approval must specify the types of entertainment
or recreation to be offered, the anticipated dates and times the use
will be conducted, the methods to be used to provide adequate
supervision/ secutity and to monitor compliance with the
restrictions placed on the use by the Zoning Committee and by the
City of Rock Falls as may be applicable;

Area must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal
use located on the RB&W Site;

Area shall be specifically designed and approved for such use;

Area shall be clearly delineated and separated from sidewalks,
parking/circulation areas and public spaces through the use of
fences, walls, and/or landscaping;

Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

Performances shall fully comply with all applicable laws and
regulations of the City of Rock Falls, including those pertaining to
noise and nuisances;

Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Accessory service, repair, light assembly, and fabrication — includes
household appliances, furniture, electronics, and typical office equipment,
etc. Does not include motor vehicles, heavy machinery ot related
equipment: .




(b)

(©)

d)

()

(8
)

(a)  Areamust be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal
use located on the RB&W Site;

(b)  Areamust be in a fully enclosed space;

() Maximum area of 500 square feet; and

(d  Must not result in off-premises impacts (such as noise, odors,
glare, etc.) greater than those emitted by the principal use.

5. Automated Teller Machines (ATMs)

(2) Must be located inside a principal structure or within an approved
drive through facility.

6. Antennas, satellite dishes and telecommunications equipment
(a8 Shall be located only on rooftops and fully screened.

7. Farmer’s market — includes the regularly scheduled sale of produce, meats,
food products, flowers, and/or plants by one or more vendors on public or
private property:

(a) Applications for approval must specify the general types of

products to be sold, the anticipated dates and times the use will be
conducted, the methods to be used to provide adequate
supervision/ security and to monitor compliance with restrictions
placed on the use by the Zoning Committee and by the City of
Rock Falls as may be applicable;

The Zoning Committee may require a bond to be posted to cover
any damage to public or private facilities located on the RB&W
Site which is directly attributable to the conduct of the farmers
market;

Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians of vehicles or
result in damage to landscaping or other improvements;

May not include the sale of general merchandise not directly
related to the cultivation or preparation of food products;

Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

All vendors shall fully comply with applicable laws and
regulations of the City of Rock Falls and Whiteside County Health
Department; '

Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

6




10.

Home occupations

(a)

Shall fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the
City of Rock Falls.

Household pets — includes dogs, cats and other typical household pets kept
in residential units. Does not include livestock, poultry, wild animals, or
the raising or breeding of any animal for any commercial purpose:

(a)

(b)
(©

Applications shall indicate type, number and weight of animals to
be permitted in each unit, areas where pet walking is to be
permitted, if any, and methods to be used for the disposal of pet
waste;

Outdoor kennels, houses, pens and similar devices are prohibited;
and

All restrictions and limitations approved by the Zoning Committee
shall be included in the leases or covenants of the applicable
residential units, and the landlord or owner’s association, as
applicable, shall have primary responsibility for enforcing the
restrictions.

Special events —includes festivals, auto shows and similar events of a
temporary nature open to the public with or without an admission charge:

(a)
(b)

©

(@
(e)
®
(8

Bach special event shall require a separate approval;

Applications shall specify: the type of event and the activities to be
offered as part of it; the specific location(s) on the RB&W Site for
each activity; the dates and times of operations, setup and
takedown; admission charges; methods to be used to secure the site
at all times; areas to be used parking; methods of waste disposal;
and similar information as needed for the Zoning Committee to
gain a full understanding of the nature of the event and its potential
impacts on owners, occupants and facilities on the on RB&W Site
and surrounding properties; ’

The Zoning Committee may require a bond to be posted to cover
any damage to public or private facilities located on the RB&W
Site that are directly attributable to the conduct of the special
event;

Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements;

Shall require approval of a special event permit from the City of
Rock Falls;

Shall fully comply with all other applicable laws and regulations of
the City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, and State of Illinois; and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a

7




11.

12.

13.

nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Temporary construction and sales offices — includes trailers and portable
buildings used by contractors and sales personnel during construction of a
building on the RB&W Site:

(a) Maximum of 2,000 square feet per structure;
(b)  Maximum of two structures per property; and

(©) Shall be removed with 10 days of the issuance of certificate of
occupancy by the City of Rock Falls.

Temporary outdoor display of merchandise — includes events put on by
merchants located on the RB&W Site such as sidewalk sales and tent
sales, etc.: ' o :

(&)  Each event requires separate approval of the Zoning Committee 30
days prior to event;

(b)  Where possible, such events should be held jointly by all/several
merchants on the RB&W Site;

(©) Maximum of two events per year per business located on the
RB&W Site;

(d)  Maximum of 72 hours per event;

(e) Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements; and

® Use of publicly owned area also requires City approval.

Vending carts — includes non-motorized wheeled carts selling
merchandise, food and/or beverages:

_(8)  Applications shall specify: the types of merchandise, food or

beverages to be offered; the specific type of cart to be used; the
anticipated dates and times the use will be conducted; the methods
to be used to store and dispose of wastes; and the methods and
location of storage when the cart is not in use;

(b)  Carts shall be designed specifically for the intended use;

(¢)  Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements;

(d)  Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

(e Shall fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the
- City of Rock Falls and the Whiteside County Health Department;

® Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and




()  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties,

D. Hazardous Materials.
No Hazardous Materials of any kind shall be permanently stored in or disposed of
on the RB&W Site. As used herein, Hazardous Materials shall mean:

1. Any “hazardous waste” as defined by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976, as amended from time to time, and rules or
regulations promulgated thereunder;

2. Any “hazardous substance” as defined by the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended from time to time, and rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, but excluding oil, petroleum products and their by-products;
and

3. Any substance which is regulated by any federal, state or local
governmental authority or that is the subject of any law, rule or regulation.

III.  Design Guidelines.

All proposed construction, additions or reconstructions of any improvement to the
RB&W Site (including buildings, auxiliary buildings, signs, walls, fences, outside lighting,
landscaping, driveways and parking areas) shall comply with the RB&W Site Development
Design Guidelines (“Guidelines”) d 192017; and attached here as Appendix A.
Compliance with said Guidelines shall be as determined solely by the Zoning Committee per the
provisions of Article IV hereof.

IV. Development Approval,

Prior to the commencement of construction, addition or reconstruction of any
improvement to the RB&W Site (including buildings, auxiliary buildings, sigos, walls, fences,
outside lighting, landscaping, driveways and parking areas), the owner or prospective owner
thereof must submit receive approval from the Zoning Committee (the “Committee”) per the
provisions of these section.

A. Development Review Process

1. Plan preparation and submittal — All property owners and prospective
purchasers of land or buildings within the RB&W Site shall submit three
sets of complete plans and specifications for the proposed construction,
alteration or reconstruction to the Building Department. All plans and
specifications submitted shall be prepared by a qualified, registered
architect or contractor who shall certify in writing that he/she has and will
prepare the plans in accordance with all zoning, building, health and safety
ordinances, codes and laws and in accordance with all applicable
casements, design guidelines and other development standards pertaining
to the RB&W Site. The plans and specifications shall require all
contractors and subcontractors on the proposed project to acknowledge

9




C.

receipt of and agree to abide by these conditions. The plans and
specifications shall include such detail as the Committee shall require to
show the size, shape, floor plans, section details, square footage, height
(including elevation drawings of all exterior walls), site plan, foundation
plan, roof plans, all grading and landscaping plans, any proposed changes
to be made in the elevation or surface conditions of the RB&W Site, all
exterior improvements, and building materials.

2. Completeness review — The Building Department shall have five business
days to review the plans for completeness. If plans are deemed to be
incomplete, the Building Department shall provide a written notification to
the applicant detailing those items that are incomplete. If the plans are
deemed to be complete, the Building Department shall schedule a
Committee meeting to act on the plans, which meeting shall take place
within 30 days of the date the plans were deemed to be complete.

3. Committee review and action — The Committee shall make its
determination on approval of the plans and specifications, lot grading, and
landscaping plans based upon: their consistency with the Guidelines,
permitted uses, and other development standards and provisions contained
in these Covenants; the suitability and durability of the proposed
construction; the quality of the building materials and overall construction;
the harmony of external design; and the effect and appearance of such
proposed project as viewed from the streets and neighboring properties.
The Committee shall have 30 days from the date the plans and
specifications were deemed to be complete to render either a written
approval or written rejection thereof stating specifically the basis of
objections. A rejection also may contain suggestions for changes to the
plans and specifications, etc. that would make such project acceptable. If
the Committee gives no response within 30 days from the date the plans
and specifications were deemed to be complete, the plans and
specification as submitted shall be deemed to be approved.

Code compliance. All plans and specifications and methods of construction shall
be in full compliance with all applicable codes and regulations of the City of Rock
Falls and State of [llinois. To the extent that an applicant is intending to seek a
variance, waiver or change in any code or regulation applicable to the applicant’s
project, such intention shall be fully disclosed to the Committee as part of the
submitted application materials. Approval of the project plans and specifications
by the Committee shall be required prior to the applicant seeking action on the
proposed variance, waiver or change by the appropriate authority; however, such
approval by the Committee shall not constitute an endorsement of the proposed
variance, waiver or change by the Committee unless the Committee so indicates
in a separate written docament submitted by the Committee to the entity
authorized to approve the proposed variance, waiver or change.

Disclaimer. The Committee’s review of submissions is only for the purpose of
assuring the character and value of the RB&W Site and shall not be relied upon
by anyone as a representation as to structural soundness, fitness for a particular

10



purpose or compliance with zoning, building, health or safety codes or ordinances
or any other restrictions on the construction or property, other than the restrictive
covenants contained herein.

V. Project Construction.

A. Approved plans. Construction of a project apptoved by the Committee in
accordance with Article IV herein shall be in accordance with the plans and
specifications approved by the Committee.

B. Construction Site Standards. Construction and the conduct thereof shall
comply with all governmental requirements as to health and safety. In addition,
building and site plans of the owner shall address, at a minimum, erosion control,
parking for construction workmen, office trailers on the RB&W Site, materials
storage locations, security, design, location and disposal of sewage during
construction, cleaning and policing of the construction site and protection of
streets, street right-of-ways and property adjoining the building site. These may
be addressed in plan notes or letter form. When the construction of the project is
begun, work therein shall be prosecuted diligently and continuously, as
determined by the Committee and City Building Code time frames, until full
completion., Any building shall be substantially completed ptior to occupancy of
any part thereof, and landscaping shall be fully completed within 30 days
following initial occupancy, weather permitting or as determined by the
Committee.

VI.  Utilities
All electric, telephone and other utility lines in or servicing facilities on the RB&W Site must be
underground. It is the responsibility of the owner or occupant of the facility to make
arrangements with the suppliers of electrical, water, sewer, telecommunications and other utility

appurtenances extend said utilities to the owner’s facility consistent with the requirements
contained in these covenants.

VII. Stormwater Management.

(Need to provide language about how each parcel is to deal with stormwater
management, At a minimum, there should be provisions that prohibit each lot from creating
negative impacts on the others and for prohibiting inappropriate use of the drainage system (i.e.,
using it to dispose/discharge of anything but stormwater). Will there be a site-wide system
installed upfront that everyone will connect to, or is each parcel on its own? If thete is a site-
wide system, what limits/restrictions/pre-treatment requirements are there on each lot ownet? If
there are shared/common area facilities, who maintains therm?)

Storm Water Design must be compliant with Storm Water Ordinance Sec. 6-6635.

VIIL Utility Easements.

No improvements other than landscaping made be constructed or installed within a utility
easement as set forth on the plat of the RB&W Site without the approval of the Committee,
Anyone making use of said utility easements shall be responsible for restoration of all grades and
landscaping disturbed by such work.

1




Consistent with any restrictions recorded as part of a utility easement, the Committee
may allow paving and fences and other minor improvements of a similar nature to be constructed
in a utility easement, provided that the owner of such improvements shall be responsible for the
continued maintenance, replacement or removal should they be disturbed by anyone making
appropriate use of said easement.

IX. Parking and Loading.

Parking and loading shall be restricted to only those locations specifically designed and
designated for them. Owners shall enforce all fire lane and other “no parking” restrictions on
paved areas within their lots as required by the applicable fire safety authorities. Owners also
shall be responsible for directing their employees, vendors, customers and guests to
patk/load/unload in areas appropriately designated for each.

X. Maintenance and Operations.
A. Maintenance. The owner of a lot shall have a duty and responsibility to:

1. Keep the premises, structures, improvements, parking lot, appurtenances
and landscaping so that all conform with these Covenants and in a
maintained, safe, clean and attractive condition at all times;

2. Comply in all respects with city, state and federal governmental, health,
fire and police requirements;

3. Remove promptly any rubbish of any character whatsoever that may
accumulate on a lot. Trash or rubbish must be placed in appropriate
containers as defined by the Committee. Trash or rubbish must not be
placed or stored between any building and the edge of any abutting street;

- 4, Maintain all required landscaping and shall specifically (i) keep grass cut
to not over 4 inches in height (ii) remove and replace all dead or diseased
trees and shrubbery (iii) perform such additional planting, seeding,
sodding and grading work as necessary to prevent soil erosion, and (iv)
keep any native grass planting free from intrusive woody plants; and

5. Follow these Covenants or city code, whichever is more restrictive.
B. Operations. The owner of a lot shall have a duty and responsibility to:

1. Operate the property and all facilities only in the manner for which they
were designed, intended and approved. Any proposed changes in use or
general nature of the operations shall first be submitted to and approved by
the Commiittee;

2. Conduct all operations in a manner that is not offensive and does not pose
a nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or surrounding
properties. Offensive operations and nuisances shall be as defined in

12




Chapter 10, Article IV of the Rock Falls Code of Ordinances as well as
those activities and impacts that give rise to other owners or occupants of
the RB&W Site or surrounding properties to file written complaints with
the Committee that the Committee finds to be counter to character and
quality of the RB&W Site as described in these Covenants;

3. Ensure that where that keeping of household pets is specifically approved
by the Committee, that the owners of such pets maintain appropriate
contro! of them at all times and that pet waste is properly disposed of;

4. Adhere to the hours of operation for a particular use as approved by the
Committee;
5. Conduct all outdoor entertainment, recreation and other outdoor activities

in strict accordance to the terms and conditions placed upon such outdoor
activities by the Committee; and

6. Ensure that all employees, contractots, tenants of the owner are made
aware of all applicable provisions of these Covenants and that they
conduct themselves accordingly. In the event an employee, contractor or
tenant does not conduct themselves in accordance with these Covenants, it
shall be the owner’s responsibility, to the extent permitted by law, to
immediately correct their conduct and/or remove them from the RB&W
Site. ‘

. Notice and Right to Abate and Lien. If, in the opinion of the Committee,
anyone who fails in any given responsibility set forth in this article, then the
Committee may give such owner notice of failure and such owner must, within 10
days of receipt of such notice, undertake the work required to restore said owner’s
site to a safe, clean, attractive and lawful condition complying with these
covenants. Should any such owner fail to timely fulfill this duty and
responsibility after such notice, then the Committee shall have the right, license
and power, but not the obligation, to perform such area maintenance. The owner
of a lot shall be liable for the cost of any such work, and shall reimburse the
Committee for all reasonable expenses, including attorney fees, incurred in
collecting such costs, In addition, each owner of a lot subject to this paragraph
hereby consents to and gives and grants to the Committee and to the City a lien
upon such lot to serve as collateral for the repayment of the costs and expenses
owed, which lien may be perfected by the filing by the Committee in the
Recorder’s Office of Whiteside County, Illinois, of a Notice of Claim for Lien
setting forth the amount owed, the lot to which the lien applies, the name and last
known address of the owner of said lot, and the general nature of the work
performed giving rise to the claim.

13




XI.  Waiver of Right to Object to Special Taxing Districts.

While these Covenants remain in effect, all owners, lease holders and tenants
within the RB&W Site agree to waive their rights to object, as may otherwise be provided
under state law, to the creation of a Special Service Area or Business Development
District by the City of Rock Falls covering all or a portion of the RB&W Site provided
the maximum annual levy imposed under a Special Service Area would not exceed
$ ____,and the maximum sales and hotel occupancy taxes imposed under a
Business Development District would not exceed : -~ per cent (___%).

XII. Required Development.

The owner shall commence the construction of improvements on the RB&W Site
in accordance with approved plans from the Committee. If the construction is not timely
commenced, or once commenced, not diligently pursued to completion, the owner shall

- nonetheless be required to install acceptable landscaping on its property. Such
landscaping shall comply with the requirements of sub-section X.A.4. herein and shall
include, at a minimum, the seeding of the entire ground surface of the ownet’s property.
If the owner fails to either install or maintain the landscaping, the Committee shall have
the right, privilege and license (but not the obligation) to do so, and all amounts expended
by the Committee, together with a surcharge of twelve (12) percent per annum of cost for
overhead plus all legal fees incurred by the Committee in enforcing this provision shall
be, upon written demand of the Committee, immediately due and payable by the owner.
If not paid by the owner within thirty (30) days of demand, the charges shall bear interest
at the rate of 12% per anium and shall be collectible for all lawful means. The charges,
together with interest thereon, shall also constitute a lien against the owner’s property on
or for which the work was performed.

XIII. Option to Repurchase.

If an owner fails to commence construction of improvements on the RB&W Site within
one year of its purchase of a lot from the Committee ot, after commencement of construction,
fails to diligently pursue the construction to completion, so that the development is completed in
substantial accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Committee on or before the
first anniversary date of the owner’s purchase of the lot from the Committee, then the Committee
shall have the option to repurchase the lot for the same price paid by the owner to the
Committee. This option shall be exercised by the Committee within ninety (90) days of the
event giving rise to such option by written notice to said owner or its successors in interest, If
the option is not so timely exercised, it shall expire and be of no further force or effect. The
notice shall specify a closing date between thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days of the date of the
notice. The lot shall be conveyed by general warranty deed, free and clear of all tenancies, liens
ot encumbrances.

This Instrument shall put all parties on notice of this Option to Repurchase and no
separate agreement need be executed by an owner (or its successors in interest) in order to
validate the Committee’s option hereunder,

XIV. Further Subdivision Prohibited.

No lot which has been designated as a building lot on the original plat of subdivision of
any subdivision to which these covenants and restrictions apply shall be further subdivided by

14




any future owner thereof except with the express written consent of the Committee. This shall
include the creation of a condominium association, housing cooperative, timeshare or any other
form of divided ownership of land or improvements as allowed by Illinois law.

XV. Additional Restrictions.

The owner shall not, without the prior written consent of the Committee, impose any
additional covenants or restrictions on the RB&W Site ot any part thereof, but the Committee
may include in any contract or deed hereinafter made and covering all or any portion of said
“Part” any additional covenants or restrictions applicable to the RB&W Site which are not
consistent with and which do not lower the standards of the Covenants set forth herein.

XVI. Violations.
If any person, firm, corporation or other entity owning or holding any interest in any lot,
land or part of the subdivisions to which these restrictive Covenants apply shall violate any of the

Covenants, then in order to redress such violations, the Committee shall have the following
powers and authority, all of which shall be cumulative and not exclusive:

1. To file and maintain in the name of the City of Rock Falls an action at law
for the recovery of damages from the person or persons violating these
covenants, and including in such recovery all costs and expenses incutred
in such action, including reasonable attorney fees.

2. To file and maintain an action seeking a temporary restraining order,
preliminary injunction and permanent injunctive relief, including
mandatory injunctive relief for the purpose of preventing or enjoining any
violation or the continuation of any violation of these covenants and
restrictions. For this purpose, each owner of any lot, land or portion of the
subdivisions to which these Covenants apply does hereby acknowledge
and agree that a remedy at law may be inadequate to secure redress and
remedy arising from violation of these Covenants, and does further
acknowledge and agree that damages may be inadequate to propetly
compensate the Committee or the City of Rock Falls for damage arising
from violation of these Covenants. Each such owner of any lot, land or
portion of the subdivisions does therefore acknowledge and agree that a
court of competent jurisdiction shall have full authority to enter mandatory
or prohibitory injunctions, preliminary or permanent, and restraining
orders in accord with and pursuant to this provision.

XVII. Titles.

The addition of titles to the various paragraphs in this instrument are for convenience and
identification only and the use of such titles shall not be construed to limit, enlarge, change, or
otherwise modify any of the provisions hereof, each and all of which shall be construed as if not
titled.

15




XVIII. Severability.

Invalidity of any one or more of the brovisions of these Covenants shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any of the other provisions, hereof, which shall remain in full force
and effect.

XIX. Duration and Amendment,

These Covenants shall continue and be binding for a period of twenty-five(25)years
from the date hereof. These Covenants shall automatically be continued thereafter for
successive periods of twenty (20) years each. Provided, however, that said Covenants may be
amended or altered in accordance with the following:

1. So long as any of the lots or lands within the subdivision to which these
Covenants are applicable are owned by the City of Rock Falls, then said
Covenants may be amended by adoption by the City Council of the City of
Rock Falls, by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote, of an ordinance amending
the same. Prior to the City Council’s consideration of such an ordinance,
the Committee shall provide the City Council a written recommendation
concerning the proposed amendment, with an affirmative recommendation
to amend these Covenants requiring a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the
Committee. This same process also shall be used to exempt and exclude
application of any one or more, including all, of these Covenants to
any one lot or parcel within the subdivisions to which these Covenants
are applicable provided, however, that no such amendment, exemption
or exclusion shall permit the construction of any improvement or the
use of any lot or parcel in any manner which would be in violation of
any duly adopted ordinance or code then in effect within the City of
Rock Falls.

2, Any amendment, alteration, exemption or exclusion in or from the -
application of these Covenants shall be effective only from the time a
duly adopted and executed original thereof shall have been recorded in
the Office of the Recorder of Whiteside County, Illinois."

City of Rock Falls, Illinois
Industrial Development Committee

By:

Title

Attest:

Secretary
The above and foregoing Restrictive Covenants and conditions consisting of seventee

(17) pages was signed by the City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, Illinois, as Owner this
day of , 2017,

16



City of Rock Falls, Illinois

By:

Mayor
Attest:

Approved by the Industrial Development Committee of the City of Rock Falls, Illinois,
this day of , 2017,

Industrial Development Committee of the City of Rock Falls, Illinois

By:

Chairman
Attest: _ _
Secretary

17




DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING
AND APPLYING TO THE LOTS AND LANDS OF THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS,
ILLINOIS, LOCATED WITHIN THE RB&W REDEVELOPMENT SITE:

LOT 1, 2 & 3 OF ROCK FALLS RELIANT SUBDIVISION #2
PIN# 11-28-279-019
PIN# 11-27-151-019

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Sub-Lot 10 in the Re-Subdivision of Lots 10-1/2, 11, 12, 35, 36,37 & 38 in
Block “B” in Woodworth’s Subdivision of part of said Northwest Fractional Quarter (NW frac. %) of Section 27,
according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6 at Page 38 in the Office of the Whiteside County Recorder;
thence South 88 Degrees 28 Minutes 50 Seconds West, along the North line thereof, a distance of 160.02 feet (160
feet platted) to the Northwest corner thereof! thence South 00 Degrees 57 Minutes 04 Seconds East, along the West
line of said Lot 10, a distance of 6.29 feet; thence South 53 Degrees 49 Minutes 17 Seconds West, a distance of
380.02 feet to the Southeasterly line of the Former Chicago, Burlington & Quincy Railroad; thence South 33
Degrees 53 Minutes 10 Seconds West, along said Southwesterly line, a distance of 0.96 feet; thence South 01
Degrees 50 Minutes 44 Seconds East, a distance of 6.80 feet; thence South 59 Degrees 14 Minutes 17 Seconds
West, a distance of 253.81 feet to the East line of Avenue “A” (Formerly Park Street) in said City of Rock Falls;
thence North 36 Degrees 03 Minutes 30 Seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 282.49 feet; thence South
53 Degrees 41 Minutes 36 Seconds West, a distance of 15.0 feet; thence North 36 Degrees 03 Minutes 30 Seconds
West, parallel with said Easterly line of Avenue “A”, a distance of 41.35 feet; thence South 53 Degrees 49 Minutes
42 Seconds West, a distance of 60,00 feet to the Southeast corner of Block 1 of Keystoné Manufacturing Company
Subdivision of Block 1 and 2 of the Town (now City) of Rock Falls, according to the plat thereof, recorded in Plat
Book 2 at Page 49 in the Office of said Whiteside County recorder; thence North 8 Degrees 00 Minutes 41 Seconds
West, a distance of 267.48 feet; thence North 0 Degrees 51 Minutes 06 Seconds West, a distance of 47.24 feet to the
intersection of the North line of said Block 1 and the Easterly line of F.A. Route 66 (Illinois Route 40), said point
described as being 73.38 feet Northeast of the Northwest corner of said Block ; thence North 20 degrees 51 Minutes
06 Seconds West, along the Easterly line of said F.A. Route 646 (Illinois Route 40), a distance of 3.23 feet (3.13
deeded); thence North 05 Degrees 23 Minutes 48 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 50.94;
thence North 10 Degrees 25 Minutes 52 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 17,71 feet; thence
North 20 Degrees 29 Minutes 21 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 17.71 feet; thence North 12
Degrees 00 Minutes 03 Seconds West, along said Eastetly line, a distance of 16.32 feet; thence North 2 Degrees 07
Minutes 11 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 83.91 feet to the Southerly Water’s Edge of Rock
Fiver; thence Northeasterly, along said Southetly Water’s Edge of Rock River, a distance of 1,394 feet, more or less,
to the Northerly extension of the East line of Lot 48 of the Re-subdivision of part of Block “A” in Woodworth’s
Subdivision, according to the Plat thereof, recorded in Plat Box 6 of Page 38 in the Office of said Whiteside County
recorder; thence South 24 Degrees 44 Minutes 37 Seconds East, along said East line, and the Northerly extension
thereof, a distance of 147.98 feet to the Southeast corner thereof; thence South 65 Degrees 13 Minutes 35 Seconds
West, along the South line of said Block “A”, a distance of 246,89 feet to the Northerly extension of the West line of
Wood Avenue in said City of Rock Falls; thence South 25 Degrees 25 Minutes 14 Seconds East, along said West

. line, and the Northerly extension thereof, a distance of 282.67 feet to the Northeast cotner of Lot 10-1/2 of said Re-

Subdivision of Block “B” of Woodworth’s Subdivision; thence South 00 Degrees 59 Minutes 00 Seconds East,

along the East line thereof, a distance of 90.21 feet (90 feet platted) to the Point of Beginning;

Containing 14,790 acres, more or less.

Return to:




ROCK FALLS RB&W REDEVELOPMENT SITE
Restrictive Covenants

The City of Rock Falls, Illinois, a Municipal Corporation, acting by and through its City
Council (refetred to herein as “City Council””) being duly vested with authority to acquire, own,
develop and sell real estate for commercial and tesidential purposes, does hereby adopt the
following as covenants, conditions and restrictions to be applicable to, binding upon and to be a
covenant to run with the land and be binding upon all successors in interest to any of the lots,
lands, tenements and hereditaments of the real property of the City of Rock Falls to which these
covenants, conditions and restrictions (“Covenants”) are made applicable. Said Covenants are
adopted for the purpose of establishment and maintenance of character and quality of usage of
the lots and lands described herein. :

I. Land described.

The following is the description of the lots and lands to which these Covenants are
appended and to which these Covenants are made applicable:

LOT 1,2 & 3 OF ROCK FALLS RELIANT SUBDIVISION #2
PIN# 11-28-279-019
PIN# 11-27-151-019

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Sub-Lot 10 in the Re-Subdivision of Lots 10-1/2, 11, 12, 35, 36,37 & 38 in
Block “B” in Woodworth’s Subdivision of part of said Northwest Fractional Quarter (NW frac. %) of Section 27,
according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6 at Page 38 in the Office of the Whiteside County Recorder;
thence South 88 Degrees 28 Minutes 50 Seconds West, along the North line thereof, a distance of 160.02 feet (160
foet platted) to the Northwest corner thereof; thence South 00 Degrees 57 Minutes 04 Seconds East, along the West
line of said Lot 10, a distance of 6,29 feet; thence South 53 Degrees 49 Minutes 17 Seconds West, a distance of
380.02 feet to the Southeasterly line of the Former Chicago, Butlington & Quincy Railroad; thence South 33
Degrees 53 Minutes 10 Seconds West, along said Southwesterly line, a distance of 0.96 feet; thence South 01
Degrees 50 Minutes 44 Seconds East, a distance of 6.80 feet; thence South 59 Degrees 14 Minutes 17 Seconds
West, a distance of 253.81 feet to the East line of Avenue “A” (Formerly Park Street) in said City of Rock Falls;
thence North 36 Degrees 03 Minutes 30 Seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 282.49 feet; thence South
53 Degrees 41 Minutes 36 Seconds West, a distance of 15.0 feet; thence North 36 Degrees 03 Minutes 30 Seconds
West, parallel with said Easterly line of Avenue “A”, a distance of 41.35 feet; thence South 53 Degrees 49 Minutes
42 Seconds West, a distance of 60.00 feet to the Southeast corner of Block 1 of Keystone Manufacturing Company
Subdivision of Block 1 and 2 of the Town (now City) of Rock Falls, according to the plat thereof, recorded in Plat
Book 2 at Page 49 in the Office of said Whiteside County recorder; thence North 8 Degrees 00 Minutes 41 Seconds
West, a distance of 267.48 feet; thence North 0 Degrees 51 Minutes 06 Seconds West, a distance of 47,24 feet to the
intersection of the North line of said Block 1 and the Easterly line of F.A. Route 66 (Illinois Route 40), said point
described as being 73.38 feet Northeast of the Northwest corner of said Block ; thence North 20 degrees 51 Minutes
06 Seconds West, along the Eastetly line of said F.A. Route 646 (Illinois Route 40), a distance of 3.23 feet (3.13
deeded); thence North 05 Degrees 23 Minutes 48 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 50.94;
thence North 10 Degrees 25 Minutes 52 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 17.71 feet; thence
North 20 Degrees 29 Minutes 21 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 17.71 feet; thence North 12
Degrees 00 Minutes 03 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 16.32 feet; thence North 2 Degrees 07
Minutes 11 Seconds West, along said Easterly line, a distance of 83,91 feet to the Southerly Water’s BEdge of Rock
Fiver; thence Northeasterly, along said Southerly Water’s Edge of Rock River, a distance of 1,394 feet, more or less,
to the Northerly extension of the East line of Lot 48 of the Re-subdivision of part of Block “A” in Woodworth’s
Subdivision, according to the Plat thereof, recorded in Plat Box 6 of Page 38 in the Office of said Whiteside County
recorder: thence South 24 Degrees 44 Minutes 37 Seconds East, along said East line, and the Northerly extension
thereof, a distance of 147.98 feet to the Southeast corner thereof; thence South 65 Degrees 13 Minutes 35 Seconds
West, along the South line of said Block “A”, a distance of 246.89 fect to the Northerly extension of the West line of

2




Wood Avenue in said City of Rock Falls; thence South 25 Degrees 25 Minutes 14 Seconds East, along said West
line, and the Northerly extension theteof, a distance of 282.67 feet to the Northeast corner of Lot 10-1/2 of said Re-
Subdivision of Block “B” of Woodworth’s Subdivision; thence South 00 Degrees 59 Minutes 00 Seconds East,
along the East line thereof, a distance of 90.21 feet (90 feet platted) to the Point of Beginning;

Containing 14.790 acres, more or less,

Said lots and lands are generally referred to herein as the “RB&W Site” and said
reference, being singular, shall apply to each lot or parcel of real estate which may be
subsequently separated or partitioned from all of that real estate described within this paragraph,
and use of the words RB&W Site shall refer to each separate lot or parcel which may be
subsequently set apart from or conveyed to a separate grantee.

II.

A.

Use

Approved Uses. Subject to applicable zoning regulations, specific prohibited
uses as set forth in section B below, and restricted uses as set forth in section C
below, uses which are approved for the RB&W Site include all of those listed in
section 16-201 of the Rock Falls code of ordinances (permitted uses in the MU-1
district) and similar uses that, in the opinion of the Zoning Committee, would be
compatible with the listed permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance
and function of the RB&W Site as a whole.

Prohibited Uses. No use of the RB&W Site shall be permitted which is offensive
by reason of odor, fumes, dust, smoke, noise, vibration or other pollution, nor
shall any use be permitted which is hazardous by reason of excessive danger of
fire or explosion, which may be injurious to any property or persons on or about
the RB&W Site, and any dust, smoke or other airborne pollutants visible outside
of the walls of the premises from which it emanates shall be considered offensive.
Any noise generated from an indoor use shall be considered offensive if audible
outside of the walls of the premises from which it emanates (see special
provisions for outdoor activities in sub-section C, below).

Uses that are prohibited include the following:

1. adult uses as enumerated in Sec. 34-480 of the Rock Falls Code of
Ordinances

agriculture and livestock

assembly, fabrication and manufacturing
automobile and machinery sales and service garages
billboards

churches and other religious institutions
elementary, middle and high schools

day labor offices

© % N oL, oA W

detached single family homes

f—
@

flea markets and pawn shops

3




11.  for-profit blood or plasma donation centers

12.  funeral homes and mortuaries

13.  gold buyers

14.  junkyards and auto wrecking yards

15.  kennels

16.  mini-storage, warehouses and freight terminals

17.  motor fuel stations and car washes

18..  outdoor storage of equipment or merchandise

19.  outdoor vending machines

20.  mobile homes

21.  pay day loan stores

22.  shooting ranges

23.  waste treatment and transfer facilities and composting and recycling
facilities

24.  similar uses that, in the opinion of the Zoning Committee, would be

incompatible with the permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance and
function of the RB&W Site as a whole

. Restricted Uses. The following uses may be approved by the Zoning Committee
provided they meet the applicable standards described in this section and the
Zoning Committee finds that the uses would not be incompatible with the
permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance and function of the RB&W
Site as a whole:

1.

Accessory drive-throughs and drive-ups — includes banks, coffee shops,
restaurants, drug stores, etc.:

(a) Must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal use
located on the RB&W Site;

(b)  Maximum of 2 lanes/windows;

(©) Minimum stacking area of 3 cars per lane that are clearly separated
from parking and other circulation areas;

(d)  May not be located on the front of a building, a side of a building
facing the river, or a side of a building facing public open
space/park;

(e) Fully screened from view from the riverfront trail;

€3] Canopy setback a minimum of 20 feet from all streets and 40 feet
from the riverfront trail,

(8)  Maximum canopy height of 20 feet;




(h)
®

)
(k)

D

Canopy may not be internally lit;

Maximum intensity of lighting under the canopy of 2.0 foot
candles;

Outdoor speakers shall not be audible beyond the property line;

Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;
and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Accessory outdoor dining — includes all outdoor seating areas intended for
regular use by patrons of food and beverage establishments:

(®)
(b)

(©)

©)
(©
®

Must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal use
located on the RB&W Site;

Dining area shall be specifically designed and approved for such
use;

Area shall be clearly delineated and separated from sidewalks,
parking/circulation areas and public spaces through the use of
fences, walls, and/or landscaping;

'Serving of alcoholic beverages shall comply fully with all City of

Rock Falls and State of Illinois regulations;

Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;
and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties;

Accessory outdoor entertainment and recreation — includes the regular
offering of live and recorded music, theatrical performances, film
screenings and similar forms of entertainment; also includes public and
private sports courts and fields, playground equipment, climbing walls,
swimming pools, boat launches, docks, fishing piers, and similar active
recreation facilities:

()

Applications for approval must specify the types of entertainment
or recreation to be offered, the anticipated dates and times the use
will be conducted, the methods to be used to provide adequate
supervision/ security and to monitor compliance with the
restrictions placed on the use by the Zoning Committee and by the
City of Rock Falls as may be applicable;



(b)  Area must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal
use located on the RB&W Site;

(c)  Area shall be specifically designed and approved for such use;

(d)  Area shall be clearly delineated and separated from sidewalks,
parking/circulation areas and public spaces through the use of
fences, walls, and/or landscaping;

(e)  Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

() Performances shall fully comply with all applicable laws and
regulations of the City of Rock Falls, including those pertaining to
noise and nuisances;

(&)  Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

(h)  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

4, Accessory setvice, repair, light assembly, and fabrication — includes

household appliances, furniture, electronics, and typical office equipment,
etc. Does not include motor vehicles, heavy machinery or related

equipment:

(a)  Areamust be part of and directly attached to a permitted ptincipal
use located on the RB&W Site;

(b)-  Areamust be in a fully enclosed space;

(¢)  Maximum area of 500 square feet; and

(d  Must not result in off-premises impacts (such as noise, odors,

glare, etc.) greater than those emitted by the principal use.

5. Automated Teller Machines (ATMs)

(@)

Must be located inside a principal structure or within an approved
drive through facility.

6. Antennas, satellite dishes and telecommunications equipment

(a)

Shall be located only on rooftops and fully screened.

7. Farmer’s matket — includes the regulatly scheduled sale of produce, meats,
food products, flowers, and/or plants by one or more vendors on public or
private propetty:

(a)

Applications for approval must specify the general types of
products to be sold, the anticipated dates and times the use will be
conducted, the methods to be used to provide adequate
supetrvision/ security and to monitor compliance with restrictions

6




10.

placed on the use by the Zoning Committee and by the City of
Rock Falls as may be applicable;

(b)  The Zoning Committee may require a bond to be posted to cover
any damage to public or private facilities located on the RB&W
Site which is directly attributable to the conduct of the farmers
market;

(c) Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians of vehicles or
result in damage to landscaping or other improvements;

(d)  May not include the sale of general merchandise not directly

related to the cultivation or preparation of food products;

(e) Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

()  All vendors shall fully comply with applicable laws and
regulations of the City of Rock Falls and Whiteside County Health
Department;

(g)  Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

(h)  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Home occupations

(2) Shall fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the
City of Rock Falls.

Household pets — includes dogs, cats and other typical household pets kept
in residential units. Does not include livestock, poultry, wild animals, or
the raising or breeding of any animal for any commercial purpose:

(a)  Applications shall indicate type, number and weight of animals to
be permitted in each unit, areas where pet walking is to be
permitted, if any, and methods to be used for the disposal of pet
waste;

(b)  Outdoor kennels, houses, pens and similar devices are prohibited;
and

©) All restrictions and limitations approved by the Zoning Committee
shall be included in the leases or covenants of the applicable
residential units, and the landlord or owner’s association, as
applicable, shall have primary responsibility for enforcing the
restrictions.

Special events — includes festivals, auto shows and similar events of a
temporary nature open to the public with or without an admission charge:

(a)  Each special event shall require a separate approval,

7



11.

12.

(b)  Applications shall specify: the type of event and the activities to be
offered as part of it; the specific location(s) on the RB&W Site for
each activity; the dates and times of operations, setup and
takedown; admission charges; methods to be used to secure the site
at all times; areas to be used parking; methods of waste disposal
and similar information as needed for the Zoning Committee to
gain a full understanding of the nature of the event and its potential
impacts on owners, occupants and facilities on the on RB&W Site
and surrounding properties;

(¢)  The Zoning Committee may require a bond to be posted to cover
any damage to public or private facilities located on the RB&W
Site that are directly attributable to the conduct of the special
event; : , _

(d) Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements;

()  Shall require approval of a special event permit from the City of
Rock Falls;

@ Shall fully comply with all other applicable laws and regulations of
the City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, and State of Illinois; and

(g)  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Temporary construction and sales offices — includes trailers and portable
buildings used by contractors and sales personnel during construction of a
building on the RB&W Site:

()  Maximum of 2,000 square feet per structure;
(b)  Maximum of two structures per property; and

(©) Shall be removed with 10 days of the issuance of certificate of
occupancy by the City of Rock Falls.

Temporary outdoor display of merchandise — includes events put on by
merchants located on the RB&W Site such as sidewalk sales and tent
sales, etc.:

(a) Each event requires separate approval of the Zoning Committee 30
days prior to event;

(b)  Where possible, such events should be held jointly by all/several
merchants on the RB&W Site;

(c)  Maximum of two events per year per business located on the
RB&W Site;

(d)  Maximum of 72 hours per event,




(¢)  Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping ot other improvements; and

® Use of publicly owned area also requires City approval.

13.  Vending carts — includes non-motorized wheeled carts selling
metchandise, food and/or beverages:

(2) Applications shall specify: the types of merchandise, food or
beverages to be offered; the specific type of cart to be used; the
anticipated dates and times the use will be conducted; the methods
to be used to store and dispose of wastes; and the methods and
location of storage when the cart is not in use;

(b)  Carts shall be designed specifically for the intended use;

(c)  Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements;

(d)  Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

()  Shall fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the
City of Rock Falls and the Whiteside County Health Department,

® Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

()  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

D. Hazardous Materials.
No Hazardous Materials of any kind shall be permanently stored in or disposed of
on the RB&W Site. As used herein, Hazardous Materials shall mean:

1. Any “hazardous waste” as defined by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976, as amended from time to time, and rules or
regulations promulgated thereunder;

2. Any “hazardous substance” as defined by the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended from time to time, and rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, but excluding oil, petroleum products and their by-products;
and

3. Any substance which is regulated by any federal, state or local
governmental authority or that is the subject of any law, rule or regulation.

III.  Design Guidelines.

All proposed construction, additions or reconstructions of any improvement to the
RB&W Site (including buildings, auxiliary buildings, signs, walls, fences, outside lighting,
landscaping, driveways and parking areas) shall comply with the RB&W Site Development



Design Guidelines (“Guidelines”) dated . = .:-,12017, and attached here as Appendix A.
Compliance with said Guidelines shall be as determined solely by the Zoning Committee per the
provisions of Article IV hereof.

IV. Development Approval.

Prior to the commencement of construction, addition or reconstruction of any
improvement to the RB&W Site (including buildings, auxiliary buildings, signs, walls, fences,
outside lighting, landscaping, driveways and parking areas), the owner or prospective owner
thereof must submit receive approval from the Zoning Committee (the “Comumittee”) per the
provisions of these section.

A. Development Review Process

L.

Plan preparation and submittal — All propetty owners and prospective
purchasers of land or buildings within the RB&W Site shall submit three
sets of complete plans and specifications for the proposed construction,
alteration ot reconstruction to the Building Department. All plans and
specifications submitted shall be prepared by a qualified, registered
architect or contractor who shall certify in writing that he/she has and will
prepare the plans in accordance with all zoning, building, health and safety
ordinances, codes and laws and in accordance with all applicable
easements, design guidelines and other development standards pertaining
to the RB&W Site. The plans and specifications shall require all
contractors and subcontractors on the proposed project to acknowledge
receipt of and agree to abide by these conditions. The plans and
specifications shall include such detail as the Committee shall require to
show the size, shape, floot plans, section details, square footage, height
(including elevation drawings of all exterior walls), site plan, foundation
plan, roof plans, all grading and landscaping plans, any proposed changes
to be made in the elevation or surface conditions of the RB&W Site, all
exterior improvements, and building materials.

Completeness review — The Building Department shall have five business
days to review the plans for completeness. If plans are deemed to be
incomplete, the Building Department shall provide a written notification to
the applicant detailing those items that are incomplete. If the plans are
deemed to be complete, the Building Department shall schedule a
Committee meeting to act on the plans, which meeting shall take place
within 30 days of the date the plans were deemed to be complete,

Committee review and action — The Committee shall make its
determination on approval of the plans and specifications, lot grading, and
landscaping plans based upon: their consistency with the Guidelines,
permitted uses, and other development standards and provisions contained
in these Covenants; the suitability and durability of the proposed
construction; the quality of the building materials and overall construction;
the harmony of external design; and the effect and appearance of such
proposed project as viewed from the streets and neighboring properties.

10




C.

The Committee shall have 30 days from the date the plans and
specifications were deemed to be complete to render either a written
approval or written rejection thereof stating specifically the basis of
objections. A rejection also may contain suggestions for changes to the
plans and specifications, etc. that would make such project acceptable. If
the Committee gives no response within 30 days from the date the plans
and specifications were deemed to be complete, the plans and
specification as submitted shall be deemed to be approved.

Code compliance. All plans and specifications and methods of construction shall
be in full compliance with all applicable codes and regulations of the City of Rock
Falls and State of [llinois. To the extent that an applicant is intending to seek a
variance, waiver or change in any code or regulation applicable to the applicant’s
project, such intention shall be fully disclosed to the Committee as part of the
submitted application materials. Approval of the project plans and specifications
by the Committee shall be required prior to the applicant seeking action on the
proposed variance, waiver or change by the appropriate authority; however, such
approval by the Committee shall not constitute an endorsement of the proposed
variance, waiver or change by the Committee unless the Committee so indicates
in a separate written document submitted by the Committee to the entity
authorized to approve the proposed variance, waiver or change.

Disclaimer. The Committee’s review of submissions is only for the purpose of
assuring the character and value of the RB&W Site and shall not be relied upon
by anyone as a representation as to structural soundness, fitness for a particular
purpose or compliance with zoning, building, health or safety codes or ordinances
or any other restrictions on the construction or property, other than the restrictive
covenants contained herein.

Project Construction.

Approved plans. Construction of a project approved by the Committee in
accordance with Article IV herein shall be in accordance with the plans and
specifications approved by the Committee.

Construction Site Standards. Construction and the conduct thereof shall
comply with all governmental requirements as to health and safety. In addition,
building and site plans of the owner shall address, at a minimum, erosion control,
parking for construction workmen, office trailers on the RB&W Site, materials
storage locations, security, design, location and disposal of sewage during
construction, cleaning and policing of the construction site and protection of
streets, street right-of-ways and property adjoining the building site. These may
be addressed in plan notes or letter form. When the construction of the project is
begun, work therein shall be prosecuted diligently and continuously, as
determined by the Committee and City Building Code time frames, until full
completion. Any building shall be substantially completed priot to occupancy of
any part thereof, and landscaping shall be fully completed within 30 days
following initial occupancy, weather permitting or as determined by the
Committee.

11




VI. Utilities

All electric, telephone and other utility lines in or servicing facilities on the RB&W Site must be
underground. It is the responsibility of the owner or occupant of the facility to make
arrangements with the suppliers of electrical, water, sewer, telecommunications and other utility
appurtenances extend said utilities to the owner’s facility consistent with the requirements
contained in these covenants.

VII. Stormwater Management.

(Need to provide language about how each parcel is to deal with stormwater
management. At a minimum, there should be provisions that prohibit each lot from creating
negative impacts on the others and for prohibiting inappropriate use of the drainage system (i.e.,
using it to dispose/discharge of anything but stormwater). Will there be a site-wide system
installed upfront that everyone will connect to, or is each parcel on its own? If there is a site-
wide system, what limits/restrictions/pre-treatment requirements are there on each lot owner? If
there are shared/common area facilities, who maintains them?)

Storm Water Design must be compliant with Storm Water Ordinance Sec. 6-663.

VIII. Utility Easements.

No improvements other than landscaping made be constructed or installed within a utility
easement as set forth on the plat of the RB&W Site without the approval of the Committee.
Anyone making use of said utility easements shall be responsible for restoration of all grades and
landscaping disturbed by such work.

Consistent with any restrictions recorded as part of a utility easement, the Committee
may allow paving and fences and other minor improvements of a similar nature to be constructed
in a utility easement, provided that the owner of such improvements shall be responsible for the
continued maintenance, replacement or removal should they be disturbed by anyone making
appropriate use of said easement.

IX. Parking and Loading.

Parking and loading shall be restricted to only those locations specifically designed and
designated for them. Owners shall enforce all fire lane and other “no parking” restrictions on
paved areas within their lots as required by the applicable fire safety authorities. Owners also
shall be responsible for directing their employees, vendors, customers and guests to
park/load/unload in areas appropriately designated for each.

X. Maintenance and Operations.
A. Maintenance. The owner of a lot shall have a duty and responsibility to:

1. Keep the premises, structures, improvements, parking lot, appurtenances
and landscaping so that all conform with these Covenants and in a
maintained, safe, clean and attractive condition at-all times;

2. Comply in all respects with city, state and federal governmental, health,
fire and police requirements;

12




5.

Remove promptly any rubbish of any character whatsoever that may
accumulate on a lot. Trash or rubbish must be placed in appropriate
containers as defined by the Committee. Trash or rubbish must not be
placed or stored between any building and the edge of any abutting street;

Maintain all required landscaping and shall specifically (i) keep grass cut
to not over 4 inches in height (i) remove and replace all dead or diseased
trees and shrubbery (iii) perform such additional planting, seeding,
sodding and grading work as necessary to prevent soil erosion, and (iv)
keep any native grass planting free from intrusive woody plants; and

Follow these Covenants or city code, whichever is more restrictive.

B. Operations. The owner of a lot shall have a duty and responsibility to:

1.

Operate the property and all facilities only in the manner for which they
were designed, intended and approved. ‘Any proposed changes in use or
general nature of the operations shall first be submitted to and approved by
the Committee;

Conduct all operations in a manner that is not offensive and does not pose
a nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or surrounding
properties. Offensive operations and nuisances shall be as defined in
Chapter 10, Article IV of the Rock Falls Code of Ordinances as well as
those activities and impacts that give rise to other owners or occupants of
the RB&W Site or surrounding propetties to file written complaints with
the Committee that the Committee finds to be counter to character and
quality of the RB&W Site as described in these Covenants;

Ensure that where that keeping of household pets is specifically approved
by the Committee, that the owners of such pets maintain approptiate
control of them at all times and that pet waste is properly disposed of;

Adhere to the hours of operation for a particular use as approved by the
Committee;

Conduct all outdoor entertainment, recreation and other outdoor activities
in strict accordance to the terms and conditions placed upon such outdoor
activities by the Committee; and

Ensure that all employees, contractors, tenants of the owner are made
aware of all applicable provisions of these Covenants and that they
conduct themselves accordingly. In the event an employee, contractor or
tenant does not conduct themselves in accordance with these Covenants, it
shall be the owner’s responsibility, to the extent permitted by law, to

13l




immediately cortect their conduct and/or remove them from the RB&W
Site.

C. Notice and Right to Abate and Lien. If, in the opinion of the Committee,
anyone who fails in any given responsibility set forth in this article, then the
Committee may give such owner notice of failure and such owner must, within 10
days of receipt of such notice, undertake the work required to restore said owner’s
site to a safe, clean, attractive and lawful condition complying with these
covenants. Should any such owner fail to timely fulfill this duty and
responsibility after such notice, then the Committee shall have the right, license
and power, but not the obligation, to perform such area maintenance. The owner
of a lot shall be liable for the cost of any such work, and shall reimburse the
Committee for all reasonable expenses, including attorney fees, incurred in
collecting such costs. In addition, each owner of a lot subject to this paragraph
hereby consents to and gives and grants to the Committee and to the City a lien
upon such lot to serve as collateral for the repayment of the costs and expenses
owed, which lien may be perfected by the filing by the Committee in the
Recorder’s Office of Whiteside County, Illinois, of a Notice of Claim for Lien
setting forth the amount owed, the lot to which the lien applies, the name and last
known address of the owner of said lot, and the general nature of the work
performed giving rise to the claim.

XI.  Waiver of Right to Object to Special Taxing Districts.

While these Covenants remain in effect, all owners, lease holders and tenants
within the RB&W Site agree to waive their rights to object, as may otherwise be provided
under state law, to the creation of a Special Service Area or Business Development
District by the City of Rock Falls covering all or a portion of the RB&W Site provided
the maximum annual levy 1mposed under a Special Service Area would not exceed

L and the maximum sales and hotel > 1mposed under a
Business Development District would not exceed | ;

XII. Required Development.

The owner shall commence the construction of improvements on the RB&W Site
in accordance with approved plans from the Committee. If the construction is not timely
commenced, or once commenced, not diligently pursued to completion, the owner shall
nonetheless be required to install acceptable landscaping on its property. Such
landscaping shall comply with the requirements of sub-section X.A.4., herein and shall
include, at a minimum, the seeding of the entire ground surface of the owner’s property.
If the owner fails to either install or maintain the landscaping, the Committee shall have
the right, privilege and license (but not the obligation) to do so, and all amounts expended
by the Committee, together with a surcharge of twelve (12) percent per annum of cost for
overhead plus all legal fees incurred by the Committee in enforcing this provision shall
be, upon written demand of the Committee, immediately due and payable by the owner.
If not paid by the owner within thirty (30) days of demand, the charges shall bear interest
at the rate of 12% per annum and shall be collectible for all lawful means. The charges,

14




together with interest thereon, shall also constitute a lien against the owner’s property on
or for which the work was performed.

XIII. Option to Repurchase.

If an owner fails to commence construction of improvements on the RB&W Site within
one year of its purchase of a lot from the Committee or, after commencement of construction,
fails to diligently pursue the construction to completion, so that the development is completed in
substantial accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Committee on or before the
first anniversary date of the owner’s purchase of the lot from the Committee, then the Committee
shall have the option to repurchase the lot for the same price paid by the owner to the
Committee. This option shall be exetcised by the Committee within ninety (90) days of the
event giving rise to such option by written notice to said owner or its successors in interest. If
the option is not so timely exercised, it shall expire and be of no further force or effect. The
notice shall specify a closing date between thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days of the date of the
notice. The lot shall be conveyed by general warranty deed, free and clear of all tenancies, liens
or encumbrances,

This Instrument shall put all parties on notice of this Option to Repurchase and no
separate agreement need be executed by an owner (ot its successors in interest) in order to
validate the Committee’s option hereunder.

XIV. Further Subdivision Prohibited.

No lot which has been designated as a building lot on the original plat of subdivision of
any subdivision to which these covenants and restrictions apply shall be further subdivided by
any future owner thereof except with the express written consent of the Committee. This shall
include the creation of a condominium association, housing cooperative, timeshare or any other
form of divided ownership of land or improvements as allowed by Illinois law.

XV. Additional Restrictions.

The owner shall not, without the prior written consent of the Committee, impose any
additional covenants or restrictions on the RB&W Site or any patt thereof, but the Committee
may include in any contract or deed hereinafter made and covering all or any portion of said
“Part” any additional covenants or restrictions applicable to the RB&W Site which are not
consistent with and which do not lower the standards of the Covenants set forth herein.

XVI. Violations.

If any person, firm, corporation or other entity owning or holding any interest in any lot,
land or part of the subdivisions to which these restrictive Covenants apply shall violate any of the
Covenants, then in order to redress such violations, the Committee shall have the following
powers and authority, all of which shall be cumulative and not exclusive:

L. To file and maintain in the name of the City of Rock Falls an action at law
for the recovery of damages from the person or persons violating these
covenants, and including in such recovery all costs and expenses incurred
in such action, including reasonable attorney fees. '

2. To file and maintain an action seeking a temporary restraining ordet,
preliminary injunction and permanent injunctive relief, including
mandatory injunctive relief for the purpose of preventing or enjoining any

15




violation or the continuation of any violation of these covenants and
restrictions. For this purpose, each owner of any lot, land or portion of the
subdivisions to which these Covenants apply does hereby acknowledge
and agree that a remedy at law may be inadequate to secure redress and
remedy arising from violation of these Covenants, and does further
acknowledge and agree that damages may be inadequate to properly
compensate the Committee or the City of Rock Falls for damage arising
from violation of these Covenants. Each such owner of any lot, land or
portion of the subdivisions does therefore acknowledge and agree that a
court of competent jurisdiction shall have full authority to enter mandatory
or prohibitory injunctions, preliminary or permanent, and restraining
orders in accord with and pursuant to this provision.

XVII. Titles.

The addition of titles to the various paragraphs in this instrument are for convenience and
identification only and the use of such titles shall not be construed to limit, enlarge, change, or
otherwise modify any of the provisions hereof, each and all of which shall be construed as if not
titled.

XVIII. Severability.

Invalidity of any one or more of the provisions of these Covenants shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any of the other provisions, hereof, which shall remain in full force
and effect.

XIX. Duration and Amendment.

These Covenants shall continue and be binding for a period of twenty-five(25)years
from the date hereof, These Covenants shall automatically be continued thereafter for
successive periods of twenty (20) years each. Provided, however, that said Covenants may be
amended or altered in accordance with the following:

1. So long as any of the lots or lands within the subdivision to which these
Covenants are applicable ate owned by the City of Rock Falls, then said
Covenants may be amended by adoption by the City Council of the City of
Rock Falls, by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote, of an ordinance amending
the same. Prior to the City Council’s consideration of such an ordinance,
the Committee shall provide the City Council a written recommendation
concerning the proposed amendment, with an affirmative recommendation
to amend these Covenants requiring a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the
Committee. This same process also shall be used to exempt and exclude
application of any one or more, including all, of these Covenants to
any one lot or parcel within the subdivisions to which these Covenants
are applicable provided, however, that no such amendment, exemption
or exclusion shall permit the construction of any improvement or the
use of any lot or parcel in any manner which would be in violation of
any duly adopted ordinance or code then in effect within the City of
Rock Falls. ‘

16




2. Any amendment, alteration, exemption or exclusion in or from the
application of these Covenants shall be effective only from the time a
duly adopted and executed original thereof shall have been recorded in
the Office of the Recorder of Whiteside County, Illinois."

City of Rock Falls, Illinois
Industrial Development Committee

By:

"
o

Title

Attest:

Secretary

The above and foregoing Restrictive Covenants and conditions consisting of seventeen
(17) pages was signed by the City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, [llinois, as Owner this
day of , 2017.

City of Rock Falls, Ilinois

By:

Mayor
: Attest:

Approved by the Industrial Development Committee of the City of Rock Falls, Illinois,
this dayof , 2017,

Industrial Development Committee of the City of Rock Falls, Illinois

By:
Chairman
Attest: -
Secretary

17



DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING
AND APPLYING TO THE LOTS AND LANDS OF THE CITY OF ROCK FALLS,
ILLINOIS, LOCATED WITHIN THE RB&W REDEVELOPMENT SITE:

LOT 1 OF ROCK FALLS RELIANT SUBDIVISION #3
PIN# 11-27-151-022
PIN# 11-28-279-022

Lot 1 of Rock Falls — Reliant Subdivision No. 3, a subdivision of Tract A of Rock Falls - Reliant
Subdivision No. 2, being a part of the Fractional Northeast Quarter of Section 28, and part of the
Fractional Northwest Quarter of Section 27, Township 21 North, Range 7 East of the 4" P.M.,,
City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, Illinois; according to the Plat thereof recorded September
30, 2014 as Document No. 2014-05478.

Return to:




ROCK FALLS RB&W REDEVELOPMENT SITE
Restrictive Covenants

The City of Rock Falls, Illinois, a Municipal Corporation, acting by and through its City
Council (referred to herein as “City Council”) being duly vested with authority to acquire, own,
develop and sell real estate for commercial and residential purposes, does hereby adopt the
following as covenants, conditions and restrictions to be applicable to, binding upon and to be a
covenant to run with the land and be binding upon all successors in interest to any of the lots,
lands, tenements and hereditaments of the real property of the City of Rock Falls to which these
covenants, conditions and restrictions (“Covenants”) are made applicable. Said Covenants are
adopted for the purpose of establishment and maintenance of character and quality of usage of
the lots and lands described herein.

L. Land described.
The following is the description of the lots and lands to which these Covenants are
appended and to which these Covenants are made applicable:

LOT 1 OF ROCK FALLS RELIANT SUBDIVISION #3
PIN# 11-27-151-022
PIN# 11-28-279-022

Lot 1 of Rock Falls — Reliant Subdivision No. 3, a subdivision of Tract A of Rock Falls — Reliant
Subdivision No. 2, being a part of the Fractional Northeast Quarter of Section 28, and part of the
Fractional Northwest Quarter of Section 27, Township 21 North, Range 7 East of the 4% PM., City of
Rock Falls, Whiteside County, Illinois; according to the Plat thereof recorded September 30, 2014 as
Document No, 2014-05478.

Said lots and lands are generally referred to herein as the “RB&W Site” and said
reference, being singular, shall apply to each lot or parcel of real estate which may be
subsequently separated or partitioned from all of that real estate described within this paragraph,
and use of the words RB&W Site shall refer to each separate lot or parcel which may be
subsequently set apart from or conveyed to a separate grantee.

II. Use

A. Approved Uses. Subject to applicable zoning regulations, specific prohibited
uses as set forth in section B below, and restricted uses as set forth in section C
below, uses which are approved for the RB&W Site include all of those listed in
section 16-201 of the Rock Falls code of ordinances (permitted uses in the MU-1
district) and similar uses that, in the opinion of the Zoning Committee, would be
compatible with the listed permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance
and function of the RB&W Site as a whole.

B. Prohibited Uses. No use of the RB&W Site shall be permitted which is offensive
by reason of odor, fumes, dust, smoke, noise, vibration or other pollution, nor
shall any use be permitted which is hazardous by reason of excessive danger of
fire or explosion, which may be injurious to any property or persons on or about
the RB&W Site, and any dust, smoke or other aitborne pollutants visible outside
of the walls of the premises from which it emanates shall be considered offensive.




Any noise generated from an indoor use shall be considered offensive if audible
outside of the walls of the premises from which it emanates (see special
provisions for outdoor activities in sub-section C, below).

Uses that are prohibited include the following:

1. adult uses as enumerated in Sec. 34-480 of the Rock Falls Code of
Ordinances

2. agriculture and livestock

3. assembly, fabrication and manufacturing

4. automobile and machinery sales and service garages

5. billboards

6. churches and other religious institutions

7. elementary, middle and high schools

8. day labor offices

9. detached single family homes

10.  flea markets and pawn shops

11.  for-profit blood or plasma donation centers

12.  funeral homes and mortuaries

13.  gold buyers

14.  junkyards and auto wrecking yards

15.  kennels

16.  mini-storage, warehouses and freight terminals

17.  motor fuel stations and car washes

18.  outdoor storage of equipment or merchandise

19.  outdoor vending machines

20.  mobile homes

21.  pay day loan stores

22.  shooting ranges

73, waste treatment and transfer facilities and composting and recycling

facilities

24.  similar uses that, in the opinion of the Zoning Committee, would be

incompatible with the permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance and
function of the RB&W Site as a whole

Restricted Uses. The following uses may be approved by the Zoning Comunittee
provided they meet the applicable standards described in this section and the
Zoning Committee finds that the uses would not be incompatible with the

3




permitted uses and the quality, character, appearance and function of the RB&W
Site as a whole:

Accessory drive-throughs and drive-ups — includes banks, coffee shops,
restaurants, drug stores, etc.:

1.

(a)

(®)
(©

(d)

®

(8
(b
@)
G)
)

@

Must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal use
located on the RB&W Site;

Maximum of 2 lanes/windows;

Minimum stacking area of 3 cars per lane that are clearly separated
from parking and other circulation areas;

May not be located on the front of a building, a side of a building
facing the river, or a side of a building facing public open
space/park;

Fully screened from view from the riverfront trail;

Canopy setback a minimum of 20 feet from all streets and 40 feet
from the riverfront trail;

Maximum canopy height of 20 feet;
Canopy may not be internally lit;

Maximum intensity of lighting under the canopy of 2.0 foot
candles;

Outdoor speakers shall not be audible beyond the property line;

Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;
and

Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a

‘nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or

surrounding properties.

Accessory outdoor dining - includes all outdoor seating areas intended for
regular use by patrons of food and beverage establishments:

(®)
()
(©)

@)

Must be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal use
located on the RB&W Site;

Dining area shall be specifically designed and approved for such
use;

Area shall be clearly delineated and separated from sidewalks,
parking/circulation areas and public spaces through the use of
fences, walls, and/or landscaping;

Serving of alcoholic beverages shall comply fully with all City of
Rock Falls and State of Illinois regulations;




(e) Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify opetating hours;
and

(B Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties;

Accessory outdoor entertainment and recreation — includes the regular
offering of live and recorded music, theatrical performances, film
screenings and similar forms of entertainment; also includes public and
private sports courts and fields, playground equipment, climbing walls,
swimming pools, boat launches, docks, fishing piers, and similar active
recreation facilities:

(a) Applications for approval must specify the types of entertainment
or recreation to be offered, the anticipated dates and times the use
will be conducted, the methods to be used to provide adequate
supervision/ security and to monitor compliance with the
restrictions placed on the use by the Zoning Committee and by the
City of Rock Falls as may be applicable;

(b)  Areamust be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal
use located on the RB&W Site;

(c) Area shall be specifically designed and approved for such use;

(d)  Area shall be clearly delineated and separated from sidewalks,
parking/circulation areas and public spaces through the use of
fences, walls, and/or landscaping;

(e) Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

® Performances shall fully comply with all applicable laws and
regulations of the City of Rock Falls, including those pertaining to
noise and nuisances;

(g)  Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

()  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Accessoty service, repair, light assembly, and fabrication — includes
household appliances, furniture, electronics, and typical office equipment,
ete. Does not include motor vehicles, heavy machinery or related
equipment:

(a)  Areamust be part of and directly attached to a permitted principal
use located on the RB&W Site;

(b)  Areamust be in a fully enclosed space;

5




(c) Maximum area of 500 square feet; and

(d) Must not result in off-premises impacts (such as noise, odors,
glare, etc.) greater than those emitted by the principal use.

5. Automated Teller Machines (ATMs)

(a) Must be located inside a principal structure or within an approved
drive through facility.

Antennas, satellite dishes and telecommunications equipment
(a) Shall be located only on roofiops and fully screened.

Farmer’s market — includes the regularly scheduled sale of produce, meats,

food products, flowers, and/or plants by one or more vendors on public or

private property: o ' oo

(&)  Applications for approval must specify the general types of
products to be sold, the anticipated dates and times the use will be
conducted, the methods to be used to provide adequate
supervision/ security and to monitor compliance with restrictions
placed on the use by the Zoning Committee and by the City of
Rock Falls as may be applicable;

(b)  The Zoning Committee may require a bond to be posted to cover
any damage to public or private facilities located on the RB&W
Site which is directly attributable to the conduct of the farmers
market;

(0 Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians of vehicles or
result in damage to landscaping or other improvements;

(d)  May not include the sale of general merchandise not directly
related to the cultivation or preparation of food products;

(e Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

® All vendors shall fully comply with applicable laws and
regulations of the City of Rock Falls and Whiteside County Health
Department;

(8)  Approvals graoted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

(h)  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
- nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.

Home occupations

(a) Shall fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the

City of Rock Falls.



10.

Household pets — includes dogs, cats and other typical household pets kept
in residential units. Does not include livestock, poultry, wild animals, or
the raising or breeding of any animal for any commercial purpose:

(a) Applications shall indicate type, number and weight of animals to
be petmitted in each unit, areas where pet walking is to be
permitted, if any, and methods to be used for the disposal of pet
waste;

(b) Outdoor kennels, houses, pens and similar devices are prohibited;
and

(¢)  All restrictions and limitations approved by the Zoning Committee
shall be included in the leases or covenants of the applicable
residential units, and the landlord ot owner’s association, as
applicable, shall have primary responsibility for enforcing the
restrictions.

Special events — includes festivals, auto shows and similar events of a
temporary nature open to the public with or without an admission charge:

(a) Each special event shall require a separate approval;

(b)  Applications shall specify: the type of event and the activities to be
offered as part of it; the specific location(s) on the RB&W Site for
each activity; the dates and times of operations, setup and
takedown; admission charges; methods to be used to secure the site
at all times; areas to be used parking; methods of waste disposal;
and similar information as needed for the Zoning Committee to
gain a full understanding of the nature of the event and its potential
impacts on owners, occupants and facilities on the on RB&W Site
and surrounding properties;

(¢)  The Zoning Committee may require a bond to be posted to cover
any damage to public or private facilities located on the RB&W
Site that are directly attributable to the conduct of the special
event,

(d)  Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements;

(e) Shall require approval of a special event permit from the City of
Rock Falls;

6] Shall fully comply with all other applicable laws and regulations of
the City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, and State of Illinois; and

()  Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.




11.

12.

13.

Temporary construction and sales offices — includes trailers and portable
buildings used by contractors and sales personnel during construction of a
building on the RB&W Site:

(a) Maximum of 2,000 square feet per structure;
(b)  Maximum of two structures per property; and

©) Shall be removed with 10 days of the issuance of certificate of
occupancy by the City of Rock Falls.

Temporary outdoor display of merchandise — includes events put on by
metchants located on the RB&W Site such as sidewalk sales and tent
sales, etc.:

(a) Each event requires separate approval of the Zoning Committee 30
days prior to event;

(b)  Where possible, such events should be held jointly by all/several
merchants on the RB&W Site;

() Maximum of two events per year per business located on the
RB&W Site;

(d)  Maximum of 72 hours per event;

(e)  Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements; and

(f) Use of publicly owned area also requires City approval.

Vending carts — includes non-motorized wheeled carts selling
merchandise, food and/or beverages:

(a) Applications shall specify: the types of merchandise, food or
beverages to be offered; the specific type of cart to be used; the
anticipated dates and times the use will be conducted; the methods
to be used to store and dispose of wastes; and the methods and
location of storage when the cart is not in use;

(b)  Carts shall be designed specifically for the intended use;

(c) Location shall not create a hazard for pedestrians or vehicles or
result in the damage of landscaping or other improvements;

(d)  Approval by the Zoning Committee shall specify operating hours;

(¢)  Shall fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations of the
City of Rock Falls and the Whiteside County Health Department;

® Approvals granted by the Zoning Committee are valid for only one
calendar year and must be renewed annually; and

(2 Approvals are subject to revocation by the Zoning Committee
upon a determination that the use is offensive and constitutes a
nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or
surrounding properties.




D. Hazardous Materials.
No Hazardous Materials of any kind shall be permanently stored in or disposed of
on the RB&W Site. As used herein, Hazardous Materials shall mean:

1. Any “hazardous waste” as defined by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976, as amended from time to time, and rules or
regulations promulgated thereunder;

2. Any “hazardous substance” as defined by the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended from time to time, and rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, but excluding oil, petroleum products and their by-products;
and

3. Any substance which is regulated by any federal, state or local
governmental authority or that is the subject of any law, rule or regulation.

III.  Design Guidelines.

All proposed construction, additions or reconstructions of any improvement to the
RB&W Site (including buildings, auxiliary buildings, sigos, walls, fences, outside lighting,
“landscaping, driveways and parking areas) comply with the RB&W Site Development
Design Guidelines (“Guidelines”) dated ; ,12017, and attached here as Appendix A.
Compliance with said Guidelines shall be as determined solely by the Zoning Committee per the
provisions of Article IV hereof.

IV. Development Approval.

Prior to the commencement of construction, addition or reconstruction of any
improvement to the RB&W Site (including buildings, auxiliary buildings, signs, walls, fences,
outside lighting, landscaping, driveways and parking areas), the owner or prospective owner
thereof must submit receive approval from the Zoning Committee (the “Committee”) per the
provisions of these section.

A. Development Review Process

1. Plan preparation and submittal — All property owners and prospective
purchasers of land or buildings within the RB&W Site shall submit three
sets of complete plans and specifications for the proposed construction,
alteration or reconstruction to the Building Department. All plans and
specifications submitted shall be prepared by a qualified, registered
architect or contractor who shall certify in writing that he/she has and will
prepare the plans in accordance with all zoning, building, health and safety
ordinances, codes and laws and in accordance with all applicable

. easements, design guidelines and other development standards pertaining
to the RB&W Site. The plans and specifications shall require all
contractors and subcontractots on the proposed project to acknowledge
receipt of and agree to abide by these conditions. The plans and
specifications shall include such detail as the Committee shall require to
show the size, shape, floor plans, section details, square footage, height
(including elevation drawings of all exterior walls), site plan, foundation

9




plan, roof plans, all grading and landscaping plans, any proposed changes
to be made in the elevation or surface conditions of the RB&W Site, all
exterior improvements, and building materials.

2. Completeness review — The Building Department shall have five business
days to review the plans for completeness. If plans are deemed to be
incomplete, the Building Department shall provide a written notification to
the applicant detailing those items that are incomplete. If the plans are
deemed to be complete, the Building Department shall schedule a
Committee meeting to act on the plans, which meeting shall take place
within 30 days of the date the plans were deemed to be complete.

3. Committee review and action — The Committee shall make its
determination on approval of the plans and specifications, lot grading, and
landscaping plans based upon: their consistency with the Guidelines,
permitted uses, and other development standards and provisions contained
in these Covenants; the suitability and durability of the proposed
construction; the quality of the building materials and overall construction;
the harmony of external design; and the effect and appearance of such
proposed project as viewed from the streets and neighboring properties.
The Committee shall have 30 days from the date the plans and
specifications were deemed to be complete to render either a written
approval or written rejection thereof stating specifically the basis of
objections. A rejection also may contain suggestions for changes to the
plans and specifications, etc. that would make such project acceptable. If
the Committee gives no response within 30 days from the date the plans
and specifications were deemed to be complete, the plans and
specification as submitted shall be deemed to be approved.

C. Code compliance. All plans and specifications and methods of construction shall
be in filll compliance with all applicable codes and regulations of the City of Rock
Falls and State of Illinois. To the extent that an applicant is intending to seek a
variance, waiver or change in any code or regulation applicable to the applicant’s
project, such intention shall be fully disclosed to the Committee as part of the
submitted application materials. Approval of the project plans and specifications
by the Committee shall be required priot to the applicant seeking action on the
proposed variance, waiver or change by the appropriate authority; however, such
approval by the Committee shall not constitute an endorsement of the proposed
variance, waiver or change by the Committee unless the Committee so indicates
in a separate written document submitted by the Committee to the entity
authorized to approve the proposed variance, waiver or change.

D. Disclaimer. The Committee’s review of submissions is only for the purpose of
assuring the character and value of the RB&W Site and shall not be relied upon
by anyone as a representation as to structural soundness, fitness for a particular
purpose or compliance with zoning, building, health or safety codes or otdinances
or any other restrictions on the construction or property, other than the restrictive
covenants contained herein.

10




V. Project Construction.

A. Approved plans. Construction of a project approved by the Committee in
accordance with Article TV herein shall be in accordance with the plans and
specifications approved by the Committee.

B. Construction Site Standards. Construction and the conduct thereof shall
comply with all governmental requirements as to health and safety. In addition,
building and site plans of the owner shall address, at a minimum, erosion control,
parking for construction workmen, office trailers on the RB&W Site, materials
storage locations, security, design, location and disposal of sewage during
construction, cleaning and policing of the construction site and protection of
streets, street right-of-ways and property adjoining the building site. These may
be addressed in plan notes or letter form. When the construction of the project is
begun, work therein shall be prosecuted diligently and continuously, as
determined by the Committee and City Building Code time frames, until full
completion. Any building shall be substantially completed prior to occupancy of
any part thereof, and landscaping shall be fully completed within 30 days
following initial occupancy, weather permitting or as determined by the
Committee.

VI.  Utilities

All electric, telephone and other utility lines in or servicing facilities on the RB&W Site must be
underground. It is the responsibility of the owner or occupant of the facility to make
arrangements with the suppliers of electrical, water, sewer, telecommunications and other utility
appurtenances extend said utilities to the owner’s facility consistent with the requirements
contained in these covenants.

VII. Stormwater Management.

(Need to provide language about how each parcel is to deal with stormwater
management. At a minimum, there should be provisions that prohibit each lot from creating
negative impacts on the others and for prohibiting inappropriate use of the drainage system (i.e.,
using it to dispose/discharge of anything but stormwater). Will there be a site-wide system
installed upfront that everyone will connect to, or is each parcel on its own? If there is a site~
wide system, what limits/restrictions/pre-treatment requirements are there on each lot owner? If
there are shared/common area facilities, who maintains them?)

Storm Water Design must be compliant with Storm Water Ordinance Sec. 6-665.
VIII. Utility Easements.

No improvements other than landscaping made be constructed or installed within a utility
casement as set forth on the plat of the RB&W Site without the approval of the Committee,
Anyone making use of said utility easements shall be responsible for restoration of all grades and
landscaping disturbed by such work.

Consistent with any restrictions recorded as part of a utility easement, the Committee
may allow paving and fences and other minor improvements of a similar nature to be constructed
in a utility easement, provided that the owner of such improvements shall be responsible for the

11




continued maintenance, replacement or removal should they be disturbed by anyone making
appropriate use of said easement.

IX.  Parking and Loading.

Parking and loading shall be restricted to only those locations specifically designed and
designated for them. Owners shall enforce all fire lane and other “no parking” restrictions on
paved areas within their lots as required by the applicable fire safety authorities. Owners also
shall be responsible for directing their employees, vendors, customers and guests to
park/load/unload in areas appropriately designated for each.

X. Maintenance and Operations.
A. Maintenance. The owner of a lot shall have a duty and responsibility to:
1. Keep the premises, structures, improvements, parking lot, appurtenances
and landscaping so that all conform with these Covenants and in a
maintained, safe, clean and attractive condition at all times;

2, Comply in all respects with city, state and federal governmental, health,
fire and police requirements; e e e e i o+

3. Remove promptly any rubbish of any character whatsoever that may
accumulate on a lot. Trash or rubbish must be placed in appropriate
containers as defined by the Committee. Trash or rubbish must not be
placed or stored between any building and the edge of any abutting street;

4, Maintain all required landscaping and shall specifically (i) keep grass cut
to not over 4 inches in height (ii) remove and replace all dead or diseased
trees and shrubbery (iii) perform such additional planting, seeding,
sodding and grading work as necessary to prevent soil erosion, and (iv)
keep any native grass planting free from intrusive woody plants; and

5. Follow these Covenants or city code, whichever is more restrictive.
B. Operations. The owner of a lot shall have a duty and responsibility to:

1. Operate the property and all facilities only in the manner for which they
were designed, intended and approved. Any proposed changes in use or
general nature of the operations shall first be submitted to and approved by
the Committee;

2. Conduct all operations in a manner that is not offensive and does not pose
a nuisance to other owners or occupants of the RB&W Site or surrounding
properties. Offensive operations and nuisances shall be as defined in
Chapter 10, Article IV of the Rock Falls Code of Ordinances as well as
those activities and impacts that give rise to other owners or occupants of
the RB&W Site or surrounding properties to file written complaints with

12




XI.

the Committee that the Committee finds to be counter to character and
quality of the RB&W Site as described in these Covenants;

3. Ensure that where that keeping of household pets is specifically approved
by the Committee, that the owners of such pets maintain appropriate
control of them at all times and that pet waste is properly disposed of;

4. Adhere to the hours of operation for a particular use as approved by the
Comumittee;
5. Conduct all outdoor entertainment, recreation and other outdoor activities

in strict accordance to the terms and conditions placed upon such outdoor
activities by the Committee; and

6. Ensure that all employees, contractors, tenants of the owner are made
aware of all applicable provisions of these Covenants and that they
conduct themselves accordingly. In the event an employee, contractor or
tenant does not conduct themselves in accordance with these Covenants, it
shall be the owner’s responsibility, to the extent permitted by law, to
immediately correct their conduct and/or remove them from the RB&W
Site.

. Notice and Right to Abate and Lien. If, in the opinion of the Committee,

anyone who fails in any given responsibility set forth in this article, then the
Committee may give such owner notice of failure and such owner must, within 10
days of receipt of such notice, undertake the work required to restore said owner’s
site to a safe, clean, attractive and lawful condition complying with these
covenants. Should any such owner fail to timely fulfill this duty and
responsibility after such notice, then the Committee shall have the right, license
and power, but not the obligation, to perform such area maintenance. The owner
of a lot shall be liable for the cost of any such work, and shall reimburse the
Committee for all reasonable expenses, including attorney fees, incurred in
collecting such costs. In addition, each owner of a lot subject to this paragraph
hereby consents to and gives and grants to the Committee and to the City a lien
upon such lot to serve as collateral for the repayment of the costs and expenses
owed, which lien may be perfected by the filing by the Committee in the
Recorder’s Office of Whiteside County, Illinois, of a Notice of Claim for Lien
setting forth the amount owed, the lot to which the lien applies, the name and last
known address of the owner of said lot, and the general nature of the work
performed giving rise to the claim.,

Waiver of Right to Object to Special Taxing Districts.

While these Covenants remain in effect, all owners, lease holders and tenants

within the RB&W Site agree to waive their rights to object, as may otherwise be provided
under state law, to the creation of a Special Service Area or Business Development

13




District by the City of Rock Falls covering all or a portion of the RB&W Site provided
the maxnnum annual levy 1mposed under a Special Service Area would not exceed

$ . . andthe maximum sales and hotel occupancy taxes imposed under a
Business Development District would not exceed ...+ per cent (- %),

XII. Required Development.

The owner shall commence the construction of improvements on the RB&W Site
in.accordance with approved plans from the Committee, If the construction is not timely
commenced, or once commenced, not diligently pursued to completion, the owner shall
nonetheless be required to install acceptable landscaping on its property. Such
landscaping shall comply with the requirements of sub-section X.A.4. herein and shall
include, at a minimum, the seeding of the entire ground surface of the owner’s propetty.
If the owner fails to either install or maintain the landscaping, the Committee shall have
the right, privilege and license (but not the obligation) to do so, and all amounts expended
by the Committee, together with a surcharge of twelve (12) percent per annum of cost for
overhead plus all legal fees incurred by the Committee in enforcing this provision shall
be, upon written demand of the Committee, immediately due and payable by the owner.
If not paid by the owner within thirty (30) days of demand, the charges shall bear interest
at the rate of 12% per annum and shall be collectible for all lawful means. The charges,
together with interest thereon, shall also constitute a lien against the ownet’s property on
or for which the work was performed.

XTII. Option to Repurchase.

If an owner fails to commence construction of improvements on the RB&W Site within
one year of its purchase of a lot from the Committee or, after commencement of construction,
fails to diligently pursue the construction to completion, so that the development is completed in
substantial accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Committee on or before the
first anniversary date of the owner’s purchase of the lot from the Committee, then the Committee
shall have the option to repurchase the lot for the same price paid by the owner to the
Committee. This option shall be exercised by the Committee within ninety (90) days of the
event giving rise to such option by written notice to said owner or its successors in interest, If
the option is not so timely exercised, it shall expire and be of no further force or effect. The
notice shall specify a closing date between thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days of the date of the
notice. The lot shall be conveyed by general warranty deed, free and clear of all tenancies, liens
or encumbrances.

This Instrument shall put all parties on notice of this Option to Repurchase and no
separate agreement need be executed by an owner (or its successors in interest) in order to
validate the Committee’s option hereunder,

X1V. Further Subdivision Prohibited.

No lot which has been designated as a building lot on the original plat of subdivision of
any subdivision to which these covenants and restrictions apply shall be further subdivided by
any future owner thereof except with the express written consent of the Committee, This shall
include the creation of a condominium association, housing cooperative, timeshare ot any other
form of divided ownership of land or improvements as allowed by Illinois law.

14




XV. Additional Restrictions.

The owner shall not, without the prior written consent of the Committee, impose any
additional covenants or restrictions on the RB&W Site or any part thereof, but the Committee
may include in any contract or deed hereinafter made and covering all or any portion of said
“Part” any additional covenants or restrictions applicable to the RB&W Site which are not
consistent with and which do not lower the standards of the Covenants set forth herein.

XVI. Violations.

If any person, firm, corporation or other entity owning or holding any interest in any lot,
land or part of the subdivisions to which these restrictive Covenants apply shall violate any of the
Covenants, then in order to redress such violations, the Committee shall have the following
powers and authority, all of which shall be cumulative and not exclusive:

1. To file and maintain in the name of the City of Rock Falls an action at law
for the recovery of damages from the person or persons violating these
covenants, and including in such recovery all costs and expenses incurred
in such action, including reasonable attorney fees.

2. To file and maintain an action seeking a temporary restraining order,
preliminary injunction and permanent injunctive relief, including
mandatory injunctive relief for the purpose of preventing or enjoining any
violation or the continuation of any violation of these covenants and
restrictions. For this purpose, each owner of any lot, land or portion of the
subdivisions to which these Covenants apply does hereby acknowledge
and agree that a remedy at law may be inadequate to secure redress and
remedy arising from violation of these Covenants, and does further
acknowledge and agree that damages may be inadequate to propetly
compensate the Committee or the City of Rock Falls for damage arising
from violation of these Covenants. Each such owner of any lot, land or
portion of the subdivisions does therefore acknowledge and agree that a
court of competent jurisdiction shall have full authority to enter mandatory
or prohibitory injunctions, preliminary or permanent, and restraining
orders in accord with and pursuant to this provision.

XVIIL Titles,

The addition of titles to the various paragraphs in this instrument are for convenience and
identification only and the use of such titles shall not be construed to limit, enlarge, change, or
otherwise modify any of the provisions hereof, each and all of which shall be construed as if not
titled.

XVIIIL Severability.

Tnvalidity of any one or more of the provisions of these Covenants shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any of the other provisions, hereof, which shall remain in full force
and effect.

XIX. Duration and Amendment.
These Covenants shall continue and be binding for a period of twenty-five(25)years
from the date hereof, These Covenants shall automatically be continued thereafter for

15




successive periods of twenty (20) years each., Provided, however, that said Covenants may be
amended or altered in accordance with the following:

1. So long as any of the lots or lands within the subdivision to which these
Covenants are applicable are owned by the City of Rock Falls, then said
Covenants may be amended by adoption by the City Council of the City of
Rock Falls, by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote, of an ordinance amending
the same. Prior to the City Council’s consideration of such an ordinance,
the Committee shall provide the City Council a written recommendation
concerning the proposed amendment, with an affirmative recommendation
to amend these Covenants requiring a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the
Committee. This same process also shall be used to exempt and exclude
application of any one or more, including all, of these Covenants to
any one lot or parcel-within the subdivisions to which these Covenants
are applicable provided, however, that no such amendment, exemption
or exclusion shall permit the construction of any improvement or the
use of any lot or parcel in any manner which would be in violation of
any duly adopted ordinance or code then in effect within the City of
Rock Falls.

2. Any amendment, alteration, exemption or exclusion in or from the
application of these Covenants shall be effective only from the time a
duly adopted and executed original thereof shall have been recorded in
the Office of the Recorder of Whiteside County, Illinois."

City of Rock Falls, Illinois
Industrial Development Committee

By:

Title

Attest:

Secretary

The above and foregoing Restrictive Covenants and conditions consisting of seventeen
(17) pages was signed by the City of Rock Falls, Whiteside County, lllinois, as Owner this
day of ,2017.

City of Rock Falls, Illinois

By:

Mayor
Attest:

Approved by the Industrial Development Committee of the City of Rock Falls, lllinois,
this day of 52017

16



Industrial Development Committee of the City of Rock Falls, Illinois

By:

Chairman
Attest: _
Secretary

17




METROPOLITAIN
PUMP COMPANY

A Division of METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, ING.

QUOTATION

37 FORESTWOOD DR. » ROMEOVILLE, IL. 604461343
(815) 886-9200 . FAX (815) 886-4573
www,metropolitanind.com Page 1 of 1

Rock Falls Water Department
PROJECT: Water Plant Metro-Cloud and
Control Panels Upgrade
Rock Falls, IL.
TO: Ted Padilla BIDS DUE: ASAP
City of Rock Falls Water Superintendent
We are pleased to provide the following PROPOSAL for the equipment listed below:

Oty. e Description e L
1L Metropolitan Industries Metro-Cloud SCADA System upgrades to existing water system
The existing system 1/0 will be updated and incorporated as listed below:

1 Main Water Plant Replacement Control Panel (parts breakdown attached)
L Labor to remove the existing Main Control panel and install new panel & land wires, as required,
1 Remote Water Tower control Panel (parts breakdown attached)

1/L Labor to Install New Remote Water Tower monitoring Panel with necessary conduit & wiring.
1/L Labor to program both panels and to program the new Metrocloud SCADA System

Your cost for the above listed equipment, including freight, is: $49,‘035.00 _
(Taxes not Included)

NOTES & CLARIFICATIONS:

INCLUDED:: Only the equipment listed in the above description freight to jobsite, Installation, and startup
Electrical Installation shall comply with requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act

NOT INCLUDED: Anything not listed in the above description, permits, and/or sales taxes, if applicable.
PLC field work and programming labor are considered as "Professional Services" and are not
itermized/stipulated within the Prevailing wage documents,

The Monthly Cellular charge for the Metrocloud SCADA System is $68.00 per month.
This charge is by separate contract directly with Metropalitan Industries and is not included in quote,

TERMS: Net 30 days from dale of Involee. All Involees are payable In full when due, with no reia!nag@ allowed,

THIS QUOTATION, SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDE HEREOF, MAY BE ACCEPTED ONLY BY SIGNING ONE COPY OF THIS QUOTATION AND RETURNING IT TO
METROPOLITAN PUMP CO. NOT LATER THAN THE DATE INDICATED ON THE FACE HEREQF AFTER WHICH THIS QUOTATION 18 VOID. THIS QUOTATION AFTER ACCEPTANCE BY BUYER MAY
BE CANCELLED BY EITHER PARTY WITH NO PENALTY ONLY IF ENGINEER FAILS TO APPROVE SELLERS APPROVAL BROGHURE,

Accepted: City of Rock Falls, IL . Quotation No: 716W1280:}3DLH-rev2v
Firm: , Submitted: 27-Apr-17.
By: _ L Void after; 30 Days

Title: ____Prepared By:  Daniel Howorth




STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SALE
{Domestic. Shiprments)

1. TERMS
Standard terms are net thirly days irom date of Invoice. Products are sold F.0,B, Factory unless otherwise statad. A 2% per month service charge is added to ovardue accounts,

jt Is understood thal ha purchaser agriias to pay any and all costs Incurred In collecting delinguent agcounts, including by, way of Mustesthon but not Brsllad to: rdimahnbly altoriey

{oes] costs of wilnesses and expert wittissses, Including travel from polnt of orlgln and retier, subsisiance and réshmpgnse for time 163l trom reglital occupafiphy ot cosls,
depositions, transeripts, ste. PN

Quotations are subjoct to acceptanca within thirty days from the date, and In the Interim, are subject to changes In prica or other partioulara upon notice.

All offers to purghige, quotationg, and edrifradls of siles are sulijiat to final acceptance by Motropolitan Pumip (hereinatter called the Company) at it office at Romaoville-IL: and shall
be and constifute art Miriots Gantratt, subjucs 1:ihe taws of the Slate of inols,

2. SALES AND SIMILAR TAXES

Sales, usd, sectpational, exelse, or har similar taxes are not Included in the prices quoted and If this transaction Is subjected to any such lax by any taxing authority whataver, the
same riust ha:audad to the purthiase prich.

3. DELIVERIES

The Cuijadly shall be u
age, falluca 16 sbtain dellvarl

dr no Babllity for fallure to make tlalivaries where such fallufg to deliver may be dua to flres, stElkid, Wik, labor or transportation difflculties, car shorts
4 of matarliis, action of any iate, Fedgral or local goverinnta or other causes beyond Its roasutabty torital,

4, ESTIMATED SHIPPING WEIGHTS

n The Company will not be responsible for the accuracy of shipping wolghts submitted In quotations, as these welghts are estimated welghts, for use In computing probable frelght
charges,
5, GUARANTEES
) RATED QUTPUT N ’
The Gierrpany guarantues it the appindIE makUfatturgd by it will doler §becusglully its output as indicated on the nameplate, provided suct apparetus Is proparly Inatalled and
maintalnéd, correctly lubreited, speratad undge normdl eondilons and with compatont supervision.

REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE MATERIAL

Ay piatka vitloh shidw Jaulty workntsmship-or material yil be ropakait:ac faplied wious ' Vi whah dpfeicty dovelop under prmvil and proper
usey within thres montbs alige da Fhl e ¢ ] 5 Jinfore repaitin dir alterlng the

gl ] {i'fhe G gmr};auﬁnﬁmw gt suh
By the Gotipany shall sonstiste s 08wt of Hs-obiigati to e Plrphason.

prosiiant I oy Wiy, Th edired § y
NON-LIABILITY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE

THe:ampapy vl ol be fegpansible-for o lisbfe Torany Joss or daynage resaultipg Hreom impritier mokdon o) w i A ESpATTLIE i auiviBE i Wil nutagsmy any
roupionsiblity, dipinna o ladsility foc rophitg: mace. utglls s works wilioot: propsr willlan - ginnent of e gompany. Ths Go I st ber fespnsible or ablo for any: doimage of
o5t radtifing fram ingtihatiofn or dparallon i dny- mindr kot semplying Witk iistmialion oroporiting Tnitrsfolions Br. drawings or Wil the 7atngs murkdd Haraon:

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Cutripsany will not be responsible or liable in any way for conseguantial darmagie or.ptntingent ﬁgbj(ﬂ resulll[\_‘g’;l{om néilofivaty, late galivary, function, matfunction or nontunction

or any rjuipmient sold hereunder or resulting from any service providag or from fdlfasaiids or nonfiahice of ity service provitded hergundit,
6. CHANGES

In event the Purchaser fings It necessinfy 1a miake changas In the work f be fifliirmid Weridider, ha sy do so ey by weilien:odar, I such changes pause an Incroatid.or degtdiie
in thedam?unt due for apgitratus sold Hatdtinies, or In (fig time requlred tor comitletion of reaulling widie, an eriiftdble adjusint, shall be made @t the order gl be mogifihd
accordingly. . B

7. TERMINATION

In the event Purchaser, due 1o good and sufficlent cause; deslres to effact cancellation of salos or services sold hereunder, notice shall be givan In writing to the Company.

Thgtampany shall thiratipon, as directed, cease work and deliver to the Purchaser all completed and partially completed articles and materials and work in process. The Purchaser shall
pay theGompany the follawing:

(8) Tthe prics provided In the order for ali articles or materlals which have been completed ptior to tarmination.

ﬁb) Adiunl sapefiditures mada by the Gdripany In coniiitiion with the Incompleted portion of the order, Including reasanable cancellation charges paid by the Company for which # may
be llabli on dreolit of commitmonts midle under the ordir

{c) Reasonable estimated profits on the incompleted portion of the order raultiptied by the percentage of completion of the Incompleted portion of the arder.
8, DEFERRED DELIVERIES

Dl daliveries ari Subjatl u.Company’s approval, Should the Purchaset for good and sufficlont cause desire that we hold up or defer dellverles untll some later day, same shall
be actaptable on the foliowltg sonditions only:

(8) Ualterment parlad is not to exdpa Bhily: days, At the wnd of whigl ﬁma. it no reloase Is glvan, Y}wn\phhy reseiyng the right to render Involes and maka shipment of the com-

pleted psatlion of order [o destinalion specified in Purchager's-order, or 10 Whifgliouse such apparalul At Futchasur's expotise.

(by @0 (e Incompletuet parlibn ol tha Sider, If reldiad Is not glven by \ha Parchugor at the explration of sixty days, the Company reserves the right {0 make a cancellation charge
on the antg conditions arid terings of paymiant as outlied sbove under "Tefminaliat,™

9, PATENTS

The Gompany otilies hatlo he-best.of lis kiigwletlgidhe siipatatus sold hfunder ditis not Infringa huy Latidrs Fistont gramtod to offiers by e Unltdt Blates of Adilodidr by sy
cournity ‘°;°It9n ‘hgf_elo‘ The Gampany debs-tol AssUmE: any fesponsibilty or llablily for:ary claim of infringatiant britight figalnet the Putthiseir, 6 audtassors, asyigns; wisttingrs
or ugers of its product. ’

10, PAYMENTS

i, i Wie Judgment of e Company, thia Hinryelal eandition of the Purchaser at any times does not Justify continisance of the preduction ot shipment on the terms of payment specified,
the Cornpgny. inay require Jull or patiial payriaat in ftlvince.

Pro tald payimerils:shall bacome duans stipmarits are rangy, I shipmants fs dalugpit by the Pldibibr, payiiiite shifh bistrme Hue. from dfo witen tha Cormpy I8 praparad to

male shipmiont, Il manulactiite ls detiyad by the Purghaser, piiyment shiall be tiare hiad on the ednkish priee-oihd the paicentage 6f-complation; Agparatiia Hield for thie Purstiasor
ghilt Ba at-the sl and exfranse of thi Purt]

s,
11. FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS

The Cornpany, to the bast of lts knowledge, Is complying with The Falr Labor Standards Adt, Public Contracts Act and all other applicable State and Fadaral Laws, and the orders and
regulations issued thereunder

12, QENERAL

Thare ame no undersiandings, apragmants.or warranties, &liliar verbal or written, relating to the apparatus sold hereunder that are not fully expressed hereln and no changs In the tarma
heryat may tie tndn exeapt by a wiling skyned by both phrtiss.

No statement, rovatmendation or ssgleisrice made ar uttared by Compafiy hraligh Rte represurtatives to the Purchaser or his mptaoriaives-in connection with the use of any
product sold by us-hhwill be or constilciin & walver by Comparsy of any of the pravisions hereof or eliangd the purchaser’s Habllity as haraln dufirad,

Balior réprodinte 1AL vilth:reapant to i produion of the alidls. andiar
tho’ patfatmanca of 1ho seryieos oyarad by tis el It ha ity goralled

\olte-Boatior 12 (3} of e Fale Libor Slatdurds-Act ol 1934, €& pindndot,




ADDENDUM TO PROPOSAL AND AGREEMENT

Contractor —Metropolitan Pump Company
Owner-~ City of Rock Falls, Illinois

This addendum supplements and is incorporated into the terms and provisions of the agreement
between the Contractor and Owner for SCADA system upgrades at the Water Department Rock Falls,
Whiteside County, Illinois.

Contractor agrees that not less than the prevailing rate of wages, as found by the Department of
Labor of the State of Illinois, shall be paid to all laborers, workers and mechanics performing work under
the contract, and Contractor agrees that all subcontracts and lower tiered subcontracts shall contain a
written stipulation that not less than the prevailing rate of wages shall be paid to all laborers, workers and
mechanics performing work under such subcontract or lower tiered subcontract, all as determined by the
Department of Labor of the State of Illinois.

Contractor also agrees that it shall:

1. Make and keep for a period of not less than three (3) years, records of all laborers,
mechanics and other workers employed on the project, including each worker’s name,
address, telephone number when available, social security number, classification or
classifications, hourly wages paid in each pay period, number of hours worked each day,
and the starting and ending times of work each day; and

2. Submit monthly, in person, by mail or electronically, a certified payroll to the Owner,
consisting of a complete copy of the records identified in subparagraph 1 hereof, except
that the record may exclude the starting and ending times of work each day, and also that
the certified payroll shall be accompanied by a statement signed by the Contractor or
subcontractor that certifies that such records are true and accurate, that the hourly rate
paid to each worker is not less than the general prevailing rate of wage required by the
Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, and that the Contractor or subcontractor is aware that filing
a certified payroll which he knows to be false is a Class B misdemeanor.

At the time of request for each progress payment, Contractor shall deliver to Owner a contractor’s
affidavit listing all suppliers of labor and material, the work performed by each, the amounts paid to each
to date, the amount due for work performed to date and a waiver of lien for any payments made to any
such supplier signed by such supplier,

Contractor: Owner:
Metropolitan Pump Company City of Rock Falls, Illinois
By: By:

Mayor




WATER » MIBERAL

April 3,2017

City of Rock Falls

Attn: Mr. Ted Padilla, Water Superintendent
603 West 10™ Street

Rock Falls, IT. 61071

RE:  Well No. 5 Pump Removal/Inspection
20 HP 12RKBM -1 Stage VHS Christensen Pumping Assembly

Dear Mr. Padilla:

At your request, Layne has prepared this proposal for the removal of the pumping assembly,
inspection of the equipment and the downhole video survey of Well No. 5. This well was last
repaired by Layne in September 2006. Rock Falls has been collecting data over the years and it
is showing a loss of specific capacity and flow rate over time.

Well No. 5 was constructed by Albrech Well Drilling in 1930 with 104 feet of 24-inch surface
casing and a 25-foot, 24-inch diameter stainless steel screen to a depth of 129 feet. The upper 13
feet of screen is a 100-slot (0.100-in) and the lower 12 feet is 60-slot (0.060-in).

The pumping assembly was last repaired by Layne in 2006 and included a new 10" piece of
column above the bowl assembly, an 8-inch by 10-foot suction pipe, five new 10-inch
combination couplings and seven inner-diameter and six outer diameter zinc sleeves with epoxy
coating.  The motor included cleaning, baking and replacement of bearings. The pumping
assembly from abandoned well No. 4 was recently repaired and refurbished by Layne and can be
placed into this well, It is recommended that the existing assembly from well no. 5 be inspected
at our Aurora facility as backup if the well no 4 assembly is installed.

Layne is proposing to proceed with the work in two phases. Phase I will include the pump
removal, video survey, motor service (inspection only) and pump assembly inspection. Phase 11
will include any recommend assembly repairs and/or well rehabilitation (if required) and will
include the reinstallation and test pumping of the permanent assembly. This proposal covers
only Phase I of the project only.

WATER RESQURCES

721 W. lllinols Avenue, Aurora, Il 60506 | Office: 630-897-6941 | Fax: 630-897-6976 | layne.com

> ANERGY




The estimated costs associated with the removal, video survey and inspection are as follows:

PHASE I - Rock Falls Well No. 5 Pump Removal, Video Survey and Inspection

Item Qty | Unit | Unit Cost | Extension
1| Load and mobilize to the site, set up pump service
rig and support equipment. Lockout power to
pump.  Pull pumping assembly, load and
demobilize,
Serviceman and Helper (loading) | 4 Hrs $307.00 $1,228.00
Medium Pump Rig and Operator | 16 Hrs $248.00 $3,698.00
__ Flatbed Crane and Operator | 16 | Hrs | $248.00 |~ $3,698.00
Serviceman with Service Truck | 16 Hrs $213.00 $3,408.00
Per Diem 3 Ea $120.00 $360.00
2 | Downhole Video Survey with DVD copy and
written report
Technician and Equipment 1 LS $1,625.00 $1,625.00
3 | Unload equipment in yard; equipment inspection:
sandblast column pipe and bowl assembly for
inspection, disassemble bowl assembly and
prepare a micrometer report, and send motor out
for inspection. Prepare complete equipment
inspection report,
Sandblast equipment and two man crew | 4 Hrs $355.00 $1,420.00
Serviceman with Hand Tools | 12 Hrs $160.00 $1,920.00
Helper Hrs $147.00 $1,176.00
Motor inspection 1 LS $275.00 $275.00
PHASEI-TOTAL = | $19,348.00

Additional costs would consist of any pumping assembly repairs, well rehahilitation, and pump
installation costs. These costs will be submitted with the pumping equipment inspection report
and rehabilitation plan (if required). The actual hours conducted by the crew will be depicted
on the final invoice utilizing the unit pricing shown above, The above estimate does assume that
the pumping assembly can be removed in a normal fashion and without any unusual downhole
circumstances.

The pumping assembly will be loaded and returned to our Aurora facility for disassembly and
inspection. A full report will be completed detailing recommendations for repairs/replacements
and submitted along with the downhole video survey and any recommended rehabilitation (if
required).




Layne values our longstanding relationship with the City of Rock Falls and is looking forward to
again being of service to you on this project. If you have any questions, comments, or concerns
regarding the proposal above please do not hesitate to contact me. I can always be reached either
in the office at 630.897.6941 or on my mobile at 630.809.2707.

Sincerely yours,

Prisi A Mool
Brian M. Snelten, P.G.

Project Manager
Layne Christensen Company




WORK ORDER

Layne Christensen Company
721 W. lllinois Avenue, Aurora, IL. 60506; Phone (630) 897-6941
229 W. Indiana Ave., P.Q. Box 489, Beecher, IL 60401; Phone (708) 946-2244

TWATUR - MINENAL < ENERGY

Purchaser:  City of Rock Falls, IL

Job Location: Well No. 5

SERVICE RATES - EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2016

Straight Time Overtime Doubletime
PerHr. 8Hr.Day PerHr. Per Hr.

Serviceman w/hand tools 184.00 1472.00 276.00 368.00
Serviceman w/service truck and hand tools, or welder 213.00 1704.00 305.00 397.00
Helper 150.00 1200.00 225.00 300.00
Serviceman and 1 Helper 334,00 2672.00 501.00 668.00
Small Rig or Winch Truck ($48.00)
1 Man Crew 232.00 1856.00 324.00 416.00
2 Man Crew 382.00 3056.00 549.00 716.00
3 Man Crew 532.00 4256.00 774.00 1016.00
Middle Rig, Large Hoist or Flatbed Crane ($64.00)
1 Man Crew : 248.00 1984.00 340.00 432.00
2 Man Crew 398.00 3184.00 565.00 732.00
3 Man Crew 548,00 4384.00 790.00 1032.00
Big Rig, Large Hoist and Poles, or Large Crane ($105.00)
1 Man Crew 289.00 2312.00 381.00 473.00
2 Man Crew 439,00 3512.00 606.00 773.00
3 Man Crew 589.00 4712.00 831.00 1073.00
4 Man Crew 739.00 5912.00 1056.00 1373.00
Power Tong Usage, per 8 hour shift 460.00
Machine Shop/Yard Labor and Equipment
Machinist and Equipment 177.00 1416.00 257.00 337.00
12" Threading Machine and Operator 203.00 1624.00 283.00 363.00
Serviceman w/hand tools 160.00  1280.00 240.00 320.00
Helper 147.00 1176.00 220.50 294.00
Sandblast Equipment and 2 man crew 355.00 2840.00 508.50 662.00
Mileage: Auto: $0.55 Pickup: $0.70 1-Ton:$1.00 2-1/2 Ton Flatbed: $2.10 Semi-Tractor: $2.75

Subsistence-Per Man
Over 55 miles radius from home office.............. $60.00 + Hotel

The undersigned Purchaser hereby instructs Layne Christensen Company (Contractor), to proceed with the work described with the understanding that the Terms and
Conditions shown on the reverse are hereby incorporated as part of this Quotation and with the specific understanding that Contractor will not be held liable for any damage
in any way whatsoever for fallure to complete the described work, nor for any injury or damage resulting from Contractor's efforts to perform such work, or for delay on
Contractor's part in completing same. All work described herain will be provided as quoted above or on a cost plus basis at the hourly rates provided. All quotes indicated,

* if any, are estimates based on the best information avallable prior to beginning work. Purchaser's pumps, motors, parts and/or accessories may be stored by the Contractor
for sixty (60) days from the date of invoice or other written notice from Contractor, After sald sixty (60) days, disposal of such equipment may be made by the Contractor
without Incurring any liability. All hours worked before or after Contractor's normal work day hours and all hours worked on Saturdays, will be billed at time and one-half
rates. All work on-Sundays and/or any federally recognized holiday will be billed at double time rates.

REMARKS:
See attached proposal dated 4/3/17

Work Authorized on Behalf of Purchaser By:

Date: Title:




TERMS AND CONDITIONS

LIABILITY OF CONTRACTOR: Contractor shall not be liable for any bodily injury, death, or Injury to or destruction of tangible property except as
the same may have been caused by the negligence of Contractor. In no event shall Contractor be llable for any delays or special, indirect, incidental
or consequential damages. Purchaser agrees that the total limit of Contractor's liablility (whether based on negligence, warranty, strict labllity or
otherwise) hereunder, shall not exceed the aggregate amount due Contractor for services rendered under this contract. All claims, Including claims
for negligence or any other cause whatsoever, shall be deemed waived unless made in writing and recelved by Contractor within one (1) year after
Contractor's completion of work hereunder.

INSURANCE: Contractor shall provide workers’ compensation insurance, public labllity and property damage Insurance covering Its employees and
operatlon, Purchaser, at its optlon, may malntain such Insuranoce as wlil protect It against claims arising out of the work.

REIMBURSABLE COST: In addition to the hourly charge provided on the face of thls contract, Purchaser will relmburse Contractor for travel and
living .expenses necessartly incurred by the Contractor in the perfarmance of the work, minor incidental expenses such as overnight mall, telephone
and petty cash expenditures necessarily Incurred, cost of removal of all debrls if so directed by Purchaser, sales, consumer, use and similar taxes
required by law and the cost of permits and all [lcenses necessary for the executlon of the work. The foregoing costs shall be bllled at actual cost
plus fifteen percent (15%) unless otherwise agreed upon,

PRICE ADJUSTMENT: Any cost estimates or time frames stated herein are subject to equltable .adjustment in the event of differing or
unforeseeable condltions, changes in applicable laws after the date of this contract, unforeseeable delays or difflculties caused by acts of God,
Purchaser or any third parties. Prices of goods acquired by Contractor from others shall be adjusted to reflect Contractor's price In effect at time of
shipment, The price of Contractor's goods will be adjusted to the price in effect at time of shipment in accordance with Contractor’s ourrent escalation
policies or as speclfically covered in this contract,

TERMS: Thirty (30) days net from date of involce. For extended projects, Contractor shall submit Invelces on a monthly basls for any and all work
completed and materlals or equipment provided durlng the previous month, Past due Involces shall be subject to a delinquency charge of one and
ona-half percent (1-1/2%) per month (eighteen percent (18%) per annum) unjess-a Iower charge is required under applicable law.-In which case the
lower rate shall apply. Purchassr agrees to pay all collection fees, attorneys' fees and costs Incurred In the coltection of -any past due amounts
arising out of thls contract. Gontractor shall have the right to immediately terminate this contract without further Hability If Purchaser fails to make
timely payment or otherwise materially breaches this contract.

MATERIAL SHORTAGES AND COST INCREASES: |f any portion of materlals or equlpment which Contractor Is required to furnish becomes
unavailable, either temporarily or permanently, through causes beyond the contro! and without the fault of Contractor, then In the case of temporary
unavailabllity any compietion time frames shall be extended for such period of tlme as Contractor shall bhe delayed by such above-desoribed
unavailabllity, and In the case of permanent unavalilability Contractor sha!ll he excused from the requirement of furnishing such materials. or equipment.
Purchaser agrees to pay Contractor any increase in cost between the cost of the matertals or equlpment which have become permanently unavailable
and the cost of the closest substitute whioh is then reasonabhly avallable,

DELAYS: If Contractor |s delayed at any time in the progress of work by labor disputes, fire, unusual delays in transportation, unavoldable
casualties, weather, or any cause beyond Contractor’s reasonable control, then any completion time frames shall be extended by a reasonable period
of time, at least equal to the period of delay.

CHANGED CONDITIONS: The discovery of any hazardous waste, substances, pollutants, contaminants, underground obstructions or utilitles on or
In the job site which were not brought to the attention of Cantractor prior to the date of this contract will constitute a materially different slte condition
entitling Contractor, at its sole discretion to Immediately terminate this contract without further liabitity,

ESCALATION: This contract is made with the understanding that Contractor will be able to begin and continuously proceed with Its work on or
before the proposed start date on the reverse side hereof, In the event Contractor Is unable to commence Its work on or before said date because the
project Is not ready for Contractor's work, Contractor will charge Purchaser the amount of increase In Contractor's cost attributable to such delay, plus
Contractor's normal overhead percentage.

GUARANTEE AND LIABILITY: Contractor warrants that its labor supplied hereunder shall be free from defect and shall conform to ‘the standard of
care in effect in its industry at the time of performance of such labor for a period of twelve (12) months after substantial completion of Contractor's
work. Contracior agrees, to the extent it is permitted, to pass on any warranties provided by the manufacturers of materials and/or equipment
furnished under this contract, Contractor Itself provides no warranty, express, Implied or otherwise, on any such materials or equlpment. Contractor
will not be responsible for: work done, material or equipment furnished or repairs or alteratlons made by others,

For any breach hereunder, Contractor shall be liable only for the value of the Installation work or, If It wrongfully fails to install, then its liability is
limited to the difference between the contract price herein, and the value of other similar Installation work. If Contractor’s breach damages any
materials or equipment furnished hereunder, Contractor shall only be liable for the value of such materials or equipment, Under no clrcumstances will
Contractor be liable for consequential, special or Indirect damages, Including without limitation, any crop loss or damage, damage to other equipment,
structures or property, nor for any other similar or dissimilar damages or losses whether due to delay, fallure to furnish or Install, delay in Installation,
defective material or equipment, defective workmanship, defective installation, delay In replacing, nor for any cause or breach whatsoever. in any
event, Contractor's total liabllity towards Purchaser for alleged faulty performance or nonperformance under this contract shall be limited to the total
contract price. No materials, equipment or services contracted herein carrles any guarantee not mentioned in this contract, THE ABOVE WARRANTY
IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED,

TITLE AND OWNERSHIP: In case of default on Purchaser's part, Contractor shall have the right to enter the premlses upon which any material or
equipment furnished herein have been installed and retake such goods not then pald for and pursue any further remedy provided by law, [ncluding
recovety of attorneys’ fees and any deficlenoy to the maximum extent and In the manner provided by law. Such materials and equipment shall retain
thelr character as personal property of Contractor until payment In full Is recelved by Contractor, regardless of their mode of attachment. Unless prlor
specific written instructions are received to the contrary, surplus and replaced materials and equipment resulting from repalr or installation work shall
become the property of Contractor,

DELIVERY: Shipment schedules and dates, expressed or Implied, are contingent on normal conditions, Contractor will not be responsible for any
delays In shipment or completion caused by factors beyond [ts control such as, but not limited to, suppliers' fallures, accldents, work stoppages or
operatlon of or changes In the law. Shipments will be made as promptly as Contractor's ability to obtain materials and/or equipment and scheduling
wlll permit, No detay In shipments or varlances from shlpping schedule shail be cause of cancellation or any claim for damage. Any changes In fayout
or design requested after acceptance of thls contract will be made at Purchaser's addltional cost. Any such change and/or time taken to supply
engineering data or to approve drawlngs will automatically extend shipping schedules. Equipment will be shipped ‘krocked down” to the extent
Contractor considers necessary, with small parts stripped from equlpment and crated. On and after delivery to the carrler for transportation to the
Purchaser's slte, Purchaser shall be responsible for all loss or damage to materlals or equipment due to any cause, including but not limlted to loss or
damage resulting from casualty,

INDEMNIFICATION: Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Contractor, its directors, offfcers, stockholders, employees, agents and
subcontractors, harmless from and against any and all clalms, demands, causes of action (Including third party clalms, demands or causes of action
for contribution or indemnification), Hability and costs (including attorneys' fees and other costs of defense) asserted and/or filed by Purchaser or any
third party(ies), Including without limitation Purchaser’s employees, and arlsing out of or as a result of: (i} the presence of Contractor or its
subcontractors at the job site, (/) the work performed by Contractor of lts subcontractors, or (lil) any negligent act or omission of Purchaser, Its
employees, agents, consultants, other contractors or any person -or enlify under Purchaser's control; except to the extent that such clalms, demands,
rauses nf antion liahllities nr casts are caused bv tha nealicance af Gontractor or its suhconfractnrs




WRITE OFFS JANUARY 2017 - MARCH 2017

NAME ACCOUNT# AMOUNT

BANKRUPTCY

592.86

20.93
294.98
250.45
282.91
276.33

TOTAL 1,718.46

DECEASED

181.35
363.65

S8.08
276.03
776.50

TOTAL - 1,695.62

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCE

. 20793

WALGREENS 31-02530-00 1,692.00
TOTAL 1,989.93
AGED OUT

190.96
7.15
117.72
250.82
1,101.02
51.12
514.29
116.71
11531

ELE

278.38
110.52

253.55

642.45

0.13
91.63
105.68
549.14

746.58

21.43

21.43

145.28
6.91
111.46
107.15
1,018.53
6.26
357.62
29.97
112.40

ELEPEN SEWER SEWPEN WATER WATPEN GARBAGE GAR PEN
470.58 122.28
16.61 4.32
9.09
3.84 75.89 3.72 30.69 1.16 20.28 1.45
217.22 8.45 56.45 0.7¢
16.38
12.93 780.30 12.17 213.74 1.95 36.66 1.45
132.50 5.12 36.25 0.48
278.16 11.96 72.28 112
4.20
8.68 85.58 3.66 43.38 161 23.74 1.07
135.00 46.82 30.00
12.88 638.24 20.74 198.73 3.21 53.74 1.07
1.17 167.21 7.93 73.18 1.68 23.54 1.52
1,692.00
117 167.21 7.93 73.18 169 1,715.54 1.52
4.09 23.48 0.94 11.85 0.45
2.34
5.86 75.33 3.88 35.1% 1.40 17.88 0.97
48.23
0.31 25.05 1.16 11.53 0.40 6.05 0.30
8.65 76.38 3.14 37.08 125 17.06 0.71
3.07 45.96 2.36 21.18 0.80 1111 0.61

TAX

7.51
2.90

6.40

16.81

2.26
2.63
15.54

20.43

0.26

0.26

4.87
0.24
3.42
3.16
34.26
0.06
11.40
1.65
2.91

UR LITE

TOTAL

0.00

0.00

0.00

592.86

20.93
294.98
250.45
282.91
276.33

1,718.46

181.35
363.65

98.09
276.03
776.50

1,695.62

297.93
1,692.00

1,989.93

190.96
7.15
117.72
250.82
1,101.02
51.12
514.2¢9
116.71
115.31



WRITE OFFS JANUARY 2017 - MARCH 2017

NAME ACCOUNT# AMOUNT ELE ELEPEN SEWER SEWPEN WATER WATPEN GARBAGE GARPEN TAX UR LITE TOTAL
180.86 61.87 3.17 75.26 3.18 34.68 1.08 1.62 180.86
241.75 126.67 7.57 62.75 3.25 33.09 1.58 6.84 241.75
443.88 177.54 10.95 139.34 6.96 70.12 3.10 29.34 1.39 5.14 443.88
118.47 52.70 251 34.87 1.42 16.07 0.55 8.43 0.34 1.58 118.47
182.52 61.03 1.59 66.49 3.58 32.26 0.58 14.88 0.44 1.67 182.52
112.40 59.27 29.59 16.72 4.91 191 112.40
457.27 246.47 13.89 104.37 5.84 55.22 2.69 20.01 1.11 7.67 457.27
246.59 110.62 4.55 70.10 3.89 40.37 1.97 11.05 0.66 3.38 246.59
233.37 79.35 3.50 83.66 3.69 38.54 1.26 20.22 0.97 2.18 233.37
185.11 47.96 2.53 75.17 3.45 34.65 1.11 18.17 0.93 1.14 185.11
54.55 0.20 41.11 1.34 11.74 0.15 0.01 54.55
250.73 91.94 4.84 85.92 3.18 39.60 1.08 20.77 0.82 2.58 250.73
TOTAL 5,172.60 3,011.00 129.35 1,114.83 51.26 539.89 19.45 199.88 9.26 97.68 0.00 5,172.60
GRAND TOTAL 10,576.61 4,421.46 156.33 2,700.58 92.10 1,025.54 26.30 2,005.82 13.30 135.18 0.00 10,576.61

10,576.61



The Rock Falls Police Pension Fund

1013 7' Avenue
Rock Falls IL 61071
Phone: 815-622-1140
Fax: 815-622-1144

April 215, 2017
Rock Falls City Council
Dear Sirs:

The Rock Falls Police Pension board is requesting the city council reappoint
John Hoffmiller to another two year term as board member. The term would
be effective June 15" 2017 and expire May 315" 2019,

John has been on the board for many and his dedication and knowledge of
the workings of the police pension have been beneficial to the City and
pension board.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

4@4;/

Police ensuon President
Jay Koett






